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May 31. 2016 

The Honorable Mayor, 
City Commissioners and 
Citizens of the City of Garden City 

Garden City, Kansas 67846 

This is the Comprehensive Annual Financial Repon (CAFR) of the City of Garden City, 
Kansas, (the City) for the calendar year ended December 31, 2015. This report was 
prepared by the City's Service and Finance Department. 

Management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of the 
information contained in this report, based upon a comprehensive framework of internal 
control that It has established for this purpose. Within that framework and because the 
cost of internal control should not exceed anticipated benefits, the objective is to provide 
reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance that the financial statements are free of any 
material misstatements. 

Independent Audit 
Kansas Statutes Annotated 75-1122 requires an annual audit of the books of account, 
financial records. and transactions of all administration departments of the City by 
independent certified public accountants selected by the City Commission. This report is 
published to fulfill that requirement for the fiscai year ended December 31, 2015 

Lewis. Hooper 8. Dick, LLC, Certified Public Accountants, have issued an unmodified 
(“clean”) opinion on the City of Garden City's financial statements for the year ended 
December 31, 2015. The independent auditors‘ report is located at the front of the 
financial section of this report. 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
Management's discussion and analysis (MD&A) immediately follows the independent 
auditors’ report and provides a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis of the basic 
financial statements. The MD8.A compliments this letter of transmittal and should be read 
in conjunction with it 

Profile of the Government 
The City of Garden City, incorporated in 1883. is located in the southwest part of the state 
It currently occupies 1001 square miles and serves a population of 30,948 The City is 
empowered to levy a property tax on both real and personal property located within its 

boundaries. It is also empowered by state statute to extend its corporate limits by 
annexation, which it has done from time to time. 

The City operates under the commission-manager form of government. Policy-making 
and legislative authority are vested in a governzng commission (Governing Body) 
consisting of five members, all elected on a non-partisan basis. The Governing Body 
appoints a City Manager, who in turn appoints the heads of the vanous departments. 
Members of the Governing Body serve four-year or two-year terms, with three members 
elected every two years. The Governing Body appoints the mayor annually from its 

members for the purposes of chairing the meetings and informally sewing as the 
spokesperson for the Governing Body.



Governmental Services 
The City provides its citizens with various municipal services commonly associated with municipalities. 
The public safety area provides police. fire and emergency dispatch services. Construction and 
maintenance of the City's street and highway network is the responsibility of the public works department. 
The community development department has the responsibility of maintaining the structural standards of 
the community through the planning and enforcement of the City's building codes and comprehensive 
land use plan. The development and maintenance of the City's parks, zoo and recreation programs and 
facilities is the responsibility of the parks, zoo and recreation departments. The finance and 
administration departments are responsible for the general and financial administration of the City, and 
include the courts, the prosecution of violations of City codes and ordinances, general counsel, human 
resource administration and information technology. Additionally, the City provides utility functions for 
water, wastewater, solid waste, drainage, and electric utilities. More specialized areas include cemetery, 
airport, golf course, and GIS. 

The City is also accountable for two legally separate entities, which are reported separately within the 
City's financial statements. These component units are the Garden City Recreation Commission and 
Garden City Housing Authority. Additional information on these entities can be found in the notes to the 
financial statements (see Note 1, item B). 

Budgetary Controls 
The City's budget is prepared on the modified accrua! basis which is modified further by an encumbrance 
system of accounting as required by applicable state statutes. The City Manager annually presents a 
proposed budget to the City Commission for their review and consideration. The City Manager's 
proposed budget sets forth the proposed funding level of the City's various operating and public service 
programs. A series of public meetings are held by the City Commission to review the proposed budget, 
as well as alternative spending proposals the staff or Commissioners may also wish the City Commission 
to consider. After a public hearing to solicit citizens‘ comments on the proposed budget and amendments 
made by the City Commission, the City Commission adopts the final budget. The final budget is 

appropriately controlled through an accounting system to ensure effective fiscal management and 
accountability. 

Local Economy 
Major industries located within the City's boundaries or in close proximity are agricultural and ag-industrial 
based. In addition, the City is a regional center for southwest Kansas resulting in several financial 
institutions, medical facilities, and retail centers. 

Unemployment is relatively stable. During the past ten years, the unemployment rate varied from an 
initial rate of 3.6% in 2006, to a decade high of 4.7% in 2012, to the current rate of 3.2% in 2015. The 
2012 high resulted from a closure of Beef Products, Inc. which empioyed around 200 people. The 
unemployment rate is expected to either remain stable or decrease in the near term as new economic 
development and job opportunity occurs. 

Economic development is obviously a very important concern of cities in Kansas, and particularly as a 
strategy to counter an uncertain national economy. In 2015 the community continued to see a marked 
increase in the number of inquiries and meetings with clients that indicated potential for additional 

development in the area. The City is involved with the other partner agencies which form the Finney 
County Economic Development Corporation in the recruitment of new employers and expansion of 

existing industry. 

Long-term Financial Planning 
The City of Garden City has been steadily growing over the last two decades. As a yesglt, the need. to 
provide for sound and appropriate growth must not overshadow the need to mamtann the existing
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infrastructure — the backbone of our future. Since 1989 the City has had a long-term capital improvement 
program, looking at not just the immediate needs, but also at the ensuing five-year period. The Capital 
Improvement Plan (CIP) is one of the more critical policy statements adopted by the Governing Body. 
The primary funding sources for capital projects include regular departmental operating budgets, bonding 
and partnering with the Community College, School District, County, State and Federal agencies. 

One of the City Commission goals has been to increase citizen involvement in their City government. As 
we have done since 2006, the CIP process, for both the 2014 and 2015 programs. again stepped to the 
front in the area of citizen involvement. Citizen input was actively sought through the opportunity to 
suggest capital projects; a citizen committee then reviewed all the proposed projects before the CIP was 
reviewed by the Governing Body or any projects were submitted for approval in the budget. The Citizen's 
Committee was very cognizant of the project costs and the effect on the City's mill levy. 

Relevant Financial Policies 
In 2015 City management and staff continued to review current budgeting policies, purchasing practices. 
debt policies, cost savings, efficiency alternatives. options for privatizing and consolidation of services, 
revenue enhancement, improved inventory management systems, and cash management practices with 
the thought in mind of providing a proper use of assets based on need. As the State continues to see the 
State revenues decline, the City is required to manage the combined burden of lost statutory revenues 
from the State and the assumption of mandated responsibilities from State and Federal agencies. With 
guidance by the elected City Commission. the City is committed to continuing to provide both a high level 
and quality of service while simultaneously taking a conservative approach to the capital planning 
necessary to meet projected growth. 

Another City Commission goal was to develop a financial forecasting model for the City's tax supported 
funds. This forecast model provides the City Commission and staff with the ability to test the impact of 
different scenarios on Garden City's financial future. This model has been developed and is in use for the 
2017 budget preparation. 

Major Initiatives for the Year 
As noted above. the City of Garden City continued the Citizen-based Capital Improvement Planning 
process for 2015. This is the tenth year using this process that precedes the annual budget season with 
a blend of citizen input tools, commission goal setting, multi-year financial forecasting and multi-year debt 
management analysis. Within this framework, the City Commission authorized capital investment of $9.9 
million. Major capital improvement projects in 2015 included a $1,200,000 addition to the Utility Service 
Center, putting the Water and Electric Departments under the same roof; and a $1,700,000 addition to 
the Central Fire Station, which will be constructed in 2016. The City completed our fourth neighborhood 
street reconstruction projects using $268,500 from the federal fund exchange program through the 
Kansas Department of Transportation. Other projects included $238,000 in watermain replacements in a 
neighborhood that was experiencing water pressure and quality issues. 2015 also saw the continuation 
of over $1,000,000 in privately funded infrastructure in three new residential areas. 

Increased citizen involvement in City government has been a long term goal of the Governing Body. 
2015 saw the eighth session of the Citizen's Academy. an up-close and personal view of City government 
taught by City staff. In months with five Tuesdays, the City Commission holds Town Hall meetings, with 
no set agenda, other than to hear comments from the citizens — these meetings take place as virtual 
meetings from the City Administrative Center via the internet, cable TV, and our social media venues. 

Quality of life issues remain a focus of City government. The City completed $46,000 in sidewalk. projects 
in 2015, equally split between cost sharing program for repair and replacement of damaged sndewalks 
and new sidewalks that filled in gaps in existing neighborhoods. 

2014 saw a major change in the City utility services, with a new power supply ‘contract with the Kansas 
Municipal Energy Association that began January 1, 2014. This stabilized the City's electric. rates and W.|” 
result in a small decrease in the customer charge to all of our customers In 2016. This partnership 
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included construction of the Jameson Energy Center. a $42 million generating facility; as a member of the 
Southwest Power Pool. our excess generation capacity is sold on the open market — this brought $83,237 
in revenue to the Electric Utility in 2015. 

Other 2015 initiatives were geared towards enhancing our standing as the regional center of southwest 
Kansas. Schulman Crossing, our largest retail center at Schulman Avenue and US-50/83/400 continues 
to expand. Several small shops and two restaurants; and a small retailer, Rue 21, were added to the 
inline stqres in 2015. 

. 

A second retail area. also at Schulman Avenue and US-50/83/400, saw 
construction on a 94 unit Ascend Hotel, scheduled for a 2016 opening, and a 25,000 square foot indoor 
water park to open in 2016. 

Improvements at Garden City Regional Airport saw the completion of a new $1,455,000 taxiway 
connection on our crosswind runway, resulting in safer operations for airport users. American Eagle 
provides two non-stop flights per day to Dallas/Fort Worth International Airport and saw total 
enplanements of 26,392 passengers. This level of enplanements allows the City to maintain our primary 
airport status and receive an annual entitlement of $1,000,000 for construction projects from the Federal 
Aviation Administration. 

2015 saw the start of possibly the largest single economic development project in City history. 
Meadowlark Dairy Nutrition, LLC, a subsidiary of the Dairy Farmers of America cooperative, broke ground 
on a $238,000,000 milk drying facility that will process 84 tank loads of milk daily, from dairies in 

Southwest Kansas. The plant will begin operation in the fall of 2017. The milk powder will be marketed 
globally. 

The City Commission approved the purchase of the former Con Agra (JBS/Swift) Beef Processing facility. 
The property has associated water rights which help toward reaching long-term water quantity goals for 
the City. The surface was identified as a potential Phase II of a proposed rail transload facility by private 
interests and the Finney County Economic Development Corporation (FCEDC). FCEDC staff began 
working with City and County officials on developing this concept. Ultimately, the proposed facility was 
selected by the Kansas Department of Transportation as one of two projects out of 111 applications to 
receive financial assistance from the State of Kansas for rail improvements that would encourage truck- 
to-rail/raiI—to-truck economic development. The project is on track for rail improvements in 2016 and 
further development of the property in 2016 and 2017. 

Internally, the City organization was redesigned to group together like departments and functions in 

operational teams. Each team is led by a senior level management team member. The two most 
significant changes from recent past practice was the unification of the planning, design review and 
construction inspection processes for development projects, and redesigning the personnel within the City 
Manager's Office by filling the Assistant City Manager position which had been vacant since 2008 and 
adding a non-supervisory Assistant to the City Manager. Both of these positions were filled through 
realignment of duties with existing management team members. 

Awards 
The Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) of the United States and Canada awarded a 
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City for its comprehensive annual 
financial report for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2014. This was the twentieth year that the City 
has achieved this prestigious award since the first award was granted for the CAFR for the year ended 
December 31, 1994. In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement. a government must publish an 
easily readable and efficiently organized CAFR. This report must satisfy both accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States and applicable legal requirements. 

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe our current CAFR 
continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program’s requirements. and we are submitting it to the 
GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate. 
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INDEPENDENT AUD|TORS' REPORT 

The Honorable Mayor, 
City Commissioners and City Manager 

Garden City, Kansas 67846 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activitieé. the 
business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major 
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Garden City, Kansas, as 
of and for the year ended December 31, 2015, and the related notes to the financial 
statements, which collectively comprise the City of Garden City's basic financial statements 
as listed In the table of contents. 

Managemen!'§ Resgnsibi/igg {gr the Financial Statements 
The City of Garden City's management is responsible for the preparation and fair 
presentation of these financial statements in accordance with accounting princxples 
generally accepted in the United States of America; tms includes the design. 
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due 
to fraud or error 

Aud/'!or's Resgonsibi/igy 
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. 
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America; the standards applicabie to financial audits contained in 
Govemmen! Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; 
and the standards contained in the Kansas Municipal Audi! and Accounting Guide, issued 
by the State of Kansas. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material 
misstatement. The financial statements of the Garden City Recreatron Commission were 
not audited in accordance with Government Auditing Standards. We did not audit the 
financial statements of the Garden City Housing Authority, which represents 653% and 
17.9%, respectively, of the assets and revenues of the component units of the City of 
Garden City, Kansas. Those financial statements were audited by other auditors whose 
report thereon has been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the 
amounts mcluded for the Garden City HOUSIHQ Authority. xs based solely on the repon of the 
other auditors. 

An audit Involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures In the funancnal statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors 
judgment, including the assessment of the nsks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers Internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate In the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
entity's internal control Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also oncludes 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements
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The Honorable Mayor, 
City Commissioners and City Manager 

Page 2 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our audit opinions. 

Oginions 
In our opinion. the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material 
respects. the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities. the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the 
aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Garden City, as of December 31, 2015. 
and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof 
and the respective budgetary comparison for the general fund for the year then ended in 

conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
management's discussion and analysis, the schedules of net pension liability and 
contributions attributable to the City, and the schedule of funding progress — other 
postemployment benefits be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such 
information. although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of 
financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational. 
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required 
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods 
of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with 
management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other 
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not 
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited 
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any 
assurance. 

Other Information 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements 
that collectively comprise the City of Garden City's basic financial statements. The 
combining and individual fund statements and schedules. the supplementary information as 
listed in the table of contents, and the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards, as 
required by the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 
200. Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for 
Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). are presented for purposes of additional analysis and 
are not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the 
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The 
Information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic 
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling 
such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare 
the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other 
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America. In our opinion, the combining and individual fund statements and 
schedules, the supplementary information as listed in the table of contents, and the 
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards, are fairly stated in all material respects in 

relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.



The Honorable Mayor, 
City Commissioners and City Manager 

Page 3 

The introductory and statistical sections are presented for purposes of additional analysis 
and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information has not 
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial 
statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on it. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have issued our report dated May 
31, 2016, on our consideration of the City of Garden City's internal control over financial 
reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts and grant agreements, and other matters. The purpose of that report is to 
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance 
and the results of that testing. and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over 
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering in the City of Garden City's 
internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

i - ,54,,7M<L;z,..«. 
LEWIS, H6OPER & DICK, LLC 
May 31, 2016
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
As management of the City of Garden City. Kansas, we offer readers of the City of Garden City's financial 
statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activity of the City of Garden City for the 
fiscal year ended December 31, 2015. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here 
in conjunction with additional information that we have furnished in our letter of transmittal, which can be 
found on pages v through ix of this report. 

Financial Highlights 
o The assets of the City of Garden City exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent fiscal year 

by $102,320,396 (net position). Of this amount. $37,997,625 (unrestricted net position) may be used 
to meet the City's ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. 

- The City's total net position increased by $9,954,020. This increase was attributable to various 
operating and capital grants including matching intergovernmental revenues received for the TIGER 
Grant project. 

o As of the close of the current fiscal year, the City of Garden City‘s governmental funds reported 
combined ending fund balances of $18,150,936. an increase of $11,804,300 in comparison with the 
prior year. This increase was attributable to the retirement of $9,340,000 of temporary notes payable 
for capital projects and matching intergovernmental revenues received for the TIGER Grant project. 

- At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance for the general fund was $7,190,142, or 
35.1% of total general fund expenditures. 

- The City of Garden City's total long-term debt increased by $10,392,693 (10.7%) during the current 
fiscal year. The key factor in this increase was the issuance of $9,940,000 of general obligation 
bonds for internal improvements in the governmental funds, the issuance of $4,488,923 of capital 
leases in the governmental and utility funds. and the $14,516,474 net pension liability recorded with 
the implementation of Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 68, 
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions and GASB Statement No. 71. Pension Transition for 
Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date. 

Overview of the Financial Statements 
This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City of Garden City‘s basic 
financial statements. The City of Garden City‘s basic financial statements are comprised of three 
components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements. and 3) the notes to 
the financial statements. This report also contains supplementary information intended to furnish 
additional detail to suppon the basic financial statements themselves. 

Government-wide Financial Statements 
The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the 
City of Garden City's finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business. 

The Statement of Net Position presents information on all of the City's assets, liabilities. and deferred 
inflows/outflows of resources, with the difference reported as net position. Over time, increases or 

decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether financial position of the City of 
Garden City is improving or deteriorating. 

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the City's net position changed during the 
most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving 
rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses 
are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods 
(e.g._ uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave). 

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City of Garden City that are 
principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other 
functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and 
charges (business—type activities). The governmental activities of the City include general government.
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public; safety. public works, parks and recreation. The business-type activities of the City include the 
electric utnllty, water and sewer utility, airport. solid waste utility, golf course operation and drainage utility. 

The government-wide financial statements include not only the City of Garden City itself (known as the 
primary government), but also a legally separate recreation commission and a legally separate housing 
authority for which the City is financially accountable. Financial information for these component units is 
reported separately from the financial information presented for the primary government itself. See Note 
1, item B. in the notes to the financial statements for more details regarding the relationship between 
these entities and the City. 

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 19 through 21 of this report. 

Fund Financial Statements 
A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been 
segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City of Garden City, like other state and local 
governments. uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal 
requirements. All of the funds of the City of Garden City can be divided into three categories: 
governmental funds, proprietary funds and fiduciary funds. 

Governmental Funds 
Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental 
activities in the government-wide financial statements. However. unlike the government-wide financial 
statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable 
resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such 
information may be useful in evaluating a government's near-term financing requirements. 

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial 
statements. it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar 
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing 
so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the City's near-term financing decisions. Both 
the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures 
and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental 
funds and governmental activities. 

The City of Garden City maintains twenty-five individual governmental funds. Information is presented 
separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues. 
expenditures and changes in fund balances for the general fund. the debt service fund, the 2013 
Schulman Crossing 2 Temporary Note Projects fund and the TIGER Grant Project fund, which are 
considered to be major funds. Data from the other twenty-one governmental funds are combined into a 
single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of these nonmajor governmental funds is 
provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report. 

The City of Garden City adopts an annual appropriated budget for its general fund. A budgetary 
comparison statement has been provided for the general fund to demonstrate compliance with this 

budget. 

The basic governmental funds financial statements can be found on pages 22 through 25 of this report. 

Progrietagg Funds
. 

The City of Garden City maintains two different types of proprietary funds: enterprise funds and Internal 
service funds. Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type 
activities in the government-wide financial statements. The City uses enterprise funds to account for its 
electric utility fund. water and sewer utility fund, airport fund, solid waste utility fund, recreation fund and 
drainage utility fund. Internal service funds are an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate 
costs internally among the City’s various functions. The City uses internal service funds to account for its 
self-insurance activities: the health insurance fund and the workers compensation fund. Because both of 
these services predominantly benefit governmental rather than business-type functions, they have been 
included within governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.
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Proprietary funds provide the same type of information at the government-wide financial statements, only 
in more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate information for the electric 
utility fund, water and sewer utility fund, and airport fund, all of which are considered to be major funds of 
the City of Garden City. Conversely, the other three enterprise funds are combined into a single. 
aggregated presentation, as are the two internal service funds. Individual fund data for each of these 
nonmajor enterprise funds and internal service funds is provided in the form of combining statements 
elsewhere in this report. 

The basic proprietary funds financial statements can be found on pages 27 through 29 of this report. 

F/duciagg Funds 
Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the City of 
Garden City. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements because the 
resources of those funds are not available to support the City's own programs. The accounting used for 
fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprietary funds. 

The City of Garden City maintains one type of fiduciary funds. The agency fund reports resources held 
by the City in a custodial capacity for individuals, private organizations and other governments. 

The basic fiduciary funds financial statements can be found on page 30 of this report. 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
The notes provide additional information that is necessary to acquire a full understanding of the data 
provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements 
can be found on pages 31 through 71 of this report. 

Other Information 
In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes. this report also presents required 
supplementary information concerning the City of Garden City's proportionate share of the net pension 
liability and contributions for the Kansas Public Employees Retirement System (KPERS), and its progress 
in funding its obligation to provide other postemployment benefits (OPEB) to its employees. Required 
supplementary information can be found on pages 73 through 76 of this report. 

The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with nonmajor governmental funds, nonmajor 
enterprise funds and internal service funds are presented immediately following the required 
supplementary information on KPERS and OPEB. Combining and individual fund statements and 
schedules can be found on pages 78 through 127 of this report. 

Government-wide Financial Analysis 
As noted earlier, net position over time may serve as a useful indicator of a government's financial 
position. In the case of the City of Garden City, assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded 
liabilities and deferred inflows of resources by $102,320,396 at the close of the most recent fiscal year. 

The balance of this page intentionally left blank.



City of Garden City's Net Position 
December 31, 2015 and 2014 

2015 2014 
Governmental Busnness-Type Governmental Busnness-Type 

Actnvmes Actnvmes Total Acuvmes Acuvmes Total 
Current and other assets 3 32,946,733 $ 25,557,039 $ 58.501772 S 25,395,430 $ 21 ,489_955 8 46,885,385 
Capnal assets 46,083,015 120236.680 166319.695 44,969,158 120059.282 165028.440 

Total assets 3 79,029,748 $ 145,793,719 $ 224,823,467 $ 70,364,588 3 141,549,237 3 211,913,825 

Total deferred outflows of 
resources $ 1,237,899 $ - $ 1,237,899 $ - S - 5 

Long-term Inabnlmes 8 44,674,832 $ 55.089899 $ 99.764,731 $ 21,589,458 5 55,778,123 S 77,367,581 
Other liabilities 8.980.900 6,577,364 15,558,264 13,155,397 6,336,339 19,491.736 

Total Inabulmes 5 53,655,732 $ 61,667,263 $ 115,322,995 $ 34,744,855 3 62,114,462 5 96,859,317 

Total deferred nflows of 
resources $ 7717311 $ 700,064 5 8,417,975 $ 6,880,115 5 802402 3 7,682,517 

Net posmon 
Net Investment 1n 

capnal assets $ 1,728,681 S 61.316527 $ 63,045,208 $ 23.618128 $ 60,933,909 S 84,552.03? 
Restricted for 

Debt servnce 1.277.563 - 1,277,563 1,092,119 - 1_092,119 
Unrestncted 15,887,760 22,109,865 37.991625 4,029,371 17_698,464 21,727,835 

Total net posmon 3 18,894,004 5 83,426,392 $ 102,320,396 3 28.739518 $ 78,632,373 $ 107,371,991 

By far the largest portion of the City of Garden City's net position (61.6%) reflects its investment in capital 
assets (e.g., land. property, plant and equipment); less any related debt used to acquire those assets that 
is still outstanding. The City uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these 
assets are not available for future spending. Although the City's investment in its capital assets is 

reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be 
provided from other resources. since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these 
Iiabihties. 

An additional portion of the City of Garden City's net position (1.2%) represents resources that are subject 
to external restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining balance of unrestricted net position 
$37,997,625 may be used to meet the City’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. 

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Garden City is able to report positive balances in all 

categories of net position, both for the government as a whole, as well as for its separate governmental 
and business-type activities. The same situation held true for the prior fiscal year. 

Net Position 
December 31, 2015 and 2014 

Net Invested In cam, assets 1 

Restncted I : 
: 

' 2014 

; 
; 

i 

g ; 

2015 

Unrestricted ' 

; __ . ._ . 1 __ . a_. . __ ___ _+___ .____._._....J 

$- $25.000.CX)0 $50.000.(D0 $75.000.(D0 $100.000.000 

The City's net position jncreased by $9,954,020 during the current fiscal year. This increase was 
attributable to various operating and capital grants including matching Intergovernmental revenues 
received for the TIGER Grant project.



There was an increase of $4,411,401 in unrestricted net position reported in connection with the City of 
Garden City's business-type activities. This increase is a result of increases in electric utility and water 
and sewer utility fees. 

Governmental Activities 
During the current fiscal year, net position for governmental activities decreased $9,845,614 from the 
prior fiscal year for an ending balance of $18,894,004. The decrease is mainly attributable to the change 
in accounting principle restatement of $15,005,615 for the net pension Iiabihty resulting from the 
Implementation of GASB 68 and GASB 71, offset by the increase attributable to the retirement of 
$9,340,000 of temporary notes payable for capital projects and matching intergovernmental revenues 
received for the TIGER Grant project. Other key elements of this decrease are as follows: 

Property taxes of the governmental activities increased $137,797 (2.19%) during the year. This 
increase is primarily due to the increase in assessed valuation compared to 2014. 
Sales tax collections increased $281,059 during the year, a 2.59% increase from 2014 sales tax 
collections due largely to the opening of new businesses within the City. The City's total sales tax 
collections were $11,134,158. 
General government expenses decreased $1,197,506 during the year. This decrease is largely due 
to a change in the calculation of the reimbursement rate from the utility departments in 2015. 
Public safety expenses increased $538,261 during the year. This increase is largely due to an 
increase in personnel costs. 
Public works expenses decreased $349,717 during the year. This decrease is due to a decrease in 
the size of the temporary note projects in 2015 when compared to 2014. 
Interest on long-term debt increased $330,324 during the year. This increase is due to the increase 
in outstanding debt and the increase in interest rates on the new debt issues. 

City of Garden City’s Changes in Net Position 
2015 2014 

Governmental Busnness-Type Govemmenlal Busnness-Type 
Actuvmes Acuvmes Total Actwmes Acnvmes Total 

Revenues 
Program revenues 
Charges tor servuces $ 2.284593 S 43,887,307 $ 46,172,000 S 2_444,115 S 43.421_746 S 45,865,861 
Operanng grants and 

contnbutnons 8297.681 380,237 8,677,918 2,124,480 614,317 2.738.797 
Capntal grants and 

conlnbuuons 1.676.338 1.013.380 2,689,718 960,151 960,151 
General revenues 
Property taxes 6_442_918 892.760 7,335,678 6,305,121 709,284 $014,405 
Sales taxes 11,134,158 . 11.134158 10,853,099 - 10,853,099 
Other taxes 1.616.094 - 1,616,094 1.650.621 - 1.650.621 

Other 488,397 614589 1,102,986 758,548 262,373 1.020.921 

Totai revenues 31 940.279 46.788273 78,728 552 25,096,135 45,007_720 70 103,855 

Expenses 
General government 3,075,916 3,075,916 4,273,422 4,273,422 
PUDIIC safely 12,369,223 - 12,369,223 11,830,962 - 11.830962 
Pubnc works 8,252,443 38,932,517 47,184,960 8,602,160 37.090584 45.692744 
Parks and recreatuon 4,162_76O 1,038,937 5,201,717 4311.743 1.046449 5.358.192 
Interest on long-term debt 942,716 ‘ 942,716 612.392 ~ 612.392 

Total expenses 28,803,078 31971 .454 68,774,532 29.630579 38,137,033 67,767_712 

Increase (decrease) nn net assets 
before transfers 3.137.201 6,816,819 9,954,020 (4.534,544) 6,870,687 2,336,143 

Transfers 2,022l800 (2 022,800) - 2,412,050 (2,412,050) - 

Change nn net posmon 5.160.001 4,794,019 9,954,020 (2.122,494) 4_-158,637 2,336,143 
Net DOSIIIOV1, begmmng of year_ 

as restated (or January 1, 2015 13.734003 78.632573 92,366,376 3018611 12 74,173,736 105,035,848 

Net posmon, end 01 year 8 18,894,004 3 83.426392 5 102,320,396 5 28.739618 3 78.632373 5 107,371,991 

Note‘ The January 1, 2015, amounts for the government-wnde governmental-type activities have been restated to reflect a 
$15.005.615 adjustment to net position as a result of the change in accqunting pnnciplg for the implementation of Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 68. Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions and GASB Statement No. 
71, Pension Transition for Contnbut/ons Made Subsequent to the Measurement Dare.
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The Cfollowing chart compares expenses with program revenues for the various governmental activities of 
the ity. 

2015 Expenses and Program Revenues - Governmental Activities 
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For the most part, changes in expenses for general government and public safety closely paralleled 
inflation and changes in the demand for services. Expenses in public works and parks and recreation 
changed as projects changed during the current fiscal year. 

The following graph shows the composition of 2015 revenues by sources for the governmental activities. 

2015 Revenues by Sources - Governmental Activities 
(excluding transfers in) 
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Business-tme Activities 
For the City of Garden City's business-type activities. the results for the current fiscal year were positive in 
that overall net position increased to reach an ending balance of $83,426,392. The totai increase for 
business-type activities was $4,794,019. The key elements of this increase were the ability of the electric 
and water and sewer utility funds to operate at a profit by monitoring rates charged for services and 
expenses incurred, grants received in the airport fund and contributed capital in the form of capital assets 
in the recreation area. 

The following chart compares expenses with program revenues for the various business-type activities of 
the City. 

2015 Expenses and Program Revenues - Business-type Activities 
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The following graph shows the composition of 2015 revenues by sources for the business-type activities. 

2015 Revenues by Sources - Business-type Activities 
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Financial Analysis of the Government’s Funds 
As noted earlier. the City of Garden City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance 
with finance-related legal requirements. 

Governmental Funds 
The focus of the City of Garden City's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, 
outflows and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City's 
financing requirements. In particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a 
government's net resources available for discretionary use as they represent the portion of fund balance 
which has not yet been limited to use for a particular purpose by either an external party, the City of 
Garden City itself, or a group or individual that has been delegated authority to assign resources for use 
for particular purposes by the City's Commission. 

At December 31. 2015, the City of Garden City's governmental funds reported combined ending fund 
balances of $18,150,936, an increase of $11,804,300 in comparison with the prior year. Of this total 
amount, $7,183,409 constitutes unassigned fund balance, which is available for spending at the City's 
discretion. The remainder of the fund balance is either nonspendable, restricted, commntted, or assigned 
to indicate that it is 1) not in spendable form ($-0-), 2) legally required to be maintained intact ($-O-). 3) 
restricted for particular purposes ($7,848,133), 4) committed for particular purposes ($1,864,596), or 5) 
assigned for particular purposes ($1,254,798). 

The general fund is the chief operating fund of the City of Garden City. At the end of the current fiscal 
year, unassigned fund balance of the general fund was $7,190,142, which is 100% of the total fund 
balance. Total fund balance increased $12,983 to $7,190,142. As a measure of the general fund's 
liquidity. it may be useful to compare the unassigned fund balance (total fund balance) to total general 
fund expenditures. The unassigned fund balance represents approximately 35.1% of total general fund 
expenditures. 

The fund balance of the City of Garden City's general fund increased by $12,983 during the current fiscal 
year. Key factors in this increase are as follows: 

Taxes decreased $70,982. 
Licenses and permits increased $179,574. 
Miscellaneous decreased $202,498. 
Police and municipal court decreased $101,987. 
Engineering decreased $275,000. 
Expenditures for general government decreased $497,284. 
Expenditures for public safety increased $1,652,308. 
Transfers out decreased $665,321. 
lssuances of capital leases increased $1,148,074. 

Other Governmental Funds - Components of Fund Balance 
December 31, 2015 and 2014 
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The debt service fund, a major governmental fund. had an increase in fund balance during the current 
year of $185,444 to bring the year end fund balance to $1,277,563. The increase essentially results from 
an Increase In taxes under the TIF projects and special assessments during the current year. 

The 2013 Schulman Crossing 2 Temporary Note Projects capital projects fund, a major governmental 
fund, had an $8,397,020 increase in fund balance during the current fiscal year which put the overall fund 
balance in a positive position of $352,435. The fund reports this amount as the committed balance for 
capital improvement projects that began during the 2013 fiscal year. 

The large increase in this capital projects‘ fund balance was caused mainly by the Issuance of general 
obligation bonds to cover spending of resources obtained through the use of short-term debt. In the case 
of these capital projects funds, temporary notes (bond anticipation notes) were issued to finance 
expenditures of the Schulman Crossing area capital projects. When issued, short-term temporary notes 
are reported as a liability on the balance sheet, with no effect on fund balance (i.e._ proceeds = liability for 
debt). However. as the proceeds are spent, the related expenditures cause a decrease in fund balance. 
An overall deficit results when the short-term debt is outstanding but the proceeds from its issuance have 
been spent (i.e.. there are no assets available to net against the fund liabilities for the temporary notes). 
The issuance of the bonds in 2015 eliminated both the unassigned and the overall fund balance deficit in 
the 2013 Schulman Crossing 2 Temporary Note Projects capital projects fund 

The TIGER Grant Project capital projects fund, the remaining major governmental fund, had a $2,427,730 
increase in fund balance during the current fiscal year which put the overall fund balance in a positive 
position of $2,427,730. The fund reports this amount as restricted balance for economic development 
activities that began during the 2015 fiscal year. The large increase in this capital projects’ fund balance 
was due to the matching intergovernmental revenues received for the project. 

Progrietagy Funds 
The City of Garden City's proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the 
government-wide financial statements, but in more detail. 

Unrestricted net position of the electric utility at the end of the year amounted to $14,247,568, and that for 
the water and sewer utility amounted to $4,733,342. In addition, the airport fund's unrestricted net 
position at the end of the year amounted to $801,616; the other enterprise funds’ unrestricted net position 
at the end of the year totaled $2,327,339. The total growth in net position for all of the City's enterprise 
funds was $4,794,019. This total includes a growth in net position of the electric utility of $1,760,359 and 
a growth in net position of the water and sewer utility of $1,295,844. In addition, the airport experienced a 
growth in net position of $1,174,758. Other factors concerning the finances of these funds have already 
been addressed in the discussion of the City of Garden City’s business-type activities. 

General Fund Budgetary Highlights 
The legally adopted budget for the general fund was not amended by the City Commission during 2015. 
However, departments within the City are allowed to transfer budget authority between line items and 
between cost centers within a department. In addition. budget authority may be transferred out of cost 
centers to reflect insurance savings. budget cuts, etc. As a result of these budget transfers, the original 
budget and the final budgets may not be the same in some cost centers. 

The most significant differences between estimated revenues and actual revenues were as follows: 

Estimated Actual 
Revenue Source Revenues Revenues Difference 

Taxes $ 13,740,896 $ 14,783,191 $ 1,042,295 
Licenses and permits 299,550 511,698 212,148 
Police and municipal court 1,360,750 1,210,586 (150,164)
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Taxes were more than estimated as a result of increased sales tax collections. Licenses and permits are 
budgeted conservatively due to the uncertain nature of the revenue. but actual receipts increased. Police 
and municipal court is budgeted conservatively based on the prior year revenues, but actual receipts for 
fines decreased. 

A review of actual expenditures compared to the appropriations in the final budget yields significant 
variances as follows: 

Estimated Actual 
Expenditures Category Expenditures Expenditures Difference 

General administration $ 1,193,506 $ 618,701 $ 574,805 
Capital improvements 3,464,795 673,494 2,791,301 
Police 7,773,750 8,875,701 (1,101.951 
Fire 3,219,500 3,041,011 178,489 
Parks and zoo 3,033,300 2,809,577 223,723 

General administration expenditures were $574,805 less than budgeted due to a change in the 
calculation of the reimbursement rate from the utility departments. Capital improvements were 
$2,791,301 less than budgeted due to the budget process which requires an overstatement of 
expenditures to allow for cash carryovers. Police expenditures were $1,101,951 more than budgeted due 
to capital lease purchases of equipment in the amount of $1,161,386. Fire expenditures were $178,489 
less than budgeted due to vacancies in authorized personnel. Parks and zoo expenditures were 
$223,723 less than budgeted due to vacancies in authorized personnel. 

Capital Asset and Debt Administration 
Capital Assets 
The City of Garden City's investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as 
of December 31, 2015, amounts to $166,319,695 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in 
capital assets includes land; buildings and system; improvements; machinery and equipment; park, zoo 
and recreational facilities; and streets. The total increase in capital assets for the current fiscal year was 
approximately 0.78% over the 2014 total (a 2.48% increase for governmental activities and a 0.15% 
increase for business-type activities). 

The following chart breaks down the City's capital assets balance into the various categories of assets. 

City of Garden City's Capital Assets 
(net of depreciation) 

2015 2014 
Governmental Busmess-Type Governmental Busuness-Type 

Actlvmes Actwmes Total Actnvmes Actlvmes Total 

Land $ 1.600.455 $ 855.001 5 2,455_456 $ 1.377.377 3 777,801 $ 2,155,178 

Water ngms . 756.925 755.925 — 756,925 756,925 
Construction In progress 1,045,625 2,653,921 3,699,546 - 567.189 567.189 
Buildings and Improvements 7,787_106 112,164,745 119,951,851 8,149,398 114,122_293 122,271,691 

Vehicles and equipment 3,666,201 3,806,088 7,472,289 3.745.155 3,835,074 7,580,229 
Infrastructure 31,983,628 - 31,983,628 31,697,228 - 31,697,228 

Total capital assets 5 46,083,015 $ 120,236,680 $ 166,319,695 $ 44.969.158 $ 120059.282 $ 155028.440
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Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year included the following: 

Kansas Avenue right-of-way $ 223,078 
Voice over internet phone system 123,871 
Electrical infrastructure 525,396 
Water infrastructure 566_740 
Sewer lift stations 226.619 
Airport lagoon 77,200 
Trash containers 159.616 
Frontload collection truck 235.287 
Sideload collection truck 140,097 

T0ta| $ 2,277,904 

Additional information on the City of Garden City's capital assets can be found in Note 4, item D on page 
50 through 52, and Note 4, item G on pages 60 through 61 of this report. 

Long-term Debt 
At the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Garden City had total bonded debt outstanding of 
$43,690,000. which was backed by the full faith and credit of the City. 

City of Garden City's Outstanding Debt 
General Obligation and Revenue Bonds/Loans 

2015 2014 
Governmental Busxness-Type Governmental Busmess-Type 

Actnvmes Actzvmes Total Acuvmes Acuvmes Total 

General obllgatnon bonds $ 29,179,543 $ 1-1.510.457 S 43.690000 5 21,030,453 S 16,754,547 $ 37,785,000 

Total $ 29,179,543 3 14,510,457 3 43,690,000 $ 21 ,030,453 3 16,754,547 5 37,785,000 

The City's total bonded debt increased by $5,905,000 (15.6%) during the current fiscal year. The key 
factor in this increase was issuance of $9,940,000 of general obligation bonds for internal improvements 
and payment of $4,035,000 in bond principal during 2015. 

The City of Garden City maintains a credit rating of Aa3 from Moody's Investors Service for its general 
obligation debt. 

State statutes limit the amount of general obligation debt the City may issue to 30% of its total assessed 
valuation. The current debt limitation for the City of Garden City is $65,737,680, which is significantly in 
excess of the City's outstanding general obligation debt. 

Additional information about the City's long-term debt can be found in Note 4, item I on pages 61 through 
63; and Note 4, item K on pages 64 through 67 of this report. 

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budget and Rates 
The following economic factors currently affect the City of Garden City and were considered in developing 
the 2016 fiscal year budget. 

o The unemployment rate for the City of Garden City is currently 3.2%, which is considerably less than 
the State's average unemployment rate of 4.0% and the national average rate of 5.0%. 

o The occupancy rate of the City's central business district is at 93%, which is an increase of 1.5% from 
one year ago. 

0 Inflationary trends in the region compare favorably to national indices.

15



o The City's utility rates for all utilities have stabilized as to customer rates with the exception of Solid 
Waste. The City Commission approved small annual increases starting in 2014. 

During the current fiscal year, the unassigned fund balance in the general fund decreased $23,500, to 
$4,965,608. The City has appropriated $4,411,750 of this amount for spending in the 2016 fiscal year 
budget. It is intended that this use of available fund balance will avoid the need to raise taxes or charges 
during the 2016 fiscal year. It also is intended to prevent the need for the transfer of additional resources 
to the general fund from the utility operations. 

Requests for Information 
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City of Garden City's finances for all 
those with an interest in the City's finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this 
report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the Director of Finance. 301 
North 8"‘, PO Box 998. Garden City, KS 67846.
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Assets 

Cash 
Investments 
Reslncled assets 

Cash 
Investments 

Recenvables (net 01 allowances for uncollecubles) 
Taxes 
Accounts and Interest 
Other 

Internal balances 
Prepaid expenses 
Inventory 
Reslnmed assets 

Cash 
Capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation) 

Land 
Water nghls 
Conslructuon nn progress 
Property. plant and equnpmem 

Total assets 

Qeferreg Qutfloys 90 Re§ogrces 

Deferred outflows of resources related to pensnons 

Luabulmes 

Accounts payable and accrued Inabnlmes 
Accrued Interest 
Current pomon of long-tenn Inabnlmes 
Payable from reslncled assets 

Customer deposnts and refunds 
Uneamed revenue 
Noncurrenl Iuabnluues 

Long-term llabllnes due In more than one year 

Total Inabulmes 

Deterreg Inflows 01 Rg§9;grc§§ 

Uneamed revenue - property taxes 
Deferred Inflows of resources related to pensions 

Total deterred Inflows 01 resources 

Neg Posnuon 

Net nnvestment In capnal assets 
Restncted for 

Debt service 
Unrestncled (deficn) 

Total net posmon (deficit) 

CITY OF GARDEN CITY, KANSAS 
Statement of Net Position 

December 31. 2015 

Pnmary Government Component Unnts 
Garden City Garden Ccty 

Govemmental Business-Type Recrealnon HOUSIDQ 
Acuvmes Acuvmes Tolal Commussnon Aulhony 

S 18.517339 S 15 989.695 5 34.507534 S 48.981 5 104.257 
1.675.458 300,000 1,975,458 _ 182.633 

1‘915,176 1,915,176 
100.000 100.000 

8.959.153 700.064 9.659217 - - 

446,472 2.041.423 2.487.895 5.000 3.527 
3.372.811 - 3,372,811 - - 

(25,000) 25.000 - - - 

- - - 10.828 18.670 
3,786,777 3.786.777 . 7.160 

698,904 698,904 24.179 

1.600455 855,001 2.455.456 5.600 426,144 
- 756.925 756.925 - - 

1.045.625 2.653.921 3.699.546 - - 

43 436,935 115 970 833 159 407 768 957,471 1,169,935 

79 029 748 145L793L719 224 823 467 1 027 880 1 936 505 

1 237 899 1 237 899 38,724 14,302 

5.288233 1556.302 6844.535 40.287 38.329 
167,512 276,458 443,970 13 273 - 

3 525,155 3.845.844 7.370.999 156.976 1.751 

503.560 503.560 24.179 
395.200 395.200 5.026 

44 674 832 55 089 899 99,764,731 1 131 085 122 623 

53 655 732 61 667 263 115,322 995 1 341 621 191,908 

6,704,053 700.064 7,4o4.117 - - 

1,013A858 1 013 858 57 192 22 975 

7717911 700064 BJ417 975 57_192 22 975 

1.728.681 61.316527 63.045208 252,776 1.596.079 

1.277.563 - 1.277.563 - - 

15 887,760 22 109 865 37,997,625 (584 985) 139 845 

S 18 894 004 S 83 426 392 S 102 320 396 $ §332 209} $ 1 735 924 

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Fgncgngns/Prggrams 
Pnmary government 

Govemmental acuvmes 
General govemmenl 
PUDIIC safety 
Public works 
Parks and recreation 
Interest on long-term deb! 

Total governmental actn/mes 

Busuness-type acuvutues 
Electnc 
Water and sewer 
Aurpon 
Sohd waste 
Golf course 
Draunage 

Total business-type actnvuues 

Total pnmavy government 

Component umls 
Garden Cny Recreauon Commussuon 
Garden City Housung Authonty 

Total component units 

CITY OF GARDEN CITY. KANSAS 
Statement of Actnvuties 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2015 

Program Revenues 

Operating Capxtal 
Charges for Grants and Grants and 

Expenses Servuces Contnbuhons Contnbuuons 

3 3075.916 3 633,155 5 823.301 5 700,840 
12.369223 1.627.768 120,327 950,498 
8.252.443 - 7.247.179 25.000 
4.162.780 23.770 106.874 - 

942 716 - - 

284303 078 2 284 693 8 297 681 1 676,338 

27.8-18.349 31387.88? - 

6.492.447 7.887.218 - — 

1.546.754 353.164 380,237 1,013,380 
2.861.770 3.576.582 - - 

1.038.937 472,698 
183 197 209,763 

39 971 454 43,887 307 380 237 1,013 380 

S 68,774,532 $ 46 172 000 $ 8 677,918 $ L689 718 

S 2.680.819 S 604.682 5 119.436 $ 79.463 
643 374 349 564 218 365 - 

$ 3 324 193 S 954,246 5 337 801 $ 79,463 

General revenues 
Taxes 

Property taxes levied for general purposes 
Propeny taxes Ievned for debt servuce 
Property taxes Ievned for conlnbuted capnal purposes 
Sales taxes 
Franchuse taxes 
Other taxes 

Investment eammgs 
Mcsceflaneous 
Gam on dnsposal of capital assets 

Transters 

Total general revenues and lranslers 

Change In net posmon 

Net posmon (deficn), beginning of year, as restated 

Ne! posmon (defucn). end of year 

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral pan of this statement.
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Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes In Net Assets 
Pflmafy Govemmenl Component Units 

Garden Cay Garden Cny 
Governmental Busuness-type Recreatnon Housing 

Acuvmes Acuvmes Total COMMISSION Aulhonly 

S (918.620) $ - 8 (918520) S - 5 - 

(9,670,630) . (9.670.630) 
(980,264) - (980,264) 

(4_032_136) . (4.032.136) 
(942 716) - (942 716) 

(16 544 366) - (16 544 366) - - 

3.539.533 3.539.533 - 

1.394,771 1.394.771 - 

200.027 ;00 027 
- 714,812 714.812 - - 

- (566.2239) (566.2359) ‘ - 

- 26 566 26 566 - 

543094470 5 309 470 

(16.544_366) 5.309470 (11234.896) - 

(1.877_238) - 

- (75 445) 

(1 1577.238) (75.-145) 

3.901.890 - 3.901.890 1 696.266 
2.541.028 - 2.541.028 - - 

- 892,760 892,760 - - 

11,134,158 . 11_134.158 - - 

739.022 . 739.022 - - 

877,072 - 877.072 - - 

207.756 1.969 209.725 45.131 945 
280.641 603.378 884,019 68.093 - 

- 9 242 9.242 - - 

2 022 800 (2 022 800) - 200 

21704367 (515451) 21 188 916 1,809;-190 1 145 

5_160_0O1 4,794,019 9.954.020 (67,748) (74,300) 

13 734,003 78 632 373 92 366 376 (264 461) I 810 224 

S 18,894L0O4 S 83,426,392 S 102 320 396 $ (332 209) S L7354924
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Assets 

Cash 
Investments 
Receivables (net of allowances 

tor uncollechbles) 
Taxes 
Special assess nun: 
Accounts and nnlerest 
Other 

Total 355815 

Lxabnlmes Dgfgrrga Inflows of 
Resources and Fung flglances 

Llabllltles 
Accounts payable and accrued hamlnues 
Advances from other funds 

Total Iuabnlmes 

Defened unflows 0! resources 
Uneamed revenue - property taxes 

F und balances (deficits) 
Reslncled 

Recreation and parks 
Capnal Improvement progects 
Alcoholusm prevention and 

education programs 
Law enforcement 
Economnc development acuvmes 
General oblngauon debt 

Commmed 
Capnal umprovement pro;ecls 

Assigned 
Capnal Improvement projects 
Legal dams and settlements 

Unassugned 

Total fund balances (deficnts) 

Total Ilabulmes. deferred lf‘IflOWS 
01 resources and fund 
balances (deficits) 

CITY OF GARDEN CITY, KANSAS 
Balance Sheet 

Governmental Funds 
December 31. 2015 

2013 Schulman 
Crossnng 2 TIGER Other Total 

Debt Temporary Note Grant Governmental Govemmenlal 
General SETVICG PTOJEQS Prolecl Funds Funds 

$ 5.554.186 S 1 277.563 S 353.179 8 3.300.000 $ 5.349.992 $ 15.834920 
— - - - 1.550.458 1,550,458 

5.450.053 1.404 255 - 1.038.347 7.892.655 
- 1.066.498 - - 1.066.498 

446.472 - _ . 446.472 
- 3295157 77 054 3 372,811 

$ 11450 711 $ 37481316 5 353,179 3 6595757 5 8015851 5 30163814 

5 858,946 5 29,104 8 744 S 4.168.027 S 227,004 5 5.283.825 
- - - - 25,000 25 000 

858 946 29 104 744 4 168 027 252 004 5,308 825 

3 401,623 2 441 649 860 781 6 704 053 

201.334 201.334 
2.912.692 2,912,692 

- 77,018 77,018 
~ 537,948 537,948 

- 2_-127,730 413 848 2841.578 
1,277_563 _ _ 1277.563 

2352.435 1.512.161 1,864,596 

1,169,578 1.169578 
. 85.220 85.220 

7 190,142 (6 733) 7 183 409 

7,190 142 1 277 563 352 435 2 427 730 6 903_L6 18 150,936 

S 11450_7‘l1 $ 3,748 316 8 353179 5 6595757 8 8015,851 5 30163814 

The accompanynng Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF GARDEN CITY, KANSAS 
Reconcilnatnon of the Balance Sheet to the 

Statement of Net Position - Governmental Funds 
December 31, 2015 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position differ from the fund balances of 
governmental funds on the preceding balance sheet as shown In the following reconciliatnon. 

Fund balances - total governmental funds $ 18,150,936 

Amounts reponed for governmental actnvuties in the statement of net assets 
are different because: 

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources 
and, therefore, are not reponed in the governmental funds. 46,083,015 

Deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions are applicable 
to future periods and, therefore. are not reported in the governmental funds. 224,041 

Long-term Iuabilities. including bonds payables. are not due and payable in 
the current period and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds. (46,842,476) 

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of 
certain activities. such as health insurance and workers compensation, 
to individual funds. The assets and Inabilities of the mternal service funds 
have not been included in the balance sheet. 1 278,488 

Net posmon of governmental activities $ 18 894.004 

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Revenues 
Taxes 
Specaal assess ..=.u taxes 
Inlergcxvemmenlai revenue 
Franchnses 
Lncenses and pen-nuts 
Use of money and property 
Muscellaneous 
Donahons 
Cemetery 
POIICS and mumcapal court 
Fnre 
IHSDCCHOU 
Plannmg and zonnng 
Parks and 100 

Total revenues 

E xpendulures 
Current 

General government 
PUDIIC safety 
Publnc works 
Parks and recreation 

Capital outlay and capnal pro;ecls 
Debt service 

Pnncupal 
Interest and fiscal charges 
Bond Issuance costs 

Total expenditures 

Revenues over (under) expendulures 

Other financmg sources (uses) 
Transfers In 
Transfers out 
Bonds Issued 
Issuance of capntal leases 

Total other financang sources (uses) 

Net change In fund balances 

Fund balance (def:cIl)‘ begmnung of year 

Fund balance. end of year 

CITY OF GARDEN CITY, KANSAS 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances 

Governmental Funds 
For the Year Ended December 31. 2015 

2013 Schulman 
CIOSSIHQ 2 TIGER Other Total 

Debt Temporary Note Grant Govemmenlal Governmental 
General Servnce Projects Pro ect Funds Funds 

3 14.838482 3 2,541,028 $ $ 3 1.074.638 $ 18.454148 
- 454 933 _ _ 454.933 

210 671 25 000 - 6,295,757 1,791 253 8.322.681 
739 022 - - - 739.022 
511.698 - - - 511.698 
84.432 7,373 32.775 83.020 207.600 
14 768 59,108 - 206.765 280.641 
49.897 . 1.146.508 1_196_405 
111.685 4.500 116.185 

1.210.586 - - 1,210,586 
196.739 - 196,739 
220443 - - 220.443 

5.272 5.272 
23 770 - 23,770 

18 217 465 3,087,442 32 775 6 295 757 4 306 684 31 940 123 

2.673.797 - 568.227 3.242.024 
123.269.1325 1 460 13270593 
1_728.878 626.060 2 354.938 
2.809.577 — . - 1,025,958 3 835 535 

- 250.741 915.299 4.168.027 2.669.221 8,003,288 

1,790,910 - _ 1.790.910 
760,347 88.076 3 848.426 

- 77 646 6 566 84,212 

20 481,385 2 801 998 1 081,021 4,168 027 4 897 495 33 429 926 

(2,263,9201 285 444 (1 048,24_6L 2427 730 (590 811) L1 489 803) 

2.522.881 . 300.000 1.007 281 3.830.162 
(1577281) (10o_ooo) ' ‘ (130,081) (1307362) 

- - 9.445.266 494.734 9,940,000 
1,331,303 - - 1 331 303 

2 276 903 (100 0001 9,445 266 300,000 1371 934 13,294 103 

12.983 185,444 8.397.020 2.427.730 781.123 11.804300 

7 177 159 1 092 119 (8 044 585) 46L12l,943 6 346 636 

S 7 190,142 3 1,277 563 S 352,435 $ 2,427 730 $ 6.903 066 S 18 604$ 

The accompanying Notes to the Fmancnal Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF GARDEN CITY, KANSAS 
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and 

Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds 
to the Statement of Actuvities 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2015 

Amounts reported for governmental activmes In the statement of revenues. expenditures and changes in fund 
balances of governmental funds differ from the amounts reported in the government-wide statement of activities 
as shown in the following reconciliation" 

Net change In fund balances - total governmental funds $ 11,804,300 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are 
different because: 

Governmental funds repod capital outlays as expenditures However, In the 
statement of actnvities the cost of these assets is allocated over their 
estimated useful Inves and repoded as depreciation expense. This is the 
amount by which depreciation exceeded capital outlay in the current period. 1,113,857 

Governmental funds report pension contnbutions as expendntures However, in the 
statement of activities the cost of pension benefits earned net of employee 
contnbutions us reported as pension expense. This is the amount of by whnch 
costs of benefits earned net of employee contributions exceeded pension 
contributnons from the measurement date to the current year end. 713,182 

Some expenses reported In the statement of actnvntues do not require the use 
of current financial resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures 
in governmental funds. (145,804) 

The issuance of long-term debt (e g . bonds. leases) provides current 
financial resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the 
pnncipal of long-term debt consumes the current financial resources of 
governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net position. 
Also, governmental funds report the effect of premiums. discounts, and 
simnlar items when debt is first Issued, whereas these amounts are deferred 
and amortized in the statements of activities. This amount is the net effect of 
these differences in the treatment of long-term debt and related items (8,998,868) 

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of 
cenam activities, such as health insurance and workers compensation. 
to individual funds. The net revenues (expenses) of the internal service 
funds are reported with governmental activities. 673 334 

Changes in net position of governmental activities $ 5 160 001 

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an Integral pan of this statement.
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CITY OF GARDEN CITY, KANSAS 
Statement of Revenues. Expendntures and Changes In 

Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 
General Fund 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2015 

Actual 
Amounts 

Budgeted Amounts Budgetary Vanance with 
Original Funal Basis Final Budget 

Revenues 
Administration. 

Taxes $ 13,740,896 $ 13,740,896 $ 14,783,191 $ 1,042.295 
Intergovernmental revenue 155,000 155,000 210.671 55.671 
Franchises 739.000 739,000 757.830 18.830 
Lncenses and permits 299,550 299.550 511.698 212,148 
Use of money and property 134,700 134,700 84,432 (50,268) 
Reimbursements 926,820 - - - 

Miscellaneous 3.100 3,100 14,768 11,668 
Total administration 15,999.066 15,072,246 16,362,590 1,290,344 

Cemetery 113,000 113,000 111,685 (1,315) 
Pohce and munncipal court 1,360,750 1,360,750 1,210,586 (150,164) 
Fire 200,000 200,000 196.739 (3,261) 
Inspection 235.000 235,000 220,443 (14,557) 
Planning and zoning - - 5.272 5272 
Parks and zoo 24,000 24,000 23I/O j§30) 

Total revenues 17,931,816 17.004,996 18,131i85 1J126,089 

Expenditures’ 
Current‘ 

General government: 
General administration 2,120,326 1_193,506 618,701 574,805 
Human resources 231 .500 231,500 214,535 16,965 
Cemetery 550,000 550,000 453.905 96.095 
Development services 371,250 371.250 413.162 (41,912) 
Capital Improvements 3,464,795 3,464,795 673.494 2.791.301 
Employee benefits 300.000 300.000 300.000 - 

Public safety: 
Police 7,773_75O 7.773.750 8,875,701 (1 ,101,951) 
Fnre 3,219,500 3,219,500 3,041,011 178,489 
Inspection 440,750 440,750 428.541 12.209 
Municipal court 915,450 915,450 873.983 41,467 

Highways and streets. 
Engineering 250,250 250,250 246,150 4,100 
Street 1,489_250 1,489,250 1.482.728 6,522 

Recreation: 
Parks and zoo 34033300 gossgo LSOSLW7 223,723 

Total expenditures 2c1L16O,121 23,233,301 20,431,488 g8o1,s13 

Revenues over (under) 
expenditures (6,228,305) (5,228.305) (2.300,403) 3,927,902 

Other financing sources (uses)' 
Transfers in 2,101,100 2,101,100 2.522881 421,781 
Transfers out - - (1577281) (1577281) 
Caputal lease proceeds - - L331gO3 1,331,303 

Net change in fund balances (4,127,205) (4,127,205) (23,500) 4.103.705 

Fund balance, beginning of year 4L127,2O5 44127205 44,989,108 86fi03 
Fund balance, end of year $ - $ - $ _4,9Efi@08 $ 4.95§§08 

The accompanying Notes to the Fnnancial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF GARDEN CITY. KANSAS 
Statement of Net Position 

Proprietary Funds 
December 31. 2015 

Governmental 
Business-Iype Acuvmes - Enlerpnse Funds Actnvmes 

Wale! Other Internal 
Eleclnc and Sewel Enlerpnse Servuce 
Ulllfly Unllty Anrpon Funds Totals Funds 

Assets 
Cunent assets 

Cash S 8,993,320 S 3,836,455 S 1.223.623 S 1.936.297 5 15,989,695 5 2,682,919 
Investments at fair value - . . 3oo_ooo 3oo_ooo 125000 
Advances to other funds 25_ooo . 25000 . 

Restncted assets 
Cash 1.903.560 - — H.616 1.915.176 
Investments 100.000 - . . 1oo_ooo 

Taxes receivable - . 7oo_os4 . 700954 
Accounts recewable 1.472.590 348.165 2.620 218.048 2,041,423 
Inventory ;434 800 351,977 . . 3 785777 

Total cunenl assets 15 929,270 4 536 597 1 926 307 2 465 961 24 858,135 2,807,919 

Noncunenl assets 
Reslncled assets 

Cash . 698 904 - - 698 904 

Total restncted assets - 598 904 . . 693 904 

Capital assets 
Land 103.041 536.260 77.200 138.500 855,001 
Water nghls - 756.925 - - 756.925 
Consuuchon In progress - 1.527943 1,125.978 - 2.653.921 
Production, storage and dustnbutuon 

equnpment 76.383309 49,245,340 - 347.612 125976.861 - 

Less accumulated deprecnauon (1-1.605.390) (22,943,-171) . (110,952) 07,659,813) - 

Golf course, club house and equipment - - 1.726.389 1.726.389 - 

Less accumulated deprecnahon - - - (1.118.846) (1,l18_846) - 

Vehncles and equnpmenl 2.280.838 1.137.565 1.125.165 N825818 8.369.386 - 

Less accumulaled depreciation (1 603.934) 0.043.450) (271049) (1,642,865) (4.563 298) - 

Conlauners - - - 4.279.291 4_279,291 
Less accumulated deprecuauon - - - (2.501_601) (2,501,601) 

Aurpon Improvement - - 30.734374 . 30.734874 
Less accumulated deprecuauon - - (9,272,410) - (9,272 410) 

Total capital assets @558 464 29,217 112 23 517 758 4 943 346 120 236,680 

Total noncunenl assets 624558 464 29 916,016 23 517 758 4 943 346 120,135,584 

Total assets 5 78 487,734 3 34 452 613 $ 25 444365 8 7 4094307 3 145,793 719 $ 2,807 919 

nabulmes 
Cunenl Inabnlmes 

Accounts payable and accrued Ilabulmes 5 968.909 5 434,934 5 29.427 5 123.032 S 1.556.302 $ 4.408 
Accrued Interest 209.233 67.225 - - 276,458 - 

Current pomon of capnal leases payable 1.419.275 . 7.604 1.426.879 - 

Current pomon at revenue bonds payable 730.900 1.688.065 - 2.418.965 - 

Payable from reslncled assets 
Customer deposns 503,560 - . - 503,560 

Total current Inabnlmes 3,831 877 2 190 224 29 427 130,636 6,182 164 4 408 

Noncurrenl Iuabnlmes 
Net OPEB obhgauon - ~ - - 1.525.023 
Capnal leases payable 42.697 629 - 7.986 42.705515 - 

Revenue bonds payable 4.539.258 7.845026 - - 12.384284 
Uneamed revenue - - 395;00 - 395 200 

Total noncurrenl Inabnlmes 47,236 887 7 84138 ZQSQDO L986 55 485 099 1 525 023 

Total habclmes 51 068,764 10 035 250 424 627 138 622 61 667 263 1 529 431 

Deferred Inflows gt Resgurces 
Uneameo revenue - property taxes - - 700,064 - 700 064 

Ne! Posmon 
Ne! mveslmenl II1 capital assets 13 171,402 19,684,021 23.517158 4.943346 61.316627 - 

Restncted for health msurance - ~ - - - 391.351 
Restncted lor workers compensaluon — ~ - - - 387137 
Unreslncled 14 247 568 4,733 342 sofivs 2 327,339 22_L()9,865 - 

Total net posmon 27 418 970 24 417 363 241319 374 7 270 685 83 426 392 1;78 488 

Total habulmes. deferred mnaws of 
resources and net posmon 5 £487,734 5 34 452%! S 25 444 065 S 7 403307 3 145 793 719 S L§07.919 

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Operatmg revenues 
Charges for servnces 
Reimbursements 
Rents and ulnlmes 
Mnscellaneous 
Membershnp and tees 
Concessnons 

Total operaung revenues 

Operalmg expenses 
Personnel servnces 
Contractual services 
Commodmes 
Deprecuanon 
Producnon expense 
Dustnbulnon expense 
Commerual and general expense 
Sundry expenses 

Total operating expenses 

Operahng Income (loss) 

Nonoperaung revenues (expenses) 
lnlergovemmental revenue 
Interest Income 
Rent and royames 
Sale of matenals 
Interest expense 
Gam (loss) on dusposal of assets 

Total nonoperatmg 
revenues (expenses) 

Income (loss) betore capnal 
contnbuuons and 
operaung transfers 

Capnal conmbunons 
Transters In 
Transfers out 

Change In net posmon 

Total net posuuon. beginmng of year 

Yolal net posmon, end 01 year 

CITY OF GARDEN CITY. KANSAS 
Statement of Revenues. Expenses and Changes in Net Position 

Proprietary Funds 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2015 

Governmental 
Business-type Acnvmes - Emerpnse Funds Acnvmes 

Wale! Other Imemal 
Electnc and Sewer Enlerpnse Servxce 
Utility Utuhty Aurpon Funds Totals Funds 

3 31_387,882 3 7,887,218 S - $ 3.786.345 $ 43.061.445 S - 

- - - - - 4,383,911 
- - 353.164 - 353.164 - 

12.849 9441 3,761 5.461 31.512 
- - - 394.096 394.096 

- - 78,602 78 602 

31 400 731 7,896,659 356,925 4 264 504 43 918,819 4&3 911 

- - 337.092 2.037.470 2,374,562 - 

- - 255,274 1.149.403 1.404.677 1710.733 
- - 448.991 495.077 944,068 < 

2.048.920 1,112,241 473.522 401954 4.036 637 
15_457.633 3.746.238 - - 19203.87‘! 
4.953.895 676.288 - - 5.630.183 
1.544.241 495,731 . - 2.039.972 
1,401,657 226 940 - - |,628J§7 

25,406 346 6,257 438 1 514,879 4 083 904 37,262 567 3,710 733 

5 994 385 1 639,221 (1 157 954) 180,600 46L656_252 673 178 

- 380.237 - 380 237 - 

253 _ 1.716 1,969 156 
- - 1.010 3.200 4.210 - 

184.030 333.726 . 49.900 567.656 
(2_442 003) (235,009) . . (2.677.012) 

- - (31_8§L 9342 (22 633) 

42 257 720) 98 717 349 372 SQSB (1,745 573) ‘I56 

3.736.665 1.737.938 (808.58?) 244 658 4.910.679 673,334 

- 1,906,140 - 1,906,140 
- 8.306 77.200 490.000 575.506 

(1,976 306) (450_40_0) - (1fl,§00L 42,598 306) 

1 760.359 1.295.844 1,174_758 563.058 4,794,019 673,334 

25 658 611 23121519 231441516 6,70l_§27 @632 373 605154 

5 27 418,970 5 24 417,363 S 241319 374 5 7 270 685 5 £426,392 5 1,278J@ 

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Cash flows from operahng acuvmes 
Receipts from customers 
Other recenpts 
Payments to suppluers 
Payments for personnel servuces 
Clanms pand 

Net cash provuded (used) 
by operaung acuvmes 

Cash flows from noncapnal financung acuvuhes 
Customer deposns 
SUDSIGV from grants 
Transters un 
Transfers out 

Net cash provnded (used) by 
noncapllal financing acllvmes 

Cash flows Irom capnal and related financmg 
achvmes 
Receupls trom sale of malenals 
Purchases oi capxlal assets 
Capnal conznbunons 
Proceeds from nssuance ot long-term deb! 
Payment 01 long-term debt 
Interest pan! on long-term debt 

Net cash provided (used) by capltal 
and related financing aclwmes 

Cash flows from unvestung acuvmes 
Interest Income 
Proceeds from sale of mveslmenls 
Purchase of mveslmenls 
Rents and royalnes 

Net cash provided (used) by 
Investing acllvlhes 

Net Increase (decrease) In cash 

Cash. begunnmg 0! year 

Cash. end of year 

Statement 01 net posmon classnfncatuon 
Cunent assets 
Reslncled assets 

Total cash, end of year 

Reconcuhaluon ot operalmg mcome (loss) to 
net cash provided (used) by operating 
activities 
Operating nncome (loss) 
Adjuslmenls Io TBCOHCIIE operalung 

mcome to net cash prcvnaed (used) 
by operating achvmes 
Uneamed revenue recognized 
Deprecxahon 
Change In assets and Inabulmes 

(Increase) decrease m 
receivables 

(Increase) decrease nn 
mvenlory 

Increase (decrease) In 
accounts payable 

Increase -n 
net OPEB obhgahons 

Net cash provided (used) by 
operalmg acllvmes 

CITY OF GARDEN CITY, KANSAS 
Statement of Cash Flows 

Proprietary Funds 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2015 

The accompanymg Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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Governmental 
Busnness-type Achvmes - Enlerpnse Funds Achvmes 

Water other Internal 
Eleclnc and Sewer Enlerpnse SBNICE 
Uflhfv Uhhry Alrpon Funds Totals Funds 

S 31.282390 S 7 842.328 $ 336.886 3 4.261.562 5 43,723,666 5 - 

12.849 9.441 3.761 5.461 31.512 4.383.911 
(21_633‘852) (3.193.023) (696115) (1.62-1.215) (27,147.205) - 

(2 978.945) (1.696.-150) (337,092) (2.037.-170) 0.049.957) — 

- - - - - (3,462,760) 

6 682 942 2 962,296 (692 560) 605 338 9 558 016 921 151 

36.087 - - 36.087 
- - 380237 — 380 237 
- 8.306 77.200 490.000 575 506 

(1 976 306) (450 400) - (171,600) (2 598 306) 

(1 940,219) (442 094) 457 437 3fi300 (1 606 476) 

184,030 333 726 - 49.900 567,656 
(688,557) (1 ,874.895) (1,085,174) (588,042) (4 236.668) 

- - 1.906.140 - 1906.140 
3,157,620 - - - 3,157,620 
(1.715.189) (1.616.651) (39562) (3 371,402) 
(2,448 969) (275 875) - (2 724,344) 

(1 511 065) (3 433 695) 820,966 (577 704) (4 701 498) 

253 1.716 1.969 156 
100.000 300.000 400.000 - 

(125,000) - (300000) (425000) 
- 1 010 3 200 4 210 

(24 747) 1010 4916 (18821) 156 

3.206 911 (913 493) 586 853 350.950 3 231.221 921.307 

7 689 969 5 448 852 636 770 1 596 963 15 372 554 1 761 612 

3 ‘I0 896 880 $ 4 535 359 S 1 223 623 3 1‘9fl913 S 18 603 775 $ 2 682 919 

$ 8 993.320 $ 3.836.455 $ 1.223.623 $ 1.936.297 S 15.989595 $ 2.682.919 
1 903 560 698,904 - 11 616 2,614,080 - 

$ 10 896 880 5 4535359 5 1 223,623 5 1 947,913 S 18 603 775 S 2 682 919 

S 5 994.385 $ 1.639.221 S (1,157,954) S 180.600 5 6656.252 S 673.178 

- - (18,600) - (18,600) 
2.048.920 1,112.2-:1 473522 401.954 4036.637 

(104 992) (44390) 2.322 2.519 (145,041) 

(798.818) 30.658 068.160) 

(456,553) 225.066 8.150 20.265 (203 072) (201) 

2-@474 

$ 8,682 942 S 2 962 296 S (692,56Q1 S 605 338 S 9 558 016 $ 921 151



CITY OF GARDEN CITY, KANSAS 
Statement of Net Posituon 

Fnducsary Funds 
December 31 

, 2015 

Agency 
Funds 

Assets 

Cash $ 288 500 

Total assets $ 288 500 

Liabilities 

Accounts payable $ 288 500 

Total liabilities $ 288,500 

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF GARDEN CITY, KANSAS 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

December 31, 2015 

Summary of Siqnificant Accountinq Policies 
The City of Garden City, Kansas (the City) was incorporated under the provisions of the State of 
Kansas. The City operates under a Commission-Manager form of government and provides the 
following services as authorized by its charter: public safety (police and fire), streets. sanitation, 
health and social services, culture-recreation, public improvements, planning and zoning, and 
general administrative services. Other services include utilities and airport operations. 

The financial statements of the City have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America as applied to government units. The 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for 
establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The more significant of the 
City's accounting policies are described below. 

A. Description of Government—wide Financial Statements 
The government-wide financial statements (ie, the statement of net position and the statement 
of activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the primary government and 
its component units. All fiduciary SCUVIUES are reported only in the fund financial statements. 
Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes, intergovernmental revenues, 
and other nonexchange transactions, are reported separately from business-type activities. 

which rely to a sigmficant extent on fees and charges to external customers for support. 
Likewise. the primary government is reported separately from certain legally separate 
component units for which the primary government is financially accountable. 

B. Financial Reporting Entity 
The City is a municipal corporation governed by an elected four-member commission and a 
mayor. The accompanying financial statements present the City (the primary government) and 
its component units, entities for which the City is considered to be financially accountable. Each 
discretely presented component unit is reported in a separate column in the government-wide 
financial statements to emphasize that it is legally separate from the City. 

The Garden City Recreation Commission operates the City's recreational programs. 
The Recreation Commission is a separate. legal municipality that prepares and 
publishes its own budget. The taxes budgeted by the Recreation Commission are 
appropriated by the City and are required to be distributed to the Recreation 
Commission. During the year. the City collected $978,467 in property taxes levied for 
the Recreation Commission and remitted those taxes to the Recreation Commission. In 

addition, the City provided the Recreation Commission $341,500 for employee benefits, 
$160,000 for operating the municipal pool, $47,962 for the State Theater project, and 
$216,299 for general operations. The Board of Directors is responsible for the 
management and fiscal accountability of the Recreation Commission. The Board is 

appointed by the City Commission, who also has the authority to remove appointed 
Board members. The Recreation Commission is presented as a governmental fund 
type. 

The Garden City Housing Authority operates the City's housing projects. It has its own 
Board of Directors, who operates independently from the City. The Board of Directors is 
responsible for the management and fiscal accountability of the Housing Authority. The 
Board is appointed by the City Commission. who also has the authority to remove 
appointed Board members. The Housing Authority is presented as an enterprise fund 
type. 

Each discretely presented component unit has a December 31st year-end. Separately igsued 
financial reports of the individual component units can be obtained from the City Clerk's office at 
the City Administrative Building or from their respective administrative offices.
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CITY OF GARDEN CITY, KANSAS 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

December 31, 2015 

Summary of Siqnificant Accountinq Policies (continued) 

B. 

C. 

Financial Regoning Entity (continued) 

Garden City Recreation Commission 
310 North 6th 
Garden City. KS 67846 

Garden City Housing Authority 
606 Pershing 
Garden City, KS 67846 

Basis of Presentation - Government-wide Financial Statements 
While separate government-wide and fund financial statements are presented, they are 
interrelated. The governmental activities column incorporates data from governmental funds 
and internal service funds, while business-type activities incorporate data from the government's 
enterprise funds. Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, 
proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government- 
wide financial statements. 

As discussed earner, the City has two discretely presented component units. While neither the 
Garden City Recreation Commission nor the Garden City Housing Authority are considered to 
be a major component unit. they are nevertheless shown in separate columns in the 
government-wide financial statements. 

As a general rule. the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide 
financial statements. Exceptions to this general rule are payments-in-lieu of taxes where the 
amounts are reasonably equivalent in value to the interfund services provided and other charges 
between the City's enterprise activities and various other functions of the City. Elimination of 
these charges would distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the various 
functions concerned. 

Basis of Presentation - Fund Financial Statements 
The fund financial statements provide information about the City's funds, Including its fiduciary 
funds. Separate statements for each fund category - governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary - 

are presented. The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major governmental and 
enterprise funds. each displayed in a separate column. All remaining governmental and 
enterprise funds are aggregated and reported as nonmajor funds. Major individual 

governmental and enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial 

statements. 

The City of Garden City reports the following major governmental funds: 

General Fund - the general fund is the City's primary operating fund. It accounts for 
all financial resources of the general government, except those accounted for in 

another fund. 

Debt Service Fund - the debt service fund is used to account for the accumulation of 
resources that are restricted, committed, or assigned for the payment of principal 
and interest on long-term obligations of governmental funds. 

2013 Schulman Crossing 2 Temporary Note Projects Fund - this is a capital project 
fund used to account for the acquisition and construction of the Schulman Crossing 
2 area improvements. 

TIGER Grant Project Fund - this is a capital project fund used to account for the 
Southwest Chief Route railroad improvement project.
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CITY OF GARDEN CITY, KANSAS 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

December 31, 2015 

1. Summary of Siqnificant Accountinq Policies (continued) 

D. Basis of Presentation - Fund Financial Statements (continued) 
The City reports the following nonmajor governmental funds: 

Special Revenue Funds - the special revenue funds account for revenue sources 
that are legally restricted to expenditures for specific purposes (not including major 
capital projects). 

Capital Project Funds - the capital project funds account for the acquisition and 
construction of major capital facilities other than those financed by proprietary funds. 

The City reports the following major enterprise funds: 

Electric Utility - this fund is used to account for the activities of the City's electric 
utility department while operating the City owned generating and distribution system. 

Water and Sewer Utility - this fund is used to account for the activities of the Cnty's 
operations of the City owned waterworks distribution system. sanitary sewer and 
wastewater treatment operations. Additional funds maintained within the water and 
sewer utility department include Water and Sewage Maintenance Reserve, and 
Wastewater Repair and Replacement. 

Airport - this fund is used to account for the operations of the Garden City Regional 
Airport. This department includes the Airport Improvement fund which is used to 
account for the federal grants and required City matching shares for the ongoing 
airport improvement projects. 

Additionally, the City reports the following nonmajor enterprise funds and other fund 
types: 

Nonmajor Enterprise Funds - nonmajor enterprise funds are used to account for 
those operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to private 
business or where the City has decided that the determination of revenues earned, 
costs incurred and/or net income is necessary for management accountability. 

Internal Service Funds - internal service funds account for health insurance and 
workers compensation benefits provided to other departments or agencies of the 
City, or to other governmental units, on a cost-reimbursement basis. 

Agency Fund - agency fund accounts are used to account for assets held by the 
City as an agent on behalf of others. Agency accounts are custodial in nature and 
do not present results of operation or have a measurement focus. The agency 
accounts used by the City include: 

- Payroll clearing account used to account for employee earnings and related 
benefits after distribution from the corresponding City departments. 

o Bail bonds account used to account for monies held as bail bonds by the police 
department. 

0 Sidewalk construction account used to account for monies received by the City 
for sidewalk construction projects. 

a Special investigations account used to account for monies received by the 
police department all of which are to be expended for drug control and special 
investigation type expenditures.
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CITY OF GARDEN CITY, KANSAS 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

December 31. 2015 

1. Summajmf Siqnificant Accountinq Policies (continued) 
D. Basis of Presentation - Fund Financial Statements (continued) 

- Section 125 account used to account for employee withholdings under the 
Section 125 plan. 

o Employee flower account used to account for monies received from employee 
vending machines and other fees which are to be expended for employee 
memorials and recognition type expenditures. 

During the course of operations the City has activity between funds for various purposes. Any 
residual balances outstanding at year-end are reported as due from/to other funds and 
advances to/from other funds. While these balances are reported in fund financial statements, 
certain eliminations are made in the preparation of the government-wide financial statements. 
Balances between the funds included in governmental activities (i.e., the governmental and 
internal service funds) are eliminated so that only the net amount is included as Internal 
balances in the governmental activities column. Similarly, balances between the funds included 
in business-type activities (ie., the enterprise funds) are eliminated so that only the net amount 
is included as Internal baiances in the business-type activities column. 

Further, certain activity occurs during the year involving transfers of resources between funds. 
In fund financial statements these amounts are reported at gross amounts as transfers in/out. 
While reported in fund financial statements, certain eliminations are made in the preparation of 
the government-wide financial statements. Transfers between the funds included in 

governmental activities are eliminated so that only the net amount is included as transfers In the 
governmental activities column. Similarly, balances between the funds included in business- 
type activities are eliminated so that only the net amount is included as transfers in the business- 
type activities column. 

E. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting 
The accounting and financial reporting treatment is determined by the applicable measurement 
focus and basis of accounting. Measurement focus indicates the type of resources being 
measured such as current financial resources or economic resources. The basis of accounting 
Indicates the timing of transactions or events for recognition in the financial statements. 

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources 
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned 
and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash 
flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants 
and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by 
the provider have been met. 

The governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources 
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as 
soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered available when they 
are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current 
period. For this purpose, the City considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 
60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a 
liability is incurred. as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as 
expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only 
when payment is due. General capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in 

governmental funds Issuance of |ong—term debt and acquisitions under capital leases are 
reported as other financing sources.
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CITY OF GARDEN CITY, KANSAS 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

December 31, 2015 

Summarv of Siqnificant Accountinq Policies (continued) 
E. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting (continued) 

Sales taxes, franchise taxes, licenses and interest associated with the current fiscal period are 
all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the 
current fiscal period. Property taxes and special assessments are not available as explained in 
Note 1, item H and result in unavailable revenue. All other revenue items are considered 
measurable and available only when cash is received by the City. 

The proprietary funds are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the 
accrual basis of accounting. The agency fund has no measurement focus but utilizes the 
accrual basis of accounting for reporting its assets and iiabilities. 

Budgetagy Information 
Kansas statutes require that an annual operating budget be legally adopted for the general fund, 
special revenue funds (unless specifically exempted by statute), debt service funds, enterprise 
funds, and internal service funds. Although directory rather than mandatory, the statutes provide 
for the following sequence and timetable in the adoption of the legal annual operating budget: 

1. Preparation of the budget for the succeeding calendar year on or before August 
1st. 

2. Publication in local newspaper of the proposed budget and notice of public 
hearing on the budget on or before August 5th. 

3. Public hearing on or before August 15th, but at least ten days after publication 
of notice of hearing. 

4. Adoption of the final budget on or before August 25th. 

The statutes allow for the governing body to increase the originally adopted budget for previously 
unbudgeted increases in revenue other than ad valorem property taxes. To do this. a notice of 
public hearing to amend the budget must be published in the local newspaper. At least ten days 
after publication the hearing may be held and the governing body may amend the budget at that 
time. 

Amendments to the original budget. including qualifying budget adjustments for bond issuances 
and refunding, and grant revenue, were approved by the governing body, resulting in additional 
budget authority as follows; 

Fund Increase 
Capital Improvements Fund $ 117,750 
Special Improvements Fund 53,100 
Special Recreation and Parks Fund 93,500 
Project Development Fund 440,344 
Recreation Area Fund 11,331 
Solid Waste Utility Fund 362,750 

The legal level of budgetary control is the fund level. The statutes permit transferring budgeted 
amounts between line items within an individual fund. However, such statutes prohibit 
expenditures in excess of the total amount of adopted budget of expenditures of individual 
funds. The governing body allows management to transfer budgeted amounts between line 
items within an individual fund without prior approval. Budget comparison statements are 
presented for each fund showing actual receipts and expenditures compared to legally budgeted 
receipts and expenditures. 

The Garden City Housing Authority is exempt from the Kansas budget laws.
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CITY OF GARDEN CITY, KANSAS 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

December 31, 2015 

Summary of Siqnificant Accountinq Policies (continued) 

F. Budgetagg Information (continued) 

Budqetarv Basis of Accountinq 
All legal annual operating budgets are prepared using the modified accrual basis of accounting, 
modified further by the encumbrance method of accounting. Revenues are recognized when 
measurable and available. Expenditures include disbursements, accounts payable and 
encumbrances. Encumbrances are commitments by the City for future payments and are 
supported by a document evidencing the commitment, such as a purchase order or contract. 
Encumbrances also represent commitments related to unperformed contracts for goods or 
services. Encumbrance accounting - under which purchase orders, contracts and other 
commitments for the expenditure of resources are recorded to reserve that portion of the 
applicable appropriation - is utilized in the governmental funds. Encumbrances outstanding at 
year-end are reported as reservations of fund balances and do not constitute expenditures or 
liabilities because commitments will be honored in the subsequent year. All unencumbered 
appropriations (legai budget expenditure authority) lapse at year-end. There were no 
outstanding encumbrances at December 31. 2015. 

A legal operating budget is not required for certain special revenue funds and capital projects 
funds. Spending in funds which are not subject to the legal annual operating budget 
requirement are controlled by federal regulations, other statutes or by the use of internal 
spending limits established by the governing body. Special revenue funds of the City controlled 
by federal regulations and state statutes include the JAG Grant fund. Capital projects controlled 
by spending limits established by the governing body include the 2013 Schulman Crossing 2 
Temporary Note Projects, TIGER Grant Project, 2015 GO Bond Projects, 2015 Temporary Note 
Projects, 2014 GO Bond Projects and 2013 GO Bond Projects funds. 
Budqetarv Compliance — Non-GAAP Financial Statements 
By statute, the City prepares its annual budget on a non-GAAP basis of accounting as described 
above. A reconciliation of these budgetary basis statements to the GAAP statements is as 
follows: 

Debt 
General Service 
Fund Fund 

Revenues (budgetary basis) $ 18,131,085 $ 3.096.383 
Less 2014 accrued revenues (2,188,051) (38,045) 
Plus 2015 accrued revenues 2,224,534 29,104 
Capital asset donation considered 
revenue for GAAP purposes 49,897 - 

Revenues (GAAP basis) $ 18,217,465 $ 3,087,442 

Expenditures (budgetary basis) $ 20,431,488 $ 2,810,939 
Less 2014 accrued reimbursements - (38,045) 
Plus 2015 accrued reimbursements - 29.104 
Capital asset donation considered 
expense for GAAP purposes 49.897 - 

Expenditures (GAAP basis) $ 20,481,385 $ 2.801.998
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CITY OF GARDEN CITY, KANSAS 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

December 31. 2015 

Summary of Siqnificant Accountinq Policies (continued) 

G. Assets, Liabilities. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources and Net Position/Fund Balance 

Cash and Cash Eguivalents 
The City's cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, and 
short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of 
acquisition. 

Degosits and Investments 
Cash resources of the individual funds are combined to form a pool of cash and investments 
which is managed by the Finance Director. Cash includes amounts in demand deposits. 
Investments of the pooled accounts consist of certificates of deposit and money market 
investments backed by U.S. government securities. Interest income earned is allocated among 
funds based on average monthly cash balances and in accordance with the adopted budget. 

State statutes authorize the City to invest idle funds in US. government securities, temporary 
notes, no-fund warrants, repurchase agreements and the Kansas Municipal Investment Pool. 
The Kansas Municipal Investment Pool operates in accordance with appropriate State laws and 
regulations. The reported value of the investment in the Kansas Municipal Investment Pool is 
the same as the fair value of its pool shares. Other investments of the City and its component 
units are stated at fair value, which equais cost. The aggregate value of the investments, 
including certificates of deposit, at December 31, 2015, is $2,075,458. 

Inventories and Prepaid Items 
All inventories are valued at average cost using the first-in/first-out (FIFO) method. Inventories 
of governmental funds are recorded as expenditures when consumed rather than when 
purchased. 

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods. The City 
deems prepaid expenses as immaterial to the financial statements. No capitalization or 
amortization has been recorded in the financial statements of the primary government. The 
Garden City Recreation Commission and Garden City Housing Authority record certain 
payments to vendors that reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods as prepaid items 
in their financial statements. 

Restricted Assets 
Certain resources set aside for the repayment of the City's enterprise funds‘ revenue bonds are 
classified as restricted assets on the statement of net position because their use is limited by 
applicable bond covenants. The “maintenance reserve” account and “repair and replacement" 
account are used to report resources set aside to meet unexpected contingencies or to fund 
asset renewals and replacements. 

Capital Assets 
Capital assets. which include property, plant. equipment, infrastructure assets (e.g.. roads. 
bridges. sidewalks, and similar items), and intangible assets (e.g., water nghts). are reported in 
the applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide 
financial statements. Capital assets, except for infrastructure assets, are defined by the City as 
assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess 
of one year. The City reports infrastructure assets on a network and subsystem basis. 
Accordingly, the amounts spent for the construction or acquisition of infrastructure assets are 
capitalized and reported in the government-wide financial statements regardless of their amount.
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1. Summary of Siqnificant Accountinq Policies (continued) 

G. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources and Net Position/Fund Balance 
(continued) 

Cagital Assets (continued) 
In the case of the initial capitalization of general infrastructure assets (ie., those reported by 
governmental activities) the City chose to include all such items regardless of their acquisition 
date or amount. The City was able to estimate the historical cost for the initial reporting of these 
assets through engineering records. As the City constructs or acquires additional capital assets 
each period. including infrastructure assets, they are capitalized and reported at historical cost. 
The reported value excludes normal maintenance and repairs which are essentially amounts 
spent in relation to capital assets that do not increase the capacity or efficiency of the item or 
increase its estimated useful life. Donated capital assets are recorded at their estimated fair 
value at the date of donation. 

Interest incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of enterprise funds is included 
as part of the capitalized value of the assets constructed. The amount of interest capitalized 
depends on the specific circumstances. Construction in connection with the enterprise funds 
was completed in previous years so none of the interest expense in the current year was 
included as part of the cost of capital assets. 

Land and construction in progress are not depreciated. The other property, plant and 
equipment, infrastructure and intangible assets of the City, as well as the component units, are 
depreciated/amortized using the straight-line method, with one-half year's 
depreciation/amortization in the year of acquisition, over the following estimated useful lives: 

Buildings 40 years 
Street infrastructure 40 years 
Storm sewer infrastructure 50 years 
Water rights Contractual life 
Improvements 20 years 
Equipment and vehicles 3-10 years 

Pensions 
The City of Garden City participates in a cost-sharing multiple-employer pension plan 
administered by the Kansas Public Employees Retirement System (KPERS). For purposes of 
measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position 
of the Kansas Public Employees Retirement System (KPERS) and additions to/deductions from 
KPERS’ fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by 
KPERS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are 
recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are 
reported at fair value. 

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources 
In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for 
deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element. deferred outflows of 
resources. represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will 
not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/ expenditure) until then. The City reports 
amounts related to pensions on the government-wide statement of net position as a deferred 
outflow of resources.
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Summary of Siqnificant Accountinq Policies (continued) 

G. Assets. Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources and Net Position/Fund Balance 
(continued) 

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources (continued) 
In addition to liabilities. the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for 
deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of 
resources. represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will 
not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The City has two types of 
items that qualify for reporting in this category. (1) The City reports amounts related to pensions 
on the government-wide statement of net position as a deferred inflow of resources. (2) Under a 
modified accrual basis of accounting, the governmental funds and business-type activities funds 
report unearned revenues from two sources as deferred inflows of resources: property taxes 
and special assessments. These amounts are deferred and recognized as an inflow of 
resources in the period that the amounts become available and earned. 

Net Position Flow Assumption 
Sometimes the City will fund outiays for a particular purpose from both restricted (e.g., restricted 
bond or grant proceeds) and unrestricted resources. In order to calculate the amounts to report 
as restricted — net posntion and unrestricted — net position in the government~wide and 
proprietary fund financial statements. a flow assumption must be made about the order in which 
the resources are considered to be applied. It is the City‘s policy to consider restncted — net 
position to have been depleted before unrestricted — net position is applied. 

Fund Balance Flow Assumptions 
Sometimes the City will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted and 
unrestricted resources (the total of committed. assigned, and unassigned fund balance). In 
order to calculate the amounts to report as restricted, committed, assigned, and unassigned 
fund balance nn the governmental fund financial statements a flow assumption must be made 
about the order in which the resources are considered to be applied. It is the City‘s policy to 
consider restricted fund balance to have been depleted before using any of the components of 
unrestricted fund balance. Further, when the components of unrestricted fund balance can be 
used for the same purpose. committed fund balance is depleted first, followed by assigned fund 
balance Unassigned fund balance is applied last. 

Fund Balance Policies 
Fund balance of governmental funds is reported in various categories based on the nature of 
any limitations requiring the use of resources for specific purposes. The City itself can establish 
limitations on the use of resources through either a commitment (committed fund balance) or an 
assignment (assigned fund balance). 

The committed fund balance classification includes amounts that can be used only for the 
specific purposes determined by a formal action of the City's highest level of decision-making 
authority. The City Commission is the highest level of decision—making authority for the City that 
can, by adoption of an ordinance prior to the end of the fiscal year, commit fund balance. Once 
adopted, the limitation imposed by the ordinance remains in place until a similar action is taken 
(the adoption of another ordinance) to remove or revise the limitation.
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Summary of Siqnificant Accountinq Policies (continued) 

G. Assets, Liabi|ities;Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources and Net Position/Fund Balance 
(continued) 

Fund Balance Policies (continued) 
Amounts in the assigned fund balance classification are intended to be used by the City for 
specific purposes but do not meet the criteria to be classified as committed. The City 
Commission has by resolution authorized the City Manager and City Finance Dnrector to assign 
fund balance. The City Commission may also assign fund balance as it does when 
appropriating fund balance to cover a gap between estimated revenue and appropriations in the 
subsequent year's appropriated budget. Unlike commitments, assignments generally only exist 
temporarily. In other words. an additional action does not normally have to be taken for the 
removal of an assignment. Conversely, as discussed above, an additional action is essential to 
either remove or revise a commitment. 

Revenues and Expenditures/Expenses 

Program Revenues 
Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who 
purchase. use, or directly benefit from goods, services. or privileges provided by a given function 
or segment and 2) grants and contributions (including special assessments) that are restricted 
to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. All taxes, 
including those dedicated for specific purposes. and other internally dedicated resources are 
reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues. 

Progerty Taxes 
In accordance with governing state statutes, property taxes levied during the current year are a 
revenue source to be used to finance the budget of the ensuing year. Taxes are assessed on a 
calendar year basis. are levied and become a lien on the property on November 1st of each 
year. The County Treasurer is the tax collection agent for all taxing entities within the County. 
Property owners have the option of paying one-half or the full amount of the taxes levied on or 
before December 20th during the year levied with the balance to be paid on or before May 10th 
of the ensuing year. State statutes prohibit the County Treasurer from distributing the taxes 
collected in the year levied prior to January 1st of the ensuing year. Consequently, for revenue 
recognition purposes, taxes levied during the current year are not due and receivable until the 
ensuing year. At December 31, 2015, such taxes are a lien on the property and are recorded as 
taxes receivable, net of anticipated delinquencies of $274,036, with a corresponding amount 
recorded as unearned revenue on the balance sheets of the appropriate funds. Delinquent 
taxes held by the County Treasurer at December 31, 2015, are not significant. 

Compensated Absences 

Vacation 
The City's policy regarding vacation leave pay permits employees to accumulate leave days 
at a maximum rate of 22 days per year up to 50 days. Vacation leave pay is accrued when 
incurred in the government-wide and proprietary funds‘ financial statements. A liability for 
these amounts is reported in governmental funds only if they have matured. for example, as 
a result of employee resignations and retirements. The City has estimated the value of 
accrued vacation leave pay at December 31, 2015, to be $1,270,918 of which $698,544 is 
expected to be used in 2016.
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Summary of Siqnificant Accountinq Policies (continued) 

H. Revenues and Expenditures/Expenses (continued) 

Compensated Absences (continued) 

Sick Leave 
The City's policy regarding sick leave pay permits employees to accumulate leave days at a 
maximum rate of 12 days per year up to 72 days. Leave may be used for sick leave, 
bereavement leave and personal leave. Payment for leave time in lieu of time off is 
computed at November 30th each year so that no more than 72 days are accumulated for 
any one individual. The City's policy is to recognize the costs of sick leave when actually 
paid since employees are not reimbursed for unused sick leave when they leave the City's 
employ. 

Proprietary Funds OperatincLand Nonoperatinq Revenues and Expenses 
Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. 
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and 
delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The 
princnpal operating revenues of the enterprise funds are charges to customers for sales and 
services. The electric utility fund and water fund also recognize as operatmg revenue the portion 
of connect fees intended to recover the cost of connecting new customers to the system. The 
principal operating revenues of the internal service funds are departmental billings for insurance. 
Operating expenses for enterprise funds and internal service funds include the cost of sales and 
services. administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and 
expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses. 

New Pronouncements 
The GASB has issued the following statements which will have an impact on the City's future 
financial reporting, although they are not yet required to be implemented by the City: 

- GASB Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application, issued February 2015 
will be effective for the Cnty beginning with its year ending December 31, 2016. This 
Statement addresses accounting and financial reporting issues related to fair value 
measurements. The definition of fair value is the price that would be received to sell an 
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at 
the measurement date. This Statement provides guidance for determining a fair value 
measurement for financial reporting purposes. This Statement also provides guidance for 
applying fair value to certain investments and disclosures related to all fair value 
measurements. 

0 GASB Statement No. 73, Accounting and Financial Repo/1/'ng for Pensions and Related 
Assets That are Not within the Scope of GASB Stmt 68, and Amendments to Certain 
Provisions of GASB Stmts 67 and 68, issued June 2015 will be effective for the City 
beginning with its year ending December 31. 2016. This Statement’s objective is to improve 
the usefulness of information about pensions included in the general purpose external 
financial reports of state and local governments for making decisions and assessing 
accountability. This Statement establishes requirements for defined benefit pensions that 
are not within the scope of Statement 68, as well as for the assets accumulated for 
purposes of providing those pensions.
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Summary of Siqnificant Accountinq Policies (continued) 

New Pronouncements (continued) 
GASB Statement No. 74, Financial Reporting for Postemp/oyment Benefit P/ans Other Than 
Pens/on P/ans, issued June 2015. will be effective for the City beginning with its year ending 
December 31. 2016. This Statement's objective is to improve the usefulness of information 
about postemployment benefits other than pensions included in the general purpose 
external financial reports of state and local governmental OPEB plans for making decisions 
and assessing accountability. The scope includes OPEB plans — defined benefit and 
defined contribution — administered through trusts that meet certain criteria. 

GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemp/oyment Benefits 
Other than Pensions, issued June 2015, will be effective for the City beginning with its year 
ending December 31, 2018. This Statement's objective is to improve accounting and 
financial reporting by state and local governments for postemployment benefits other than 
pensions (other postemployment benefits or OPEB). It also improves information provided 
by state and local governmental employers about financial support for OPEB that is provided 
by other entities. The scope addresses accounting and financial reporting for OPEB that is 
provided to the employees of state and local governmental employers. 

GASB Statement No. 76, The Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles for 
State and Local Governments, issued June 2015. will be effective for the City beginning with 
its year ending December 31. 2016. This Statement's objective is to identify —- in context of 
the current governmental financial reporting environment — the hierarchy of GAAP. The 
GAAP hierarchy consists of the sources of accounting principles used to prepare financial 
statements of state and local governmental entities in conformity with GAAP and the 
framework for selecting those principles. This Statement reduces the GAAP hierarchy to 
two categories of authoritative GAAP and addresses the use of authoritative and non- 
authoritative literature in the event that the accounting treatment for a transaction or other 
event is not specified within a source of authoritative GAAP. 

GASB Statement No. 77, Tax Abatement Disclosures. issued August 2015, will be effective 
for the City beginning with its year ending December 31, 2016. This Statement requires 
disclosure of tax abatement information about (1) a reporting government's own tax 
abatement agreements and (2) those that are entered into by other governments and that 
reduce the reporting government‘s tax revenues. 

GASB Statement No. 78, Pensions Provided through Certain Mu/tip/e-Emp/oyer Defined 
Benefit Pension P/ans, issued December 2015, will be effective for the City beginning with 
its year ending December 31, 2016. This Statement amends the scope and applicability of 
GASB 68 to exclude pensions provided to employees of state or local governmental 
employers through a cost—sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan that: (1) is 
not a state or local governmental pension plan; (2) is used to provide defined benefit 
pensions both to employees of state or local governmental employers and to employees of 
employers that are not state or local governmental employers; and (3) has no predominant 
state or local governmental employer (either individually or collectively with other state or 
local governmental employers that provide pensions through the pension plan). This 
Statement establishes requirements for recognition and measurement of pension expense, 
expenditures. and liabilities; note disclosures; and required supplementary information for 
pensions that have the characteristics described above.
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Summary of Siqnificant Accountinq Policies (continued) 

New Pronouncements (continued) 
GASB Statement No. 79, Certain External Investment Pools and Pool Participants. issued 
December 2015, will be effective for the City beginning with its year ending December 31, 
2016. This Statement permits qualifying external investment pools to measure pool 
investments at amortized cost for financial reporting purposes and provides guidance that 
will allow many pools to continue to qualify for amortized cost accounting. Existing 
standards provide that external investment pools may measure their investments at 
amortized cost for financial reporting purposes if they follow substantially all of the provisions 
of the SEC's Rule 2a7. Likewise, participants in those pools are able to report their 
investments in the pool at amortized cost per share. GASB 79 replaces the reference in 
existing GASB literature to Rule 2a7 with criteria that are similar in many respects to those in 
Rule 2a7. 

GASB Statement No. 80. Blending Requirements for Certain Component Units, issued 
January 2016, an amendment to GASB Statement No. 14, will be effective for the City 
beginning with its year ending December 31, 2017. The objective of this Statement is to 
improve financial reporting by clarifying the financial statement presentation requirements 
for certain component units. 

GASB Statement No. 81, /rrevocab/e Sp/it-/nterest Agreements. issued March 2016. will be 
effective for the City beginning with its year ending December 31, 2017. The objective of 
this Statement is to improve accounting and financial reporting for irrevocable split-interest 
agreements by providing recognition and measurement guidance for situations in which a 
government is a beneficiary of the agreement. 

GASB Statement No. 82, Pension Issues, issued April 2016, will be effective for the City 
beginning with its year ending December 31, 2017. The objective of this Statement is to 
address certain issues that have been raised with respect to Statements No. 67, Financial 
Reponing for Pension P/ans, No. 68. Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions, and 
No. 73, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions and Related Assets That Are Not 
within the Scope of GASB Statement 68, and Amendments to Certain Provisions of GASB 
Statements 67 and 68. Specifically, this Statement addresses issues regarding (1) the 
presentation of payroll-related measures in required supplementary information, (2) the 
selection of assumptions and the treatment of deviations from the guidance in an Actuarial 
Standard of Practice for financia! reporting purposes, and (3) the classification of payments 
made by employers to satisfy employee (plan member) contribution requirements. 

The City's management has not yet determined the effect these Statements will have on the 
City's financial statements.

44



CITY OF GARDEN CITY, KANSAS 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

December 31, 2015 

2 Reconciliation of Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements 

A. Explanation of Certain Differences Between the Governmental Fund Balance Sheet and the 
Government-wide Statement of Net Position 
The governmental fund balance sheet includes a reconciliation between fund balance — total 
governmental funds and net position — governmental activities as reported in the government- 
wide statement of net position. One element of that reconciliation explains that ‘‘capital assets 
used in governmental activities are not financial resources and, therefore, are not reported in the 
funds." The details of this $46,083,015 are as follows: 

Land $ 1,600,455 
Construction in progress 1,045,625 
Property, plant and equipment 87,276,241 

Less accumulated depreciation g43,839,3062 

Net adjustment to increase fund balance - total governmental 
funds to arrive at net position - governmental activities $ 46,083,015 

Another element of that reconciliation explains that “deferred outflows and inflows of resources 
related to pensions are applicable to future periods and therefore are not reported in the funds." 
The details of this $224,041 difference are as follows: 

Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions: 
Difference between expected and actual experience $ 66.784 
Change in proportion of the collective net pension liability 175,529 
Pension contributions from the measurement date 995,586 

1.237.899 
Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions g1,013,8582 

Net adjustment to increase fund balance - total governmental 
funds to arrive at net position - governmental activities $ 224,041 

Another element of that reconciliation explains that "long-term liabilities, including bonds 
payable, are not due and payable in the current period and therefore are not reported in the 
funds.” The details of this $46,842,476 difference are as follows: 

Governmental bonds payable $ 29,179,543 
Capital leases payable 1.708.029 
Accrued interest payable on long-term debt 167,512 
Compensated absences 1,270,918 
Net pension liability 14.516.474 

Net adjustment to reduce fund balance - total governmental 
funds to arrive at net position — governmental activities $ 46,842,476
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2. Reconciliation of Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements (continued) 

B. Exglanation of Certain Differences Between the Governmental Fund Statement of Revenues, 
Expenditures. and Chanqes in Fund Balances and the Government-wide Statement of Activities 
The governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances 
includes a reconciliation between net changes in fund balances — total governmental funds and 
changes in net position of governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement 
of activities. One element of that reconciliation explains that “governmenta! funds report capital 
outlays as expenditures. However, In the statement of activities, the cost of these assets is 

allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the 
amount by which capital outlays exceeded depreciation expense in the current period." The 
details of this $1,113,857 difference are as follows‘ 

Expenditures for capital assets $ 3,571,862 
Less current year depreciation (2,306,966) 
Less current year disposals (net of depreciation) g151,0392 

Net adjustment to decrease net changes in fund balances — 
total governmental funds to arrive at changes in net 
position of governmental actlvmes $ 1,113_s57 

Another element of that reconciliation states that "some expenses reported in the statement of 
activities do not require the use of current financial resources and therefore are not reported as 
expenditures in governmental funds.” The details of this ($145,804) difference are as follows: 

Accrued interest expense on long-term debt, net change $ (10,078) 
Change in compensated absences g135,7262 

Net adjustment to decrease net changes in fund balances — 
total governmental funds to arrive at changes in net 
position of governmental activities $ £145,804) 

Another element of that reconciliation states that “the issuance of long-term debt (e.g.. bonds. 
leases) provides current financial resources to governmental funds. while the repayment of the 
pnncipal of long-term debt consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds. 
Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net position. Also, governmental funds report 
the effect of premiums. discounts, and similar items when debt is first issued. whereas these 
amounts are deferred and amortized in the statements of activities. This amount is the net 
effect of these differences in the treatment of long-term debt and related items.” The details of 
this $8,998,868 difference are as follows: 

Debt issued or incurred: 
General obligation bonds $ (9,940,000) 
Capital leases issued (1,331,303) 

Principal repayments: 
General obligation debt 1,790,910 
Capital leases paid 481.525 

Net adjustment to decrease net changes in fund balances — 
total governmental funds to arrive at changes in net 
position of governmental activities $ $8,998,868}
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3. Stewardship, Compliance and Accountability 

A. Compliance with Kansas Statutes 
References made herein to the statutes are not intended as interpretation of law, but are offered 
for consideration of the Director of Accounts and Reports and interpretation by the County 
Attorney and the legal representative of the City. No other material violations were noted. 

B. Deficit Fund Eguity 
The 2015 Temporary Note Projects capital project fund had a deficit fund balance of $6,733 as 
of December .31, 2015. The fund incurred expenditures paid through the issuance of temporary 
notes. The City plans to issue bonds to finance the Projects in 2016. 

4. Detailed Notes on All Activities and Funds 

A. Cash and Investments 
A reconciliation of cash and investments as shown on the government-wide statement of net 
position for the primary government follows: 

Cash $ 34,507,534 
Investments, at fair value 1,975,458 
Restricted assets: 

Cash 2,614,080 
Investments, at fair value 100,000 

Total cash and investments $ 39,197,072 

Cash on hand 35 450 
Carrying amount of deposits 39,485,122 
Less agency funds g288,500) 

Total cash and investments $ 39,197,072 

Cash Deposits with Financial Institutions 

Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits 
Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the City's deposits may not be 
returned to it. State statutes require the City's deposits in financial institutions to be entirely 
covered by federal depository insurance or by collateral held under a joint custody receipt issued 
by a bank within the State of Kansas. the Federal Reserve Bank of Kansas City or the Federal 
Home Loan Bank of Topeka except during designated "peak periods" when required coverage is 
50%. The City's designated "peak periods" are with Commerce Bank from January 6 to March 7 
and June 6 to August 5. 

At year-end, the City's carrying amount of deposits was $39,485,122 and the bank balance was 
$40,016,043. Ninety-five percent of the bank balance was held by four banks resulting in a 
concentration of credit risk. Of the bank balance. $5,809,705 was covered by federal depository 
insurance and $34,206,338 was collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial 
institutions’ agents in the City's name. The City's cash deposits by financial institution at year- 
end are as follows:
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4. Detailed Notes on All Activities and Funds (continued) 

A. Cash and Investments (continued) 

Cash Deposits with Financial Institutions (continued) 

Custodial Credit Risk — Deposits (continued) 

Bank balance covered by 
Pledged Total 

FDIC securities at bank 
coverage market value balance 

Commerce Bank $ 500,000 $ 28,148,032 $ 28,648,032 
First National Bank 4,297,945 867,217 5,165,162 
American State Bank 250,000 1,891,932 2,141,932 
Bank of the West 250,000 1,753,353 2,003,353 
Western State Bank 261,760 1,247,826 1,509,586 
Garden City State Bank 250,000 297,978 547,978 

Total $ 5,809,705 $ 34,206,338 $ 40,016,043 

Investments 

Credit and Interest Rate Risks 
K.S.A. 9-1401 establishes the depositories which may be used by the City. The statute requires 
banks eligible to hold the City's funds have a main or branch bank in the county in which the City 
is located, or in an adjoining county if such institution has been designated as an official 
depository. and the banks provide an acceptable rate of return on funds. In addition. K.S.A. 9- 
1402 requires the banks to pledge securities for deposits in excess of FDIC coverage. The City 
has no other policies that would further limit interest rate risk. 

K.S.A. 12-1675 limits the City's investment of idle funds to time deposits, open accounts. and 
certificates of deposit with allowable financial institutions; U.S. City securities; temporary notes; 
no-fund warrants; repurchase agreements; and the Kansas Municipal Investment Pool. The City 
has no investment policy that would further limit its investment choices. 

At year-end, the City of Garden City had no investments of this type. 

Concentration of Credit Risk 
State statutes place no limit on the amount the City may invest in any one issuer as long as the 
investments are adequately secured under K.S.A. 9-1402 and 9-1405. 

Custodial Credit Risk - Investments 
For an investment, this is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the issuer or counterparty, 
the City will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in 
the possession of an outside party. State statutes require investments to be adequately 
secured.
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4. Detailed Notes on All Activities and Funds (continued) 

B. Receivables 
Amounts are aggregated into a single accounts receivable (net of allowance for uncollectibles) 
line for certain funds and aggregated columns. Below is the detail of receivables for the City's 
individual major and nonmajor funds, and internal service funds in the aggregate. including the 
applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts: 

Water Nonmajor 
Debt Electnc and Sewer and Other 

General SENICB Uumy Utilnty Anrpon Funds Total 
Receuvables 
Taxes $ 5.590.053 3 1,467,125 $ - S - S 731,314 3 1,078,263 $ 8,866,755 
Specnal assessments - 1,066,498 - - - 1,066,498 
ACCOUMS and Interest 446.472 - 1.800.983 451,169 2,620 285,053 2,986,297 
Other . . . - - 77,054 77,054 

Gross receivables 6,036,525 2.533.623 1_800,983 451 ,169 733,934 1 ,-140,370 12,996,604 

Less allowance for 
uncollecubles 140,000 62,870 328,393 1015004 31,250 106,921 772,438 

Net receivables $ 5,896,525 5 2,470,753 3 1,472,590 $ 348,165 $ 702.684 3 1,333,449 5 12,224,166 

All trade and property tax receivables are shown net of an allowance for uncollectibles. Trade 
accounts receivable in excess of 90 days comprise the trade accounts receivable allowance for 
uncollectibles. The property tax receivable allowance is equal to 4.10% of outstanding property 
taxes at December 31, 2015. 

Kansas statutes require projects financed in part by special assessments to be financed through 
the issuance of general obligation bonds which are secured by the full faith and credit of the City. 
Special assessments received prior to or after the issuance of general obligation bonds are 
recorded as revenue in the appropriate project fund. Further, state statutes require levying 
additional general ad valorem property taxes in the Debt Service fund to finance delinquent 
special assessments receivable. Accordingly, special assessments receivable are accounted 
for within the Debt Service fund and no provision is made for potentially delinquent receivables. 
Special assessments are levied over a ten or fifteen year period and annual installments are due 
and payable with annual ad valorem property taxes. The City may foreclose liens against 
property benefited by special assessments when delinquent assessments are two years in 

arrears. At December 31, 2015. the special assessment taxes levied are a lien on the property 
and are recorded as special assessments receivable in the applicable fund with a corresponding 
amount recorded as unearned revenue. 

C. Restricted Assets 
The balances of the restricted asset accounts in the enterprise funds are as follows: 

Cash: 
Maintenance reserve $ 448.871 
Repair and replacement 250,033 
Building 11,616 
Security deposits 1,903,560 

Investments: 
Security deposits 100,000 

Total restricted assets $ 2,714,080
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4. Detailed Notes on All Activities and Funds (continued) 

D. Capital Assets 
Capital asset activity for the primary government for the year ended December 31, 2015, was as 
follows: 

Balance Transfers/ Balance 
01-01-15 Additions Deductions Reclassifications 12-31-15 

Governmental activities: 
Capital assets not being 

depreciated. 
Land 8 1,377,377 $ 223.078 $ - $ - $ 1.600.455 
Constructnon in - 

progress - 2.572.464 . (1,526,839) 1,045,625 

Total capital assets not 
being depreciated 1,377,377 2.795.542 - (1.526.839) 2.646,080 

Capital assets being 
depreciated. 
Buildings and 

improvements 15,709,859 129.368 120.610 - 15,718,617 
Equipment 5.242.489 350.947 210.464 1.150 5,384,122 
Vehicles 5,634,635 305.247 310.360 2.204 5,631,726 
Furniture and f|XtUf8S 77,602 - - - 77.602 
Infrastructure 58,937,335 - - 1,526,839 60,464,174 

Total capital assets 
being depreciated 85,601,920 785.562 641,434 1,530,193 87,276,241 

Less accumulated 
depreciation for. 
Buildings and 

improvements 7.560.461 390,493 19,443 - 7,931,511 
Equipment 3.089.020 370,943 145.899 1.150 3,315,214 
Vehucles 4.098.753 301.984 325.053 11,446 4,087,130 
Furniture and fixtures 21,798 3,107 - - 24.905 
Infrastructure 27,240.10? 1,240,439 - - 28,480,546 

Total accumulated 
depreciation 42,010,139 2.306.966 490.395 12.596 43,839,306 

Total capital assets 
being depreciated, net 43,591,781 (1,521,404) 151.039 1,517,597 43,436,935 

Governmental activities 
capital assets. net S 44,969,158 $ 1.274.138 $ 151,039 $ (92421 $ 46083015 

The balance of this page intentionally left blank
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4. Detailed Notes on All Activities and Funds (continued) 

D. Cagital Assets (continued) 

Balance Transfersl Balance 
01-01-15 Additnons Deductions Reclassufucations 12-31-15 

Business—type activities: 
Capital assets not bemg 

depreciated: 
Land $ 777.801 $ 77200 $ - $ - $ 855.001 
Water rights 756.925 - - - 756,925 
Constructuon m 

progress 567.189 2,480,997 181.891 (212,374) 2,653,921 
Total capital assets not 

being depreciated 2,101,915 2.558.197 181,891 (212,374) 4.265.847 
Capital assets bemg 

depreciated; 
Production, storage 

and distributuon 
equipment 124.664,515 1.136.372 36.400 212,374 125,976,861 

Golf course, club 
house and 
equipment 1.726.389 - - - 1,726,389 

Vehncles and 
equipment 8,049,740 625.510 302.509 (3.355) 8,369,386 

Containers and 
equipment 4,073,163 206.128 - - 4,279,291 

Airport improvements 30,734,874 _ - - 30,734,874 

Total capital assets 
bemg depreciated 169,248,681 1.968.010 338.909 209.019 171 ,086,801 

Less accumulated 
depreciation for. 
Production, storage 

and distribution 
equipment 34,761,090 2,929,184 30.461 - 37,659,813 

Golf course, club 
house and 
equipment 1,083,913 34.933 - - 1.118.846 

Vehicles and 
equipment 4.214.666 530.154 168.925 (12.59?) 4,563,298 

Containers and 
equipment 2.418220 83.381 . - 2.501.601 

Airport improvements 8.813_425 458.985 - - 9,272,410 

Total accumulated 
depreciatnon 51,291,314 4.036.637 199,386 (12.597L 55,115,968 

Total capital assets 
bemg depreciated, net 117,957,367 (2.068.6§L 139.523 221,616 115,970,833 

Busmess—type actrvihes 
capital assets, net $120.059,282 $ 489.570 $ 321,414 3 9242 5120236580 

The balance of this page intentionally left blank
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4. Detailed Notes on All Activities and Funds (continued) 

D. Capital Assets (continued) 
Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows: 

Governmental activities: 
General government $ 149377 
Public safety 423729 
Public works 1,373,753 
Parks and recreation 359,597 

Total additions to accumulated depreciation - 

governmental activities $ 2,306,966 

Business-type activities: 
Electric $ 2,048,920 
Water and sewer 1,112,241 
Airport 473,522 
Solid waste 280,475 
Golf course 100,768 
Drainage 20,711 

Total additions to accumulated depreciation - 

business—type activities $ 4,036,637 

E. Defined Benefit Pension Plan - Kansas Public Employees Retirement System 

General Information About the Pension Plan 

Plan Description 
The City of Garden City participates in a cost-sharing multiple-employer pension plan, as defined 
in Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 67. Financial Reporting or Pension 
Plans. The Pension Plan is administered by the Kansas Public Employees Retirement System 
(KPERS), a body corporate and an instrumentality of the State of Kansas. KPERS provides 
benefit provisions to the following statewide pension groups under one plan, as provided by 
K.S.A. 74, article 49: 

o Public employees, which includes: 
o State / School employees 
0 Local employees 

o Police and Firemen 
o Judges 

Substantially all public employees in Kansas are covered by the Pension Plan. Participation by 
local political subdivisions is optional, but irrevocable once elected. 

Those employees participating in the Pension Plan for the City are included in the Public 
Employees, and Police and Firemen employee groups. 

KPERS issues a stand-alone comprehensive annual financial report, which is available on the 
KPERS website at www.kgers.org.
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Detailed Notes on All Activities and Funds (continued) 

E. Defined Benefit Pension Plan — Kansas Public Employees Retirement System (continued) 

General Information About the Pension Plan (continued) 

Benefits Provided 
Benefits are established by statute and may only be changed by the General Assembly. 
Members (except Police and Firemen) with ten or more years of credited service, may retire as 
early as age 55 (Police and Firemen may be age 50 with 20 years of credited service), with an 
actuarlally reduced monthly benefit. Normal retirement is at age 65, age 62 with ten years of 
credited service, or whenever a member's combined age and years of service equal 85 "points” 
(Police and Firemen's normal retirement ages are age 60 with 15 years of credited service, age 
55 with 20 years, age 50 with 25 years, or any age with 36 years of service). 

Monthly retirement benefits are based on a statutory formula that includes final average salary 
and years of service. When ending employment, members may withdraw their contributions 
from their individual accounts, including interest. Members who withdraw their accumulated 
contributions lose all rights and privileges of membership. For all pension coverage groups, the 
accumulated contributions and interest are deposited into and disbursed from the membership 
accumulated reserve fund as established by K.S.A. 74-4922. 

Members choose one of seven payment options for their monthly retirement benefits. At 
retirement a member may receive a lump-sum payment of up to 50% of the actuarial present 
value of the member's lifetime benefit. His or her monthly retirement benefit is then permanently 
reduced based on the amount of the lump sum. Benefit increases, including ad hoc post- 
retirement benefit increases, must be passed into law by the Kansas Legislature. Benefit 
increases are under the authority of the Legislature and the Governor of the State of Kansas. 

The 2012 Legislature made changes affecting new hires, current members and employers. A 
new KPERS 3 cash balance retirement plan for new hires starting January 1, 2015, was created. 
Normal retirement age for KPERS 3 is 65 with five years of service or 60 with 30 years of 
service. Early retirement is available at age 55 with ten years of service. with a reduced benefit. 
Monthly benefit options are an annuity benefit based on the account balance at retirement. 

For all pension coverage groups, the retirement benefits are disbursed from the retirement 
benefit payment reserve fund as established by K.S.A. 74-4922. 

Contributions 
Member contributions are established by state law, and are paid by the employee according to 
the provisions of Section 414(h) of the Internal Revenue Code. State law provides that the 
employer contribution rates be determined based on the results of each annual actuarial 
valuation for each of the three state wide pension groups. The contributions and assets of all 
groups are deposited in the Kansas Public Employees Retirement Fund established by K.S.A. 
74-4921. All of the retirement systems are funded on an actuarial reserve basis. 

For fiscal years beginning in 1995, Kansas legislation established statutory limits on increases in 
contribution rates for KPERS employers, which includes the state and the school employers. 
Annual increases in the employer contribution rates related to subsequent benefit 
enhancements are not subject to these limitations. The statutory cap increase over the prior 
year contribution rate is 1.0% of total payroll for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015.
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E. Defined Benefit Pension Plan - Kansas Public Employees Retirement System (continued) 

General Information About the Pension Plan (continued) 

Contributions (continued) 
The actuarially determined employer contribution rates (not including the 0.85% contribution rate 
for the Death and Disability Program) and the statutory contribution rates for City employees are 
as follows: 

Actuarial Statutory 
Employer Employer 

Rate Capped Rate 
Local employees 9.48 % 9.48 °/o 

Police and Firemen 21.36 21.36 

Member contribution rates as a percentage of eligible compensation in fiscal year 2015 are 
5.00% or 6.00% for Public Employees. and 7.15% for Police and Firemen. 

Employer A/locations 
Although KPERS administers one cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan, 
separate (sub) actuarial valuations are prepared to determine the actuarial determined 
contribution rate by group. Following this method, the measurement of the collective net 
pension liability, deferred outflows of resources, deferred inflows of resources, and pension 
expense are determined separately for each of the following groups of the plan: 

- State / School 
o Local 
o Police and Firemen 
o Judges 

To facilitate the separate (sub) actuarial valuations, KPERS maintains separate accounts to 
identify additions, deductions. and fiduciary net position applicable to each group. The allocation 
percentages presented for each group in KPERS‘ schedule of employer and nonemployer 
allocations are applied to amounts presented in the schedules of pension amounts by employer 
and nonemployer. The allocation percentages for the City‘s share of the collective pension 
amounts as of June 30, 2015, were based on the ratio of its contributions to the total of the 
employer and nonemployer contributions of the group for the fiscal years ended June 30. 2015. 
The contributions used exclude contributions made for prior service, excess benefits and 
irregular payments. At June 30. 2015, the City's proportions were 0.548204% and 1.007869% 
for the Local Empioyees and the Police and Firemen, respectively, which were a decrease of 
0.000098% and an increase of 0.014765%, respectively, from its proportions measured at June 
30, 2014.
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4. Detailed Notes on All Activities and Funds (continued) 

E. Defined Benefit Pension Plan - Kansas Public Employees Retirement Svstem (continued) 

Pension Liabilities. Pension Expense; and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows 
of Resources Related to Pensions 

Net Pens/on Liability 
At December 31, 2015, the City reported a liability of $14,516,474 for its proportionate share of 
the net pension liability. 

Actuarial Assumptions 
The total pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of December 31, 2014, 
which was rolled forward to June 30. 2015. The actuarial valuation used the following actuarial 
assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement: 

Price inflation 3.00% 
Wage inflation 4.00% 
Salary increases, including wage increases 4.00 to 16.00%, including inflation 
Long-term rate of return, net of investment 
expense, and including price inflation 8.00% 

Mortality rates were based on the RP 2000 Combined Mortality Table for Males and Females, as 
appropriate. with adjustments for mortality improvements based on Scale AA. 

The actuarial assumptions used in the December 31, 2014, valuation were based on the results 
of an actuarial experience study conducted for a three year period ending December 31, 2012. 

The long-term expected rate of return of pension plan investments was determined using a 
building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return 
(expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each 
major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return 
by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage 
and by adding expected inflation. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major 
asset class included in the pension plan's target asset allocations as of June 30, 2015, are 
summarized in the following table: 

Long-Term Long-Term 
Target Expected Real 

Asset Class Allocation Rate of Return 
Global equity 47.00% 6.30% 
Fixed income 13.00% 0.80% 
Yield driven 8.00% 4.20% 
Real return 11.00% 1.70% 
Real estate 11.00% 5.40% 
Alternatives 8.00% 9.40% 
Short—term investments 2.00% -0.50% 

Total 100.00%
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E. Defined Benefit Pension Plan - Kansas Public Employees Retirement System (continued) 

Pension Liabilities. Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows 
of Resources Related to Pensions (continued) 

Discount rate 
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 8.00%. The projection of cash 
flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will be 
made at the contractually required rate. The State. School and Local employers do not 
necessarily contribute the full actuarial determined rate. Based on legislation passed in 1993, 
the employer contribution rates certified by the System's Board of Trustees for these groups 
may not increase by more than the statutory cap. The expected KPERS employer statutory 
contribution was modeled for future years. assuming all actuarial assumptions are met in future 
years. Employers contribute the full actuarial determined rate for Police & Firemen. and Judges. 
Future empioyer contribution rates were also modeled for Police & Firemen and Judges, 
assuming all actuarial assumptions are met in future years. Based on those assumptions, the 
pension plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future 
benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on 
pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine 
the total pension liability. 

Sensitivity of the City's proportionate share of the net pension liability to changes in the discount 
rate 
The following table presents the City‘s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated 
using the discount rate of 8.00%. as well as what the City's proportionate share of the net 
pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point 
lower (7.00%) or one percentage point higher (9.00%) than the current rate: 

1% Decrease Discount rate 1% Increase 
(7.00%) (8.00%) (9.00%) 

Local $ 10,218,171 $ 7,198,160 $ 4.637.785 
Police and Firemen 10,627,472 7,318,314 4,523,207 

$ 20,845,643 $ 14,516,474 $ 9,160,992 

Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources 
At December 31, 2015. the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions as shown in the following tables. Experience gains/losses and the 
impact of changes in actuarial assumptions or other inputs, if any, are recognized over the 
average expected remaining service life of the active and inactive plan members at the 
beginning of the measurement period. Investment gains and losses are recognized over a fixed 
five year period. 

Deferred Outflows of Resources 
Local POIICG and Firemen Total 

Differences between expected and actual expenence $ - $ 66,784 $ 66,784 
Changes in proportion 76.207 99.322 175-529 
Contributions subsequent to the measurement date 499.703 495.883 995.535 

Total $ 575,910 5 661.989 $ 1,237,399
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E. Defined Benefit Pension Plan - Kansas Public Employees Retirement System (continued) 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense. and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows 
of Resources Related to Pensions (continued) 

Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources (continued) 

Deferred Inflows of Resources 
Local Police and Fnremen Total 

Differences between expected and actual experience $ 203.765 $ 122.500 $ 326.265 
Net differences between projected and actual earnings on 
Pension Plan investments 280,199 232,408 512,607 
Changes of assumptions 100.602 73.181 173.783 
Changes In proportion 1.203 . 1_2o3 

Total $ 585.769 $ 428.089 $ 1.013.858 

The net deferred outflows of resources and (deferred inflows) of resources as of June 30. 2015, 
that will be recognized in pension expense in future years are as follows: 

Fiscal Year Local Police and Firemen Total 
2016 $ (197,911) $ (150,663) $ (348,574) 
2017 (197,911) (150,663) (348,574) 
2018 (197,911) (150,663) (348,574) 
2019 107,997 205,345 313,342 
2020 (23,828) (15,340) (39,168) 

Thereafter - - - 

Pension Expense 
For the year ended December 31, 2015, the City recognized pension expense of $1,237,191 
which includes the changes in the collective net pension liability, projected earnings on pension 
plan investments, and the amortization of deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources for the current period. 

Subseguent events. 
Under the budgetary allotment process for the State of Kansas. the Kansas governor has 
authority to reduce the approved budget for purposes of balancing the budget. For the State‘s 
fiscal year ending June 30, 2016, the KPERS employer contribution to the State/School group of 
$92.6 million was postponed. It is unknown at the time whether this postponement will have a 
significant effect on the State's proportionate share of the KPERS collective net pension liability 
associated with the City. or an effect on any actuarial assumptions used by KPERS to calculate 
the net pension liability. 

During the 2015 state legislative session, Senate Bill 228 was passed authorizing the issuance 
of one or more series of revenue bonds to provide deposits to KPERS in a total amount not to 
exceed $1 billion. The purpose of such bond issuance would be for financing a portion of the 
unfunded actuarial pension liability of KPERS, which would also have an effect on the collective 
net pension liability. Final issuance of such bonds must be approved by a resolution of the State 
Finance Council. On August 20, 2015, the State issued $1,005,180.000 of bonds in accordance 
with this bill. The effect of this bond issuance on the State's proportionate share of the KPERS 
collective net pension liability associated with the City is unknown at this time.
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F. Other Postemployment Benefit (OPEB) Obliqations 

Plan Descrigtion 
Kansas statute provides that postemployment healthcare benefits be extended to retired 
employees who have met the age and/or service eligibility requirements. The health insurance 
benefit generally provides the same coverage for retirees and their dependents as for active 
employees and their dependents. The health insurance benefit plan is a single employer 
defined benefit plan administered by the City. The benefit is available for selection at retirement 
and is extended to retirees and their dependents until the age of 65. Grandfathered retirees 
may continue coverage until death. The benefits renew on a calendar year basis. The 
accounting for the health insurance for retirees is included in the City's health insurance fund, 
with the subsidy provided from the general and enterprise funds. 

Funding Policy 
The City provides health insurance benefits to qualifying retirees and their dependents in 

accordance with Kansas law. Kansas statute, which may be amended by the State legislature, 
established that participating retirees may remain in the City's health insurance plan by paying 
the entire premium. 

Currently, eligible retirees receive no direct contribution from the City for their medical, 
prescription drug and dental premium rates as established annually by the City. The required 
retiree contribution rate equals 102% of the carrier-charged premium. The carrier-charged 
premium for the year ended December 31, 2015, ranged from $376 to $1,279 per month per 
retiree participant. The Cnty appropriates funds annually for the costs associated with the 
retirement benefit and provides funding for the expenditures on a pay-as-you-go basis. 

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obliqation 
The City's annual OPEB (Other Postemployment Benefits) cost is calculated based on the 
annual required contribution of the employer (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in 

accordance with parameters of GASB Statement No. 45. The ARC represents a level of funding 
that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any 
unfunded actuarial liabilities over a period not to exceed thirty years. The following table 
presents the components of the City's annual OPEB cost for the year, the contribution to the 
plan, and changes in the City's net OPEB obligation. 

Normal cost $ 192,315 
Amortization of unfunded actuarial accrued liability 103.504 

Annual required contribution 295,819 
Interest on net OPEB obligation 44,690 
Adjustment to annual required contribution g59,3352 

Annual OPEB cost (expense) 281,174 
Contributions made g33,o00g 

Increase in net OPEB obligation 248,174 
Net OPEB Obligation, January 1 1,276,849 

Net OPEB Obligation, December 31 $ 1,525,023
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F. Other Postemployment Benefit (OPEB) Obliqations (continued) 

The C;ity's.anr.1uaI OPEB cost, percentage of OPEB cost contributed, and net postemployment 
benefit obhgatxon for the pian for the fiscal years ended December 31st is as follows: 

Fiscal Annual Employer Percentage Net OPEB 
Year OPEB Cost Contributions Contributed Obligation 
2013 $ 272,271 $ 171,577 63.0 % $ 1,046,732 
2014 271,117 41,000 15.1 1,276,849 
2015 281,174 33,000 11.7 1,525,023 

Funded Status and Fundinq Proqress 
As of January 1, 2015. the most recent actuarial valuation date, the actuarial accrued liability for 
benefits was $2,152,023. The City's policy is to fund the benefits on a pay as you go basis, 
resulting in an unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of $2,152,023. The covered payroll 
(annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was $12,208,810 and the ratio of the 
UAAL to the covered payroll was 17.6%. 

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and 
assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. The valuation 
includes, for example, assumptions about future employment, mortality and the healthcare cost 
trends. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required 
contributions of employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with 
the past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The schedule of funding 
progress will present in time, multi-year trend information about whether the actuarial value of 
plan assets is increasing or decreasing relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits. 

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions 
Projections of benefits for reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan and include the 
types of benefits provided at the tume of valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit 
cost between the employer and plan members to that point. The actuarial methods and 
assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term 
volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long- 
term perspective of the calculations. 

The ARC for the plan's year was determined as part of the January 1, 2015, actuarial valuation 
using the followmg methods and assumptions: 

Actuarial cost method projected unit credit 
Amortization method level percentage of payroll, open 
Remaining amortization period 30 years 
Inflation rate 1% 
Asset valuation method not applicable 
Investment return 3.5% 
Projected salary increases 1% 
Healthcare cost trend rate 9% to 5% reaching 5% in the ninth year
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G. Construction and Other Siqnificant Commitments 

Construction Commitments 
The City has active construction projects as of December 31, 2015. At year-end, the City‘s 
commitments with contractors are as follows: 

Project Expended to 
Project Authorization 12-31-15 Committed 
Airport improvements $ 1,690,384 $ 1,125,978 $ 564,406 
Windsor Hotel project 1,132,272 823,447 308,825 
Railroad improvements 21 769,693 4,168,027 17,601,666 
Flatland TIS and survey 115,400 22,830 92,570 
Central station addition 119,000 65,625 53,375 
Police dispatch software implementation 980,000 980,000 - 

Buffalo Dunes master plan 30,000 27.000 3,000 
Street improvement projects 2,719,098 1,562,797 1.156.301 
Water department facility 104,148 96,270 7,878 
Utility service center addition 1,487,815 1,022,743 465,072 
2015 water projects 358,723 36,805 321,918 
Waste water SCADA 372.125 372.125 - 

Total $ 30,878,658 $ 10,303.647 $ 20,575,011 

Subsequent to year-end. the City entered into capital projects with commitments to contractors, 
by category. as follows: 

Project 
Authorization 

Central fire station addition $ 1,700,000 
Columbarium 24,000 
Meadowlark Dairy Processing Plant projects 536,508 
Water lines cleaning project 146,190 
Kansas Avenue project 257,500 
2016 street sealing projects 296.761 
Administrative Center electrical upgrade 71,400 
Regional detention pond 137,500 

Total $ 3,169,859 

Commitments 
In 2013 the City entered into an agreement with the Kansas Municipal Energy Agency (KMEA) 
under a five year power supply plan in which KMEA expects to provide the necessary financial 
and contractual arrangements for resources to implement the power supply plan, manage the 
City's electrical power supply resources and coordinate with the Southwest Power Pool on 
behalf of the City through a portfolio of agreements between KMEA and the City. As part of this 
agreement, the City entered into a capital lease purchase agreement with KMEA for three new 
combustion turbine generators installed in Garden City by KMEA at a project cost of 
$41,964,860 as discussed in Note 4| and 4K.
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G. Construction and Other Siqnificant Commitments (continued) 

Contracts 
In 2011 the City entered into an operating agreement for an employee wellness center. This 
was a three year agreement With a two year extension entered into in 2014 with fees totaling 
$76,543 for the year ended December 31, 2015. The agreement was terminated in 2015. 

In 2015 the City entered into an operating agreement for an employee wellness center. This 
was a three year agreement with fees totaling $260,746 for the year ended December 31, 2015. 
The future fees under this agreement are as follows: 

2016 $ 306,327 
2017 339.843 
2018 324,863 

Total $ 971,033 

Conduit Debt Obligations 
From time to time. the City has issued industrial revenue bonds to provide financial assistance to 
private-sector entities for the acquisition and construction of industrial and commercial facilities 
deemed to be in the public interest. The bonds are secured by the property financed and are 
payable solely from payments received on the underlying mortgage loans. Upon repayment of 
the bonds, ownership of the acquired facilities transfers to the private-sector entity served by the 
bond issuance. Neither the City nor any political subdivision thereof is obligated in any manner 
for repayment of the bonds. Accordingly, the bonds are not reported as liabilities in the 
accompanying financial statements. 

As of December 31, 2015, there were 5 series of industrial revenue bonds outstanding, with an 
aggregate principal amount payable of $12,755,121. During the year ended December 31. 
2015, the City Commissioners authorized a $240,000,000 industrial revenue bond for a new 
dairy dryer plant. Subsequent to December 31, 2015, the City Commissioners approved an 
intent to issue up to $38,000,000 in industrial revenue bonds for a senior living development. 

H. Risk Manaqement and Se|f—|nsurance 
The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction 
of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters for which the City 
carries commercial insurance. Settled claims from these risks have not exceeded commercial 
insurance coverage for the past three years. 

I. Lease Obligations 

Cagital Leases 
The City has entered into various lease agreements to finance the acquisition of fire and police 
department vehicles and equipment, street department equipment, and a copier for the planning 
and community development department. These leases qualify as capital leases for accounting 
purposes and, therefore, have been recorded at the present value of the future minimum lease 
payments as of the date of their inception.
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CITY OF GARDEN CITY, KANSAS 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

December 31, 2015 

4. Detailed Notes on All Activities and Funds (continued) 

Lease Obligations (continued) 

Cagital Leases (continued) 
The following is a summary of assets acquired through these capital lease agreements by the 
City at December 31, 2015: 

Governmental Business—type 
Activities Activities 

Vehicles and equipment $ 1,746,988 $ 42,059,505 
Less accumulated depreciation (514,706) (1,594,603) 

Total $ 1,232,282 $ 40,464,902 

The future minimum lease obligations and the net present value of these minimum lease 
payments as of December 31, 2015, are as follows: 

Governmental Business-type 
Activities Activities 

2016 $ 444,473 $ 3,785,675 
2017 406,590 3,566,418 
2018 236,400 3,268,278 
2019 226,867 3,185,110 
2020 217,821 3,193,257 
2021-2025 296,632 15,998,116 
2026-2030 - 14.313.874 
2031-2035 - 14,317,801 
2036-2040 - 14.318,061 
2041-2044 - 7,158,406 

Total minimum lease payments 1,828,783 83,104,996 
Less amount representing interest (120,754L (38,972,502) 

Present value of future minimum 
lease payments $ 1,708,029 $ 44,132,494 

The balance of this page intentionally left blank
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CITY OF GARDEN CITY, KANSAS 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

December 31, 2015 

4. Detailed Notes on All Activities and Funds (continued) 

Lease Obligations (continued) 

Cagital Leases (continued) 
Subsequent.t9 ‘year-end,.the City Commissioners authorized staff to enter into lease agreements 
for the acquisition of pohce vehicles and equipment. The future minimum lease obligation and 
the net present value of the minimum lease payments are as follows: 

Governmental 
Activities 

2016 $ 107,743 
2017 107,742 
2018 107,742 
2019 44.623 
2020 44,623 
2021-2025 89,246 

Total minimum lease payments 501,719 
Less amount representing interest g24,510) 

Present value of future minimum 
lease payments $ 477,209 

Short-Term Debt 
The purpose of all of the short-time borrowings was to provide resources for various capital 
construction or improvement projects. The form of financing used in all cases was temporary 
notes (i.e., bond anticipation notes). The amounts issued for governmental activities are 
accounted for in the capital projects fund. 

State law requires that temporary notes issued for capital purposes be converted to long-term 
obligations within four years after the original issue date, if not completely repaid. 

The schedule below details the changes in short-term capital borrowings during the year ended 
December 31, 2015, for the governmental activities: 

Date of Interest Balance Balance 
Issue Rate 01-01-15 Issues Redemphons 12-31-15 

Governmental activities: 
2013 Schulman Crossing 2 

Temporary Note Prolects 12-19-13 4 000% $ 9,340,000 $ - $ 9,340,000 $ 

The balance of this page intentionally left blank
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CITY OF GARDEN CITY, KANSAS 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

December 31, 2015 

4. Detailed Notes on All Activities and Funds (continued) 

K. Long-Term Liabilities 

General Obligation Bonds 
The City issues general obligation bonds to provide funds for the acquisition and construction or 
Improvement of major capital assets. General obiigation bonds have been issued for both 
governmental and business-type activities. The original principal amount of general obligation 
bonds issued in prior years was $49,794,000. During the year, general obligation bonds totaling 
$9,940,000 were issued. 

General obligation bonds are direct obligations and the full faith and credit of the City is pledged 
to their repayment. These bonds generally are issued as 5 to 15-year serial bonds with nearly 
equal amounts of principal maturing each year. General obligation bonds currently outstanding 
are as follows: 

Outstanding 
Date of Maturity Interest Balance 

Purpose Issue Date Rates 12-31-15 
Governmental activities: 

Internal Improvement 05-01-06 11-01-16 3.85 to 3.95% $ 165.000 
Internal Improvement 04-01-07 11-01-17 355 to 3.65% 420.000 
Internal Improvement 09-01-08 11-01-18 3.10 to 3.70% 1,095,000 
Internal Improvement 07-01-09 11-01-19 2.25 to 3.30% 1,000,000 
Internal Improvement 08-01-10 11-01-20 1.60 to 2.75% 662,700 
Internal Improvement 08-01-11 11-01-21 1.50 to 2.50% 1,385,000 
Internal Improvement 11-01-12 11-01-22 2.00 to 2.15% 685,000 
Internal Improvement 08-01-13 11-01-28 2.00 to 4.00% 1,481,843 
Internal Improvement 08-01-13 11-01-23 2.00 to 4.00% 510,000 
Internal Improvement 05-01-14 11-01-34 2.00 to 3.75% 10,750,000 
Internal Improvement 10-01-14 11-01-24 2.00 to 2.50% 1,085,000 
Internal Improvement 09-15-15 11-01-35 2.00 to 2.50% 9,940,000 

Business-type activities: 
Internal Improvement 08-01-10 11-01-20 1.60 to 2.75% 1,862,300 
Refunding 12-01-10 09-01-24 2.00 to 3.25% 6,015,000 
Internal Improvement 08-01-13 11-01-23 2.00 to 3.00% 5,053,157 
Internal Improvement 10-01-14 11-01-24 2.00 to 2.50% 1,580,000 

Total general obligation bonds payable $ 43,690,000 

During the year ended December 31, 2015, the City Commissioners authorized staff to proceed 
with a $4,650,000 bond sale for the economic development and welfare of the City related to 
2016 projects.
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CITY OF GARDEN CITY, KANSAS 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

December 31, 2015 

4. Detailed Notes on All Activities and Funds (continued) 

K. Long~Term Liabilities (continued) 

Revenue Loans 
The City issues revenue loans where the City pledges income derived from the fees and 
charges to useys of the related assets to pay the debt service. The original principal amount of 
revenue loans Issued in prior years was $244,000. During the year, no revenue loans were 
issued. Revenue loans currently outstanding are as follows: 

Outstanding 
Date of Maturity Interest Balance 
Issue Date Rates 12-31-15 

Revenue loans payable: 
Jameson Energy Center 05-01-14 08-15-17 3.25% $ 138,712 

Bond Covenants 
There are a number of limitations and restrictions contained in the various bond indentures. The 
City believes it is in compliance with all significant limitations and restrictions. 

Legal Debt Margin 
The City is subject to a general obligation debt limit that is 30% of the assessed valuation of 
taxable property. For the year ended December 31, 2015, that amount was $65,737,680. As of 
December 31, 2015. the total outstanding debt applicable to the limit was $43,869,080 which is 
66.73% of the total debt limit. 

Pledged Revenues 
The City has pledged specific revenue streams to secure the repayment of certain outstanding 
debt issues. The corresponding debt issues are for general obligation bonds issued to finance 
infrastructure and capital improvements in tax increment financing (TIF) districts. The following 
table lists those revenues and the corresponding debt issues, the amount and term of the 
pledge remaining, the current fiscal year principal and interest on the debt. the amount of 
pledged revenue recognized during the current fiscal year, and the approximate percentage of 
the revenue stream that has been committed: 

Type of Percent of Pnncupal and Pledged Revenues 
Revenue Amount of Term of Revenue Interest for Recognized 

Issues Pledggd Pledge Commntment Pledged 2015 m 2015 
TIF GO bonds Incremental 

Increase In Through 
property tax $ 16.435000 11/1/2035 100 00% 3 336.085 5 606.697 

Segment Information 
The City issued general obligation bonds to finance its electric utility and water and sewer utility, 
which operate the City's electrical system and water system and sewage treatment plant. The 
electric utility and water and sewer utility are accounted for as separate activities. Financial 
information for the electric utility fund and water and sewer utility fund is shown on pages 27 
through 29 of this report.
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CITY OF GARDEN CITY, KANSAS 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

December 31, 2015 

4. Detailed Notes on All Activities and Funds (continued) 

K. Long-Term Liabilities (continued) 

Chanqes in Lonq-Term Liabilities 
Changes in the City's long-term liabilities for the year ended December 31, 2015, are as follows: 

Due 
Balance Balance Within 
01-01-15 Additions Retired 12-31-15 One Year 

Governmental activities: 
General obligation bonds $ 21,030,453 $ 9.940.000 $ 1.790.910 $ 29.179.543 S 2.419.761 
Capital leases 858.251 1.331.303 481.525 1.708.029 406.850 
Compensated absences 1,135,192 813.726 678.000 1.270.918 698.544 
Net pension liability 13,261,767 1.254.707 - 14.516.474 - 

Net OPEB obligation 1.276.849 281.174 33.000 1,525,023 

Total governmental acuvmes 
long-term liabilities $ 37.562.512 $ 13,620,910 $ 2,983,435 $ 48.199387 5 3,525,155 

Business-type activities: 
General obligation bonds $ 16.754.547 $ - $ 2.244.090 $ 14,510,457 2.308.025 
Plus bond premium 185.080 - 31.000 154.080 31.513 
KMEA loan 218.139 - 79.427 138.712 79.427 
Capital leases 42,022,759 3,157,620 1,047,885 44,132,494 1,426,879 

Total busIness~type actwitnes 
long-term Icabuliues $ 59.180525 $ 3,157,620 $ 3.402.402 $ 58.935743 5 3,845,844 

The liability for compensated absences is generally liquidated by the general fund. The liability 
for net OPEB obligation is generally liquidated by the health insurance fund. 
The annual debt service requirements to maturity for the general obligation bonds outstanding at 
December 31, 2015, including interest payments. are as follows: 

Year ending Governmental Activities Business-type Activities 
December 31, Principal Interest Principal Interest 

2016 $ 2,419,761 $ 883,254 $ 2,305,239 $ 374,126 
2017 2,385,761 785,939 2,369,239 325,486 
2018 2,259,011 727,379 2,425,989 271,238 
2019 1,827,261 672,462 2,292,739 211,741 
2020 1,619,212 629,840 5,117,251 357,982 
2021-2025 6,678,537 2,543,885 - - 

2026-2030 6,010,000 1,568,187 - - 

2031-2035 5.980.000 568,788 - - 

Total $ 29,179,543 $ 8,379,734 $ 14,510,457 $ 1,540,573
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Detailed Notes on All Activities and Funds (continued) 

K. Long-Term Liabilities (continued) 

Changes in Long-Term Liabilities (continued) 
The annual debt service. requirements to maturity for the revenue loans outstanding at 
December 31, 2015, Including Interest payments, are as follows: 

Year ending Business-type Activities 
December 31 

, Principal Interest 
2016 $ 82,212 $ 3,538 
2017 56,500 741 

Total $ 138,712 $ 4,279 

Interfund Receivables and Payables 
The composition of interfund balances as of December 31, 2015, is as follows: 

Advances To/From Other Funds 
Receivable Fund Amount 

Temporary notes: 
Electric Utility 

Payable Fund 

Nonmajor capital projects fund $ 25,000 

Kansas statutes permit the issuance of temporary notes to finance certain capital improvement 
projects which will be refinanced with general obligation bonds. These temporary notes are 
interfund loans for internal improvements and are to be retired with bond proceeds 

. Interfund Transfers 
The composition of interfund transfers by fund type for the year ended December 31, 2015, is as 
follows: 

Transters In 
TIGER Water Nonmagor Nonmagor 
Grant and Sewer Govemmenlal Pvopnetary 

General Project Utlhty AIrpor1 Funds Funds Total 
Transfers oul 

General S - 5 300.000 S - S S 877,281 S 400,000 5 1_577_281 
Debt Servnce - - - 100,000 — 100.000 
Electric Utuhty 1.953.000 - 8.306 - 15,000 - 1,976,306 
Water and Sewer Ulnluty 358.200 - - 77,200 15,000 - 450,400 
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 40,081 » - - 90.000 130.081 
Nonma;or Proprietary Funds 171 |600 - - - - - 171.600 

Yolal S 2,522,881 $ 300,000 $ 8.306 S 77200 5 1,007,281 $ 490,000 $ 4.405.668 

During the year, transfers are used to (1) move revenues from the fund with collection 
authorization to the debt service fund as debt service principal and interest payments become 
due, (2) move restricted amounts from borrowings to the debt service fund to establish 
mandatory reserve accounts, and (3) move unrestricted general fund revenues to finance 
various programs that the City must account for in other funds in accordance with budgetary 
authorizations, including amounts provided as subsidies or matching funds for various grant 
programs.
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December 31, 2015 

4. Detailed Notes on All Activities and Funds (continued) 

M. Interfund Transfers (continued) 
In the government-wide financial statements, transfers in and out of the internal service funds 
are not reflected. In addition, capital assets contributed to proprietary funds by governmental 
funds are reflected as transfers in and out in the government-wide financial statements; there 
were no such contributed capital assets during the year ended December 31, 2015. 

Further, during the year ended December 31. 2015, the City made transfers totaling $2,512,800 
from the enterprise funds to the governmental funds as allowed under state statutes authorizing 
the transfer from the gross operating revenue of the City’s utilities to the different funds used for 
governmental functions. 

Duscretelv Presented Component Units 

Garden City Recreation Commission 
The carrying amount of deposits for the Garden City Recreation Commission, a discretely 
presented component unit, was $48,981 and the bank balance was $68,091. The bank balance 
was held by one bank resulting in a concentration of credit risk. All of the bank balance was 
covered by federal depository insurance. 

Capital asset activity for the Garden City Recreation Commission for the year ended December 
31, 2015, is as follows: 

Balance Balance 
01-01-15 Additions Deductions 12-31-15 

Governmental activities: 
Capital assets not being 

depreciated: 
Land $ - $ 5,600 $ - $ 5,600 

Total capital assets 
not being depreciated - 5.600 - 5.600 

Capital assets being 
depreciated: 
Buildings and 

improvements $ 579,575 $ 26,012 $ - $ 605,587 
Equipment 1,222,414 8,318 - 1,230,732 

Total capital assets 
being depreciated 1,801,989 34,330 - 1,836,319 

Less accumulated 
depreciation for: 
Buildings and 

improvements 84,743 53.954 - 138.697 
Equipment 600,608 139,543 - 740,151 

Total accumulated 
depreciation 685,351 193,497 - 878,848 

Total capital assets 
being depreciated, net 1.116.638 059.1671 - 957.471 

Recreation Commission 
capital assets, net $ 1,116,638 $ (153,567) $ - $ 963.071
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Detailed Notes on All Activities and Funds (continued) 

N. Discretelv Presented Component Units (continued) 

Garden City Recreation Commission (continued) 
The Garden City Recreation Commission has entered into lease agreements to finance the 
acquisition of equipment. These leases qualify as capital leases for accounting purposes and, 
therefore, have been recorded at the present value of the future minimum lease payments as of 
the date of inception. 

The following is a summary of assets acquired through these capital lease agreements by the 
Garden City Recreation Commission at December 31, 2015: 

Governmental 
Activities 

Improvements and equipment $ 1,027,448 
Less accumulated depreciation g262.369) 

Total $ 765,079 

The future minimum lease obligations and the net present value of these minimum lease 
payments for the Garden City Recreation Commission as of December 31, 2015, are as follows: 

Governmental 
Activities 

2016 $ 160,681 
2017 152,815 
2018 152,815 
2019 52,971 
2020 52,971 
2021-2024 211,883 

Total minimum lease payments 784,136 
Less amount representing interest g73,841) 

Present value of future minimum 
lease payments $ 710,295 

Changes in the long-term liabilities of the Garden City Recreation Commission for the year 
ended December 31, 2015, are as follows: 

Due 
Balance Balance Within 
0101 -15 Additions Retired 12-31-15 One Year 

Governmental activities: 
Capital leases $ 855_586 S - $ 145.291 $ 710.295 $ 142.475 
Compensated absences 38.596 39.826 50.506 27.916 14,500 
Net pension liability 527,994 21,856 - 549.850 - 

Total governmental actlvmes 
long-term liabilities $ 1,422,176 5 61,682 $ 195,797 $ 1,288,061 $ 156.976
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4. Detailed Notes on All Activities and Funds (continued) 

N. Discretelv Presented Cormanent Units (continued) 

Garden City Housinq Authority 
The carrying amount of deposits for the Garden City Housing Authority, a discretely presented 
component unit, was $310,869 and the bank balance was $321,194. All of the bank balance 
was covered by federal depository insurance. 

Capital asset activity for the Garden City Housing Authority for the year ended December 31, 
2015. is as follows: 

Balance Balance 
01-01-15 Additions Deductions 12-31-15 

Governmental activities: 
Capital assets not being 

depreciated: 
Land $ 426,144 $ — $ - $ 426,144 

Capital assets being 
depreciated: 
Buildings and 

improvements 4.036.097 - - 4,036,097 
Equipment 331,720 18,066 - 349,786 

Total capital assets 
being depreciated 4.367.817 18.066 - 4.385.883 

Less accumulated 
depreciation 3.066.923 149,025 - 3,215,948 

Total capital assets 
being depreciated, net 1,300,894 Q30.959L — 1,169,935 

Housing Authority 
capitalassets. net $ 1.727.038 $ (130959; $ - $ 1.596.079 

Changes in the long-term liabilities of the Garden City Housing Authority for the year ended 
December 31, 2015, are as follows: 

Due 
Balance Balance Within 
01-01-15 Additions Retured 12-31-15 One Year 

Governmental activities: 
Compensated absences S 5.629 $ 3.889 $ 5.629 $ 3.889 $ 1.751 

Net pension liability 126,171 - 5.686 120.485 - 

Total governmental activities 
long-term liabilities s 131.300 $ 3.889 5 11.315 5 124.374 $ 1.751
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Notes to the Financial Statements 

December 31, 2015 

4. Detailed Notes on All Activities and Funds (continued) 

0. Contingencies 

Grant Audits 
Amounts received or receivable from grant agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by 
grantor agencies, principally the federal government. Any disallowed claims, including amounts 
already collected. may constitute a liability of the applicable funds. The amount, if any, of 
expenditures that may be disallowed by the grantor cannot be determined at this time. although 
the City expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial. 

Litigation 
The City is named as a party in various lawsuits. These lawsuits are in the discovery stages and 
the effect, if any, on the City is not determinable at this time. In the opinion of management, the 
ultimate outcome of these lawsuits will not have a material adverse effect on the financial 
condition of the City. 

P. Subseguent Events 
Subsequent to year-end the City entered into contracts for capital projects as discussed in Note 
4, item G; and approved capital leases as discussed in Note 4, item I. In addition, the City 
accepted bids subsequent to year-end for the purchase of a solid waste collection truck, a new 
tractor and mowing deck, snow removal equipment and vehicles totaling $1,031,989; and 
entered into an agreement for engineering services totaling $122,976 for one year. An 
authorization of intent to issue industrial revenue bonds was also approved as discussed in Note 
4, item G. 

Q. Chanqe in Accountinq Principle 
On January 1, 2015, the City changed its method of accounting to adopt Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for 
Pensions and GASB Statement No. 71, Pension Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent 
to the Measurement Date. The implementation of these standards requires governments to 
calculate and report the costs and obligation associated with pensions in their financial 
statements, including additional note disclosures and requirement supplementary information. 
Beginning net position of the governmental activities was restated to retroactively report the 
beginning net pension liability and deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to 
pensions. and deferred outflows of resources related to contributions made after the 
measurement date as follows: 

Beginning net position, as previously reported 
at December 31. 2104 $ 28,739,618 

GASB Statement No. 68 implementation: 
Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions 183,006 
Deferred outflows of resources - City contributions made 

July 1, 2014, through December 31,2014 895,900 
Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions (2,822,754) 
Net pension liability at June 30, 2014, (measurement date) g13,261,7672 

Net position, December 31. 2014, as restated $ 13,734,003
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CITY OF GARDEN CITY, KANSAS 
Schedule of the Proportnonate Share of the Net Pension Liability 

Kansas PUDIIC Employees Retirement System (KPERS) 
Last Two Fiscal Years ' 

Local 
Proportion of the net pension liability (asset) 

Proportionate share of the net pension Iiabnlity (asset) 

Covered employee payroll 

Proportuonate share of the net pension Ilablllty (asset) as a percentage 
of its covered-employee payroll 

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liabmty 

Police and Firemen 
Proportion of the net pension Inability (asset) 

Propomonate share of the net pension Inability (asset) 

Covered employee payroll 

Proportionate share of the net pension Inability (asset) as a percentage 
of its covered-employee payroll 

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension Iiabihty 

2014 2015 

0.548302% 

$ 6,748,573 

$ 9,033,913 

74.70% 

66 60% 

0 993104°/o 

$ 6.513,194 

$ 4,415,088 

147.52% 

66.60% 

0.548204% 

$ 7,198,160 

$ 9,138,526 

78.77% 

66.60% 

1.007869% 

$ 7,318,314 

$ 4,589,349 

159 45% 

65.60% 

" Until a full 10-year trend IS compiled. the City WI” present Information for those years for which information is 

available. The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of June 30.
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CITY OF GARDEN CITY, KANSAS 
Schedule of City Contributions 

Kansas Publnc Employees Retirement System (KPERS) 
Last Two Fiscal Years ‘ 

Local 
Contractually required contribution 
Contributions In relation to the contractually required contribution 

Contribution deficiency (excess) 

City's covered employee payroll 

Contributions as a percentage of covered employee payroll 

Police and Furemen 
Contractually required contrubutnon 
Contnbutuons In relation to the contractually requnred contribution 

Contribution deficiency (excess) 

City's covered employee payroll 

Contributions as a percentage of covered employee payroll 

' Until a full 10-year trend IS compaled, the City will present information for those years for Wh|Ch Information IS 

2014 2015 

$ 754,986 $ 838,335 
(754,986) L8384335) 

$ - S - 

$ 9,033,913 $ 9,138,526 

8.36% 9 17% 

$ 822.024 $ 946,973 
(822,024) (946,973) 

$ - $ - 

$ 4,415,088 $ 4,589,349 

18 62% 20.63% 

available The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determuned as of June 30
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CITY OF GARDEN CITY, KANSAS 
Schedule of Funding Progress — 
Other Postemployment Benefits 

December 31, 2015 

Net UAAL as a 
Actuarial Actuanal Unfunded Percentage 

Actuarial Value of Accrued Liability (AAL) Covered of Covered 
Valuation Assets (AAL) (UAAL) Funded Payroll Payroll 

Date (a) (b) (b-a) Ratio (c) (b-a )l( c) 
1/1/2009 $ 1,939,286 1,939,286 0.0% 10,384,185 18.7% 
1/1/2011 2,252,352 2,252,352 0.0% 10,611,304 21.2% 
1/1/2013 2.038.882 2,038,882 00% 11,957,340 17.1% 
1/1/2015 2.152.023 2.152.023 0.0% 12,208,810 17.6%
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CITY OF GARDEN CITY, KANSAS 
Notes to Required Supplementary Information 

December 31, 2015 

Schedule of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liabilim for Kansas Public Emglovees 
Retirement System 

1. Changes of benefit terms 
Effective January 1, 2014. KPERS 1 member's employee contribution rate increased to 5.0% and 
then on January 1, 2015, increased to 6.0%, with an increase in benefit multiplier to 1.85% for future 
years of service. For KPERS 2 members retiring after July 1, 2012, the cost of living adjustment 
(COLA) is eliminated, but members will receive a 1.85% multiplier for all years of service. 

January 1, 2015. the KPERS 3 cash balance plan became effective. Members enrolled in this plan 
are ones first employed in a KPERS covered position on or after January 1, 2015, or KPERS 1 or 
KPERS 2 members who left employment before vesting and returned to employment on or after 
January 1, 2015. The retirement benefit is an annuity based on the account balance at retirement. 

In KPERS fiscal year ended June 30. 2014, the Kansas Police & Firemen group had a change in 
benefit terms. The Legislature increased this group's employee contributions to 7.15 % and 
eliminated the reduction of employee contributions to 2.0% after 32 years of service. In addition, the 
maximum retirement benefit increased to 90% of final average salary (reached at 36 years of 
service). Before this change the maximum retirement benefit was limited to 80% of final average 
salary (reached at 32 years of service)
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Nonmajor Governmental Funds 

Special Revenue Funds 

Special revenue funds are used to account for specific revenue sources that are restricted, committed, 
or assigned to expenditures for particular purposes. The special revenue funds used by the City of 
Garden City, Kansas, are: 

Community Trust: 
This fund was created from monies remaining in a bond reserve fund when the bond issue was 
retired. Loans for capital improvements are made through and repaid through this fund. In 

addition. the fund accounts for the operating transfers to the golf course. 

Capital Improvements: 
This fund is used to account for monies transferred in from various City funds for capital projects 
that were authorized but not completed in that year. By transferring the monies to this fund, the 
projects can be completed with funds which were previously authorized for that purpose. 

Recreation: 
This fund is used to account for monies received from the annual tax levy which are then 
distributed to the Recreation Commission. 

Special Trafficway: 
This fund is used to account for monies levied by the State of Kansas (i.e., motor fuels tax) 
which produces revenues the City can use to defray in whole or in part the cost of constructing, 
altering, reconstructing, maintaining and repairing streets and highways. A portion of this fund is 
reserved by the motor fuels tax revenue bond - series 1993 ordinance which requires a cash 
reserve for the revenue bond issue. In addition, the fund is used to account for monies 
dedicated to repay the principal and Interest costs on the motor fuels tax revenue bond - series 
1993. 

Special Improvements: 
This fund is used to account for monies received on insurance claims which are then paid out in 
accordance with the claim. The fund also accounts for expenses involved in property nuisance 
complaints which are then reimbursed by the property owner. 

Cemetery Endowment: 
This fund was established to provide monies for maintenance and upkeep of the cemetery by 
providing that SIX percent of the cemetery space proceeds be accounted for in this fund. 

Special Recreation and Parks: 
This fund is used to account for monies provided by a state liquor tax on private clubs which are 
to be expended for the purchase, establishment, maintenance or expansion of park and 
recreational services, programs and facilities. 

Special Alcohol Programs: 
This fund is used to account for monies provided by a state liquor tax on private clubs which are 
to be expended for the purchase, establishment, maintenance or expansion of services or 
programs for alcoholism prevention and education.
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Nonmajor Governmental Funds 

Special Revenue Funds 

Finnup Trust Fund: 
This fund is used to account for monies received from the Finnup Foundation and expended on 
specified projects for Finnup Park. 

Special Liability: 
This fund is used to account for monies reserved for the purpose of paying nondeductible claims 
and related costs arising from legal actions and settlements. 

Drug Enforcement: 
This fund is used to account for revenues passed through from the State Department of Justice 
which are matched with a percentage of City monies. all of which are to be expended for drug 
control type expenditures. 

DEA Forfeiture: 
This fund is used to account for monies from DEA drug forfeitures which are to be expended for 
drug control type expenditures. 

Community Development Loan Fund: 
This fund is used to account for housing rehabilitation loan repayments and expenditures for 
qualified housing rehabilitation loans. 

Economic Development: 
This fund is used to account for loan repayments and new loan authorizations of monies 
available and set aside for economic development activities within the City. 

Enhanced Wireless 911: 
This fund is used to account for the activities of the City's E911 emergency communications 
system funded by a special telephone use fee imposed on all wireless user accounts. 

Community Development Grant: 
This fund is used to account for a federal grant received and expenditures made for the benefit 
of the Emmaus House. 

Project Development: 
This fund is used to account for all resources received and expenditures made for project 
development within the City. 

JAG Grant: 
This fund is used to account for resources received, including federal grants, and expenditures 
for improvements to upgrade the in car digital camera system in the City's police vehicles.
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Nonmajor Governmental Funds 

Capital Projects Funds 

The capital projects funds are used to account for the acquisition and construction of major capital 
facilities other than those financed by proprietary funds and trust funds. 

The following funds are used to account for the financing and construction of various street. storm 
drainage, sewer, wastewater and water distribution improvements within the City. Interim financing is 

provided by temporary notes until the projects are completed and included in subsequent general and 
limited obligation bond issues. 

2015 GO Bond Projects 
2015 Temporary Note Projects 
2014 GO Bond Projects 
2013 GO Bond Projects
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CITY OF GARDEN CITY, KANSAS 
Combinmg Balance Sheet 

Nonmajor Governmental Funds 
December 31, 2015 

Community Capital Special 
Trust Improvements Recreation Trafficway 

Assets 

Cash $ 496,300 $ 1.004.327 $ - S 739,210 
Investments, at far value 1,000,000 100,000 - 310,859 
Recenvables (net of allowances 

for uncollectibles). 
Taxes - - 860,781 177,566 
Other - _ _ 153 

Totalassets $ 1,496,300 $ 1,104,327 $ 860,781 $ 1327788 

Liabilities Deferred Inflows of 
Resources and Fund Balances 

Llablmles. 
Accounts payable $ 956 $ 19,208 $ - $ 16,246 
Advances from other funds - - — - 

Total liabilities 956 19,208 - 16,246 

Deferred inflows of resources‘ 
Unavailable revenue - property taxes - - 860,781 - 

Fund balances (deficits): 
Restricted: 

Recreatnon and parks — - — - 

Caputal improvement projects - - — 1.211.542 
Alcoholism preventnon and 

education programs - - - - 

Law enforcement - - - - 

Economic development activities - - - - 

Committed: 
Capntal improvement pI’O]eC1S 1.495,344 - - - 

Assigned. 
Capital Improvement projects - 1,085,119 - - 

Legal claims and settlements - - - - 

Unassugned - - - - 

Total fund balances (deficits) 1,495,344 1,085.119 - 1#211,542 

Total lnabilities, deferred Inflows of 
resources and fund balances $ 1,496,300 $ 1,104,327 $ 860,781 $ 1,227,788 

(continued)
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Special Revenues 
Finnup 
Trust 
Fund 

Special 
Liability 

124,689 78.345 

9,875 

124,689 88,220 

106 3,000 

106 3,000 

124,583 

124,583 85,220 

Special 
Improvements 

$ 50.913 

33,546 

$ 84,459 

5 . 

84,459 

84,459 

$ 84,459 

Special 
Alcohol 
Programs 

$ 77,018 

$ 77,018 

5 . 

77,018 

77,018 

$ 77,018 124,689 88,220
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CITY OF GARDEN CITY, KANSAS 
Combinmg Balance Sheet 

Nonmajor Governmental Funds 
December 31, 2015 

Community 
Drug DEA Development 

Enforcement Forfeiture Loan Fund 
Assets 

Cash $ 89,041 $ 36,449 $ 16.817 
Investments. at fair value - . . 

Receivables (net of allowances 
for uncollectibles). 
Taxes - — - 

Other - - - 

Total assets $ 89,041 $ 361449 $ 1§§17 

Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of 
Resources and Fund Balances 

Liabilities‘ 

Accounts payable $ 5,236 $ - $ — 

Advances from other funds - - - 

Total Iuabilities 5,236 - — 

Deferred Inflows of resources: 
Unavailable revenue - property taxes - - - 

Fund balances (deficits) 
Restricted: 

Recreation and parks - - 

Capital Improvement projects - — - 

Alcoholism prevention and 
education programs - - 

Law enforcement 83.805 36,449 - 

Economic development actuviues — 

Committed. 
Capital improvement DFOJGCIS - - 16.817 

Assigned. 
Capital improvement projects - 

Legal claims and settlements - - - 

Unassigned - - - 

Total fund balances (deficits) 83,805 36349 16,817 

Total liabilities. deferred inflows of 
resources and fund balances $ 89,041 $ 36,449 $ 1&_817 

(continued)
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Specual Revenues 
Enhanced Commumty 

Economic Wnreless 911 Development Project JAG 
Development Fund Grant Development Grant Totals 

$ 288.848 $ 393,729 $ - $ 654.335 $ 11,942 $ 4,158,897 
125.000 - - - - 1,550,458 

- - - - - 1,038,347 
- 33,480 - - - 77,054 

$ 413,848 $ 427,209 $ - $ 654,335 $ 11,942 $ 6,824,756 

$ - $ 9.515 $ - $ 13,219 $ - $ 67,486 

- 9,515 - 131219 — 67,486 

- . . - - 860,781 

_ - - - - 201,334 
- - - 641,116 11,942 1,899,382 

_ _ . - - 77,018 
_ 417594 - - - 537,948 

413,848 - - — - 413.848 

. - - - - 1,512,161 

_ _ _ _ - 1,169,578 
- - - - - 85.220 

413,848 417,694 - 641,116 11,942 5,896,489 

$ 413,848 $ 427,209 $ - $ 654,335 $ 11.942 $ 6,824,756
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CITY OF GARDEN CITY, KANSAS 
Combining Balance Sheet 

Nonmajor Governmental Funds 
December 31. 2015 

2015 
GO Bond 
Projects 

Assets 

Cash $ 
Investments, at fair value 
Receivables (net of allowances 

for uncollectibles) 
Taxes - 

Other - 

494,734 

Capital Projects 
2015 2014 

Temporary Note GO Bond 
Projects Projects 

$ 18,267 $ 620,015 

Total assets $ 494,734 

Liabulitnes Deferred Inflows of 
Resources and Fund Balances 

Liabilities: 

Accounts payable $ — 

Advances from other funds - 

Total liabilities 

Deferred inflows of resources: 
Unavaulable revenue - property taxes - 

Fund balances (deficns) 
Restricted: 

Recreation and parks 
Caputal improvement projects 
Alcoholism prevention and 

education programs — 

Law enforcement - 

Economic development activities - 

Committed. 
Capntal improvement projects - 

Assigned: 
Capital Improvement projects — 

Legal claims and settlements - 

Unassigned - 

494,734 

Total fund balances (deficits) 494,734 

Total Inabnluties. deferred inflows of 
resources and fund balances $ 494J7_134 

$ 18 267 $ 620,015 

~ $ 159.518 
25,000 - 

25,000 159,518 

460,497 

(6,733-) 

(61733) 460,497 

$ 18,267 $ 620,015 

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement
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Total 
2013 Nonmajor 

GO Bond Governmental 
Projects Totals Funds 

$ 58,079 $ 1,191,095 $ 5,349,992 
- - 1,550,458 

- - 1,038,347 
- — 77,054 

$ 58,079 1,191,095 $ 8,015,851 

$ - $ 159,518 $ 227,004 
- 25,000 25,000 

. 184,518 252,004 

— - 860,781 

- — 201.334 
58.079 1,013,310 2,912,692 

- - 77,018 
- - 537,948 
- - 413.848 

- - 1,512,161 

- - 1,169,578 
- 85,220 

- (6,733) (6,733_L 

58,079 1,006,577 6,903,066 

$ 58,079 $ 1,191,095 $ 8,015,851



Revenues: 
Taxes 
Intergovernmental revenue 
Use of money and property 
Miscellaneous 
Donations 
Sale of spaces 

Total revenues 

Expenditures: 
Current" 

General government 
Public safety 
Publuc works 
Parks and recreation 

Capital outlay 
Debt servuce 

Interest 
Bond issuance costs 

Total expendutures 

Revenues over (under) expenditures 

Other financing sources (uses). 
Transfers In 
Transfers out 
Bonds nssued 

Total other financnng sources (uses) 

Net change in fund balances 

Fund balances (deficit). beginning of year 

Fund balances (deficit). end of year 

CITY OF GARDEN CITY, KANSAS 
Combining Statemem of Revenues, Expendntures and Changes in Fund Balances 

Nonmajor Governmental Funds 
For the Year Ended December 31. 2015 

Community Capital Special 
Trust Improvements Recreation Trafficway 

$ - $ — $ 978,467 $ - 

612,630 — - 726,717 
21,496 11,224 465 

- - 2,257 
- 92,010 - 

634,126 103,234 9781467 729,439 

- - 626,060 
- — 978,467 — 

829.284 270.828 - 42.088 

829,284 270,828 978,467 668,148 

(195,158) (167,594) - 61,291 

40,000 312,281 - 

40,000 312,281 - - 

(155,158) 144,687 - 61.291 

1,650,502 940,432 - 1,150,251 

$ 1,495,344 $ 1,085,119 $ - $ 1,211,542 

(continued)
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Special Revenues 
Special Specual Finnup 

Special Cemetery Recreation Alcohol Trust Special 
Improvements Endowment and Parks Programs Fund Lnabnlnty 

$ - $ - $ — $ - $ - $ - 

224,705 - 106,874 106,874 - - 

- 1,011 13,675 - - - 

(9,417) - - - - - 

- - - - 104,000 - 

- 4,500 - - - 

215,288 5,511 120,549 106,874 104,000 — 

213,930 175 - 85.000 5,027 106,119 

- - 47,491 - - - 

- 923 20.000 - 64,346 - 

213,930 1,098 67,491 85,000 69,373 106,119 

1,358 4,413 53,058 21,874 34,627 (106,119) 

100,000 - - - 30.000 
- - (90.000) — - - 

100,000 - (90,000L - - 30.000 

101,358 4,413 (36,942) 21,874 34,627 (76,119) 

(16,899; 30,369 113,693 55,144 89,956 161,339 

$ 84,459 $ 34,782 $ 76,751 $ 77.018 $ 124,583 $ 85,220
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CITY OF GARDEN CITY, KANSAS 
Combining Statement of Revenues. Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances 

Nonmajor Governmental Funds 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2015 

Community 
Drug DEA Development 

Enforcement Forfenture Loan Fund 
Revenues: 

Taxes $ - - $ — 

Intergovernmental revenue 1,511 - - 

Use of money and property 57 15 4.820 
Miscellaneous 13.039 18.515 - 

Donations - - - 

Sale of spaces - - - 

Total revenues 14,607 18,530 4,820 

Expenditures; 
Current: 

General government - - 3,255 
Public safety 1,300 160 - 

Public works — - - 

Parks and recreation - - — 

Caputal outlay - - - 

Debt service. 
Interest - - - 

Bond issuance costs — - - 

Total expenditures 1,300 160 3,255 

Revenues over (under) expenditures 13,307 18,370 1,565 

Other financing sources (uses); 
Transfers m - - - 

Transfers out - - ' 

Bonds issued - - - 

Total other financing sources (uses) — - - 

Net change in fund balances 13.307 18.370 1.565 

Fund balances (deficit). beginning of year 70,498 18,079 15,252 

Fund balances (deficit), end of year $ 83,805 $ 36,449 $ 15.817 

(continued)
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Special Revenues 
Community 

Economic Enhanced Development Project JAG 
Development Wireless 911 Grant Development Grant Totals 

$ - $ — $ - $ 96,171 $ - $ 1,074,638 
- - — - 11,942 1,791,253 

27.747 — - 2.510 - 83,020 
- 182,371 - - - 206,765 
- - - - - 196.010 
- - - - - 4,500 

27,747 182,371 - 98,681 11,942 3,356,186 

667 154,054 - - - 568,227 
- - - - - 1,460 
- - - - - 626,060 
- - - - - 1,025,958 
- — - 232,565 - 1,460,034 

667 154,054 - 232,565 - 3,681,739 

27,080 28,317 - (133,8@ 11.942 (325,553) 

- - - 525.000 - 1,007,281 
— - - - - (90,000) 

- - - 525,000 - 917,281 

27.080 28.317 — 391,116 11,942 591,728 

386,768 389,377 - 250,000 - 5,304,761 

$ 413,848 $ 417,694 $ - $ 641,116 $ 11,942 $ 5,896,489
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CITY OF GARDEN CITY, KANSAS 
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Baiances 

Nonmajor Governmental Funds 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2015 

Revenues: 
Taxes 
Intergovernmental revenue 
Use of money and property 
Miscellaneous 
Donations 
Sale of spaces 

Total revenues 

Expenditures: 
Current: 

General government 
Public safety 
Public works 
Parks and recreation 

Capntal outlay 
Debt service: 

Interest 
Bond Issuance costs 

Total expenditures 

Revenues over (under) expenditures 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Transfers m 
Transfers out 
Bonds Issued 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

Net change In fund balances 

Fund balances (deficit), begmmng of year 

Fund balanoes (deficit). end of year 

Capital Projects 
2015 2015 2014 

GO Bond Temporary Note GO Bond 
Prggsts Projects Projects 

_ _ 5 - 

— 950,498 

- - 950,498 

- 164 1,209,023 

- 3 - 

- 6,566 ~ 

- 6133 1¢209,023 

- (6,73§L (258,525) 

- - (40,081) 
494,734 - - 

494,734 - (40,081) 

494,734 (6,733) (298,606) 

. - 759,103 

494,734 (Q33) $ 460,497 

The accompanynng Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral pan of this statement.
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Total 
2013 Nonmajor 

GO Bond Governmental 
Projects Totals Funds 

$ - $ - $ 1,074,638 
- - 1,791,253 
- - 83,020 
- - 206,765 
- 950,498 1,146,508 
- - 4500 

9501498 4L306,684 

- - 568.227 
- - 1,460 
- - 626,060 
- - 1,025,958 
- 1,209,187 2,669,221 

- 3 3 
- 6,566 6,566 

- 1,215,756 4,897,495 

- (265,258) (590,811L 

- - 1,007,281 
- (40,081) (130,081) 
- 494,734 494,734 

. 454,653 1,371,934 

- 189,395 781,123 

58.079 817,182 6,121,943 

$ 58,079 $ 1,006.57? $ 6,903,066



CITY OF GARDEN CITY, KANSAS 
Schedule of Revenues. Expenditures and Changes In 

Fund Balance — Budget and Actual 
Debt Service Fund 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2015 

Actual 
Amounts 

Budgeted Amounts Budgetary Variance with 
Original Final Basis Final Budget 

Revenues: 
Taxes $ 2,766,399 $ 2.766.399 $ 2,549,969 $ (216,430) 
Special assessment taxes 200.000 200.000 454,933 254,933 
Intergovernmental revenue 73,000 73,000 25,000 (48,000) 
Interest - - 7,373 7,373 
Miscellaneous - - 59,108 59,108 

Total revenues 3,039,399 3,039,399 31096383 56,984 

Expendnures: 
Distributions to developers - - 259,682 (259,682) 
Bond principal 1,797,310 1,797,310 1,790,910 6,400 
Bond interest 997,932 997.932 760,347 237,585 
Fiscal and bond ratnng fees 242,993 242,993 - 242,993 

Total expenditures 3,038,235 3,038,235 2,810,939 227,296 

Revenues over expenditures 1,164 1.164 285.444 284,280 

Other financmg sources (uses) 
Transfers out - - (100,000) (100,000) 

Net change in fund balances 1,164 1,164 185,444 184,280 

Fund balance, beginning of year 947,750 947,750 1,092,119 144,369 

Fund balance, end of year $ 948,914 $ 948314 $ 1,277,563 $ 328,649 

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of thus statement.
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CITY OF GARDEN CITY, KANSAS 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in 

Fund Balances - Budget and Actual 
2013 Schulman Crossing 2 Temporary Note Projects 

From Inception and For the Year Ended December 31, 2015 

Prior Current Total to Project 
Years Year Date Authorization 

Revenues: 
Use of money and property $ 5,138 $ 32375 $ 37,913 $ - 

Total revenues 5,138 32,775 37,913 - 

Expenditures 
Capital outlay: 

Construction contracts 8.766.783 838.661 9,605,444 7,205,285 
Engineering and other 344,738 76.638 421,376 1,988,715 

Debt service: 
Interest 88,076 88.076 176,152 146,000 
Bond Issuance costs 27,009 77,646 104,655 - 

Total expenditures 9,226,606 1,081,021 10,307,627 9,340,000 

Revenues over (under) 
expendntures (9,221,468) (1 ,048.246) (10.269,714) (9,340,000) 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Bonds issued - 9,445,266 9.445266 9,340,000 
Transfers in 1 ,176,883 - 1.175383 ' 

Net change in fund balance $ (8 044 585) 8,397,020 $ 352,435 $ - 

Fund balance (deficit), begmmng of year g8,044 5851 

Fund balance. end of year $ 352,435 

The accompanymg Notes to the Fnnancial Statements are an Integral part of this statement
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CITY OF GARDEN CITY. KANSAS 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in 

Fund Balances - Budget and Actual 
TIGER Grant Project 

From Inception and For the Year Ended December 31, 2015 

Prior Current Total to Project 
Years Year Date Authorization 

Revenues‘ 
Intergovernmental revenue $ — $ 6,295,757 $ 6i295,757 $ 15,469,963 

Total revenues - 8,295,757 6,295,757 15,469,963 

Expenditures: 
Capital outlay 

Construction contracts - 4,168,027 4,168,027 15,769,963 

Total expenditures - 4,168,027 4,168,027 15,769,963 

Revenues over (under) 
expenditures - 2,127,730 2,127,730 (300,000) 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Transfers in - 300,000 300,000 300,000 

Net change In fund balance $ - 2,427,730 $ 2,427,730 5 - 

Fund ba|ance. beginning of year - 

Fund balance, end of year $ 2 427 730 

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement
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Revenues: 
Intergovernmental revenue 
Use of money and property 

Total revenues 

Expenditures: 

CITY OF GARDEN CITY, KANSAS 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in 

Fund Balances - Budget and Actual 
Commumty Trust Fund 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2015 

Capntal outlay 

Total expenditures 

Revenues over (under) 
expenditures 

Other financing sources (uses). 
Transfers in 
Transfers out 

Net change in fund balance 

Fund balance. beginning of year 

Fund balance. end of year 

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement 

Actual 
Amounts 

Budgeted Amounts Budgetary Variance Wlth 
Ongnnal Final Basis Final Budget 

$ 770,000 $ 770,000 $ 612,630 $ (157,370) 
2,750 2,750 21,496 18,746 

772,750 772,750 634.126 (138.624) 

2,612,750 2,612,750 829,284 147835166 

2,612,750 2,612,750 829,284 1,783,466 

(1 ,840,000) (1,840,000) (195,158) 1,644,842 

340,000 340,000 40,000 (300,000) 
(200,000) (200,000) - 200,000 

(1 ,700.000) (1 .700,000) (155,158) 1,544,842 

1,700,000 L700,000 L650,502 (49,498) 

$ - $ - $ 1_495,344 $ 1,495,344
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CITY OF GARDEN CITY, KANSAS 
Schedule of Revenues. Expenditures and Changes in 

Fund Balances - Budget and Actual 
Capital Improvements Fund 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2015 

Actual 
Amounts 

Budgeted Amounts Budgetary Variance with 
Original Final Basis Final Budget 

Revenues: 
Use of money and property $ - $ - $ 11,224 $ 11,224 
Reimbursements 64.250 281.281 - (281,281) 
DOHBTIOFIS - - 92,010 92,01 0 
Miscellaneous 2,000 11L75O - 11L750 

Total revenues 66,250 293,031 103,234 (166,297) 

Expenditures‘ 
Capital outlay 132,250 250,000 270,828 (20,828) 

Total expenditures 132,250 250,000 270,828 (20,828) 

Revenues over (under) 
expenditures (66,000) 43,031 (167,594) (187,125) 

Other funancmg sources (uses) 
Transfers in - - 312,281 312,281 

Net change in fund balance (66,000) 43.031 144,687 125,156 

Fund balance. beginning of year 66.000 940,431 940,432 1 

Fund balance. end of year $ - $ 983,462 $ 1385119 $ 125,157 

The accompanynng Notes to the Financial Statements are an Integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF GARDEN CITY, KANSAS 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in 

Fund Balances - Budget and Actual 
Recreation Fund 

For the Year Ended December 31. 2015 

Actual 
Amounts 

Budgeted Amounts Budgetary Variance with 
Original Final Basis Final Budget 

Revenues‘ 
Taxes $ 967,136 $ 978,467 $ 978,467 $ - 

Total revenues 967,136 978,467 978,467 - 

Expenditures: 
Distnbution to organization's 

treasurer 967,136 978,467 978,467 - 

Total expenditures 967,136 978,467 978,467 - 

Revenues over expenditures - - - - 

Fund balance, begnnnnng of year - - - - 

Fund balance, end of year $ — $ - $ - $ - 

The accompanymg Notes to the Financial Statements are an Integral part of this statement.
99



Revenues. 
Intergovernmental revenue 
Use of money and property 
Reimbursements 
Miscellaneous 

Total revenues 

Expenditures: 
Current: 

Contractual servuces 
Commodities 

Capital outlay 

Total expenditures 

Revenues over (under) 
expenditures 

Fund balance. beginning of year 

Fund balance, end of year 

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement. 

CITY OF GARDEN CITY. KANSAS 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in 

Fund Balances - Budget and Actual 
Special Trafficway Fund 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2015 

Actual 
Amounts 

Budgeted Amounts Budgetary Variance with 
Original Final Basis Final Budget 

$ 675,000 $ 675.000 $ 724,287 $ 49.287 
600 600 465 (135) 

15,400 15,400 - (15,400) 
- - 2,257 2,257 

691 ,0O0 691,000 727,009 36,009 

146,100 146.100 108,195 37,905 
117,600 117.600 517.865 (400,265) 
610,300 610,300 42,088 568,212 

874,000 £3’/%4000 668,148 205,852 

(183,000) (183,000) 58,861 241,861 

822,249 822249 97535 152,866 

$ 639L249 $ 639,249 $ 1,033,976 $ 394,727 
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CITY OF GARDEN CITY, KANSAS 
Schedule of Revenues. Expenditures and Changes In 

Fund Balances - Budget and Actual 
Special Improvements Fund 

For the Year Ended December 31. 2015 

Actual 
Amounts 

Budgeted Amounts Budgetary Vanance with 
Origmal Final Basus Final Budget 

Revenues. 
Intergovernmental revenue $ - $ - $ 224,705 $ 224,705 
Miscellaneous 25,000 100,000 (9,417) (109,417) 

Total revenues 25,000 100,000 215,288 115,288 

Expendntures 
Current: 

Contractual services 30,000 83,100 213,930 (130,830) 

Total expenditures 30,000 83,100 213,930 (130,830) 

Revenues over (under) 
expenditures (5.000) 16.900 1,358 (15,542) 

Other financnng sources (uses). 
Transfers in - - 100,000 100,000 

Revenues over (under) expenditures 
and other sources (5.000) 16,900 101,358 84,458 

Fund balance (deficit). begnnning of year 5300 (16,900; 416.89% 1 

Fund balance. end of year $ - $ - $ 84,459 $ 8‘L£9 

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral pan of thus statement. 
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CITY OF GARDEN CITY. KANSAS 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes m 

Fund Balances - Budget and Actual 
Cemetery Endowment Fund 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2015 

Actual 
Amounts 

Budgeted Amounts Budgetary Vanance with 
Onglnal Final Basis Final Budget 

Revenues. 
Use of money and property $ 1,050 $ 1.050 $ 1,011 $ (39) 
Sale of spaces 5,000 5.000 4,500 (500) 

Total revenues 6,050 6.050 5,511 (539) 

Expenditures. 
Current: 

Commoditnes - - 175 (175) 
Capital outlay 16,100 16,100 923 151177 

Total expendntures 16,100 16,100 1,098 15,002 

Revenues over (under) 
expendntures (10,050) (10.050) 4,413 14,463 

Fund balance. begmnmg of year 30,051 30,051 30,369 318 

Fund balance, end of year $ 20,001 $ 20,001 $ 34,782 $ 14,781 

The accompanynng Notes to the Financial Statements are an Integral pan of this statement. 
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Revenues: 
Intergovernmental revenue 
Use of money and property 
Reimbursements 

Total revenues 

Expenditures. 
Current: 

Contractual services 
Capital outlay 

Total expendutures 

Revenues over (under) 
expenditures 

Other financing sources (uses)' 
Transfers out 

Net change in fund balance 

Fund balance. beginning of year 

Fund balance, end of year 

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of thus statement. 

CITY OF GARDEN CITY, KANSAS 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in 

Fund Balances - Budget and Actual 
Special Recreation and Parks Fund 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2015 

Actual 
Amounts 

Budgeted Amounts Budgetary Variance with 
Original Fmal Basis Fmal Budget 

$ 80,000 $ 105.000 $ 106,874 $ 1.874 
- - 13,675 13.675 

12,158 12,750 - (12,750) 

92,158 117,750 120549 21799 

42,000 85,000 47,491 37,509 
344500 40,000 20,000 20,000 

76,500 125,000 67,491 57,509 

15,658 (7,250) 53.058 60.308 

(25,000) fl0,0001 (90,000) (20,000) 

(9,342) (77,250) (36,942) 40,308 

9,342 113,693 113,693 - 

$ . $ 35,443 $ 76,751 $ 4308 
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Revenues: 
Intergovernmental revenue 

Total revenues 

Expenditures. 
Current: 

Contractual services 

Total expenditures 

Revenues over (under) 
expenditures 

Fund balance. beginning of year 

Fund balance. end of year 

The accompanying Notes to the Fmancial Statements are an integral part of this statement 

CITY OF GARDEN CITY, KANSAS 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in 

Fund Balances - Budget and Actual 
Special Alcohol Programs Fund 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2015 

Actual 
Amounts 

Budgeted Amounts Budgetary Variance with 
Onginal Final Basis Final Budget 

$ 80,000 $ 80,000 $ 106,874 $ 26,874 

80,000 80,000 106,874 26,874 

85,205 85,205 85,000 205 

85,205 85,205 85,000 205 

(5,205) (5,205) 21,874 27,079 

35,206 35,206 53144 1L938 

$ 30,001 $ 301001 $ 7lL018 $ 47,017 
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CITY OF GARDEN CITY, KANSAS 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in 

Fund Balances - Budget and Actual 
Finnup Trust Fund 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2015 

Actual 
Amounts 

Budgeted Amounts Budgetary Variance with 
Original Final Basis Final Budget 

Revenues’ 
Renmbursements $ 13,800 $ 13.800 $ - $ (13,800) 
Donations 95,000 95,000 104,000 9,000 

Total revenues 108,800 1084800 104,000 (4,800) 

Expenditures: 
Current: 

Personnel services - - 5,027 (5.027) 
Capital outlay 108,800 108L800 64,346 44,454 

Total expenditures 108,800 108,800 69373 39,427 

Revenues over expenditures - - 34,627 34,627 

Fund balance. beginning of year _ - 89,956 89,956 

Fund balance. end of year $ - $ - $ 124,583 $ 124,583 

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral pan ofthis statement. 
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CITY OF GARDEN CITY, KANSAS 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in 

Fund Balances - Budget and Actual 
Special Liability Fund 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2015 

Actual 
Amounts 

Budgeted Amounts Budgetary Variance with 
Original Fnnal Basis Final Budget 

Revenues. 
Reimbursements $ 30,000 $ 30,000 $ - $ (30,000) 

Total revenues 30,000 30,000 - (30,000) 

Expendntures. 
Current 

Contractual services 146,000 146,000 106,119 394881 

Total expenditures 146,000 146L000 106,119 39,881 

Revenues over (under) 
expenditures (116,000) (116,000) (106,119) 9,881 

Other fmancnng sources (uses)' 
Transfers In - 30,000 30,000 

Net change in fund balance (116,000) (116.000) (76,119) 39.881 

Fund balance. beginning of year 116,000 116,000 161,339 45,339 

Fund balance. end of year $ - $ - $ 85.220 $ 85,220 

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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Revenues 
Intergovernmental revenue 
Use of money and property 
Miscellaneous 

Total revenues 

Expenditures. 
Current‘ 

Contractual services 

Total expenditures 

Revenues over (under) 
expenditures 

Fund balance, beginning of year 

Fund balance. end of year 

The accompanynng Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement. 

CITY OF GARDEN CITY, KANSAS 
Schedule of Revenues. Expenditures and Changes nn 

Fund Balances - Budget and Actual 
Drug Enforcement Fund 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2015 

Actual 
Amounts 

Budgeted Amounts Budgetary Variance with 
Original Final Basis Final Budget 

$ — - $ 1,511 $ 1,511 
50 50 57 7 

18,500 18,500 13,039 (5,461) 

18,550 18,550 14,607 (3,943) 

25,600 25,600 1,300 24,300 

25,600 25,600 1,300 24,300 

(7,050) (7.050) 13.307 20,357 

7,050 7,050 70,498 63,448 

$ - - $ 83,805 $ 83,805 

107



CITY OF GARDEN CITY, KANSAS 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in 

Fund Balances - Budget and Actual 
DEA Forfeiture Fund 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2015 

Actual 
Amounts 

Budgeted Amounts Budgetary Variance with 
Original Final Basis Final Budget 

Revenues: 
Use of money and propeny $ 50 $ 50 $ 15 $ (35) 
Miscellaneous 15,000 15,000 18,515 3,515 

Total revenues 15,050 15,050 18,530 3,480 

Expenditures. 
Current: 

Contractual services 36,800 36,800 160 36,640 

Total expenditures 36,800 36,800 160 36,640 

Revenues over (under) 
expenditures (21,750) (21,750) 18,370 40,120 

Fund balance. beginning of year 21,750 21,750 18.079 (3,671) 

Fund balance. end of year $ - $ - $ 36,449 $ 36,449 

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral pan of this statement. 
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Revenues: 
Use of money and property 

Total revenues 

Expendutures: 
Current: 

Contractual services 

Total expenditures 

Revenues over (under) 
expenditures 

Fund ba|ance, begnnmng of year 

Fund balance. end of year 

The accompanyung Notes to the Fnnancnal Statements are an integral part of this statement. 

CITY OF GARDEN CITY, KANSAS 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in 

Fund Balances - Budget and Actual 
Community Development Loan Fund 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2015 

Actual 
Amounts 

Budgeted Amounts Budgetary Variance with 
Original Final Basis Final Budget 

$ 6,250 $ 6,250 $ 4,820 $ (1 ,430) 

6,250 6,250 4,820 (1,430) 

20,000 20.000 3,255 16,745 

20,000 20,000 3,255 16,745 

(13,750) (13,750) 1.565 15.315 

13,750 1fi50 15,252 1,502 

$ - $ - $ 16,817 $ 16.817 
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CITY OF GARDEN CITY, KANSAS 
Schedule of Revenues, Expendntures and Changes in 

Fund Balances - Budget and Actual 
Economic Development Fund 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2015 

Actual 
Amounts 

Budgeted Amounts Budgetary Variance with 
Original Final Basis Fmal Budget 

Revenues 
Use of money and propeny $ 4,250 $ 4,250 $ 27,747 $ 23,497 

Total revenues 4,250 4,250 27,747 23,497 

Expenditures. 
Current‘ 

Contractual 226,750 226,750 667 226,083 

Total expendntures 226, 750 2261750 667 226,083 

Revenues over (under) 
expenditures (222,500) (222,500) 27,080 249,580 

Fund balance. beginning of year 222,500 222,500 386,768 164L268 

Fund balance. end of year $ - $ - $ 413.848 $ 413.848 

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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Revenues: 
Miscellaneous 

Total revenues 

Expenditures: 
Current: 
Capital outlay 

Total expendutures 

Revenues over (under) 
expenditures 

Fund balance. beginning of year 

Fund balance, end of year 

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an Integral part of this statement. 

CITY OF GARDEN CITY, KANSAS 
Schedule of Revenues. Expenditures and Changes in 

Fund Balances - Budget and Actual 
Enhanced Wireless 911 Fund 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2015 

Actual 
Amounts 

Budgeted Amounts Budgetary Vanance with 
Original Final Basis Final Budget 

$ 180,846 $ 180,846 $ 178,540 $ (2,306) 

180,846 180,846 178,540 @306) 

242,000 242,000 154,054 87,946 

242,000 242,000 154,054 87,946 

(61,154) (61,154) 24,486 85.640 

231,154 231,154 359,728 128,574 

$ 170,000 $ 170,000 $ 384,214 $ 214,214 
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CITY OF GARDEN CITY, KANSAS 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes In 

Fund Balances - Budget and Actual 
Community Development Grant Fund 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2015 

Actual 
Amounts 

Budgeted Amounts Budgetary Variance with 
Original Final Basis Final Budget 

Revenues: 
Intergovernmental revenue $ 50,000 $ 50,000 $ - $ (50,000) 

Total revenues 50,000 50,000 - (50,000) 

Expenditures: 
Current: 

Contractual 50.000 50.000 - 50,000 

Total expenditures 50,000 50,000 - 50,000 

Revenues over expendnures - - - - 

Fund balance, beginning of year - - — - 

Fund balance, end of year $ - $ — $ - $ — 

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an Integral part of this statement. 
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CITY OF GARDEN CITY. KANSAS 
Schedule of Revenues. Expenditures and Changes nn 

Fund Balances - Budget and Actual 
Project Development Fund 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2015 

Actual 
Amounts 

Budgeted Amounts Budgetary Variance wuth 
Origmal Final Basis Final Budget 

Revenues‘ 
Taxes $ 100,075 $ - $ 96,171 $ 96,171 
Use of money and property 1,925 2,344 2,510 166 

Total revenues 102,000 2,344 98,681 96,337 

Expenditures 
Current: 

Contractual 102,000 17.344 - 17.344 
Capital outlay - 525,000 232,565 292,435 

Total expenditures 102,000 542,344 232,565 309,779 

Revenues over (under) 
expenditures - (540,000) (133.884) 406,1 16 

Other financing sources (uses). 
Transfers in - 525,000 525,000 - 

Net change in fund balance - (15,000) 391,116 406.116 

Fund balance. beginning of year 250.000 250,000 250,000 - 

Fund balance, end of year $ 250,000 $ 235,000 $ 641,116 $ 406.116 

The accompanymg Notes to the Financial Statements are an Integral part of this statement. 
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CITY OF GARDEN CITY, KANSAS 
Schedule of Revenues, Expendutures and Changes in 

Fund Balances - Budget and Actual 
2015 GO Bond PFOJGCTS 

From Inceptnon and For the Year Ended December 31, 2015 

Pnor Current Total to Project 
Years Year Date Authorization 

Revenues 
Use of money and propeny $ - $ - $ - $ - 

Total revenues - - - - 

Expenditures: 
Capital outlay‘ 

Construction contracts - - - 494,737 

Total expenditures _ _ _ 494,737 

Revenues over (under) 
expenditures - - - (494,737) 

Other financing sources (uses). 
Bonds issued - 494,734 494,734 494,737 

Net change in fund balance $ - 494,734 $ 494,734 $ 

Fund balance. beginning of year - 

Fund balance, end of year $ 494 734 

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral pan of this statement 
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CITY OF GARDEN CITY, KANSAS 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in 

Fund Balances - Budget and Actual 
2015 Temporary Note Projects 

From Inception and For the Year Ended December 31, 2015 

Prior Current Total to Project 
Years Year Date Authorization 

Revenues: 
Use of money and property :5 - $ - $ — $ - 

Total revenues - - - - 

Expenditures 
Capital outlay’ 

Construction contracts - 164 164 2,250,000 
Engineering and other - - - 2.400.000 

Debt service: 
Interest - 3 3 - 

Bond issuance costs - 6,566 6,566 - 

Total expenditures - 6,733 6,733 4,650,000 

Revenues over (under) 
expenditures - (6.733) (6,733) (4,650,000) 

Other financing sources (uses)' 
Bonds issued - - - 4,550.000 

Net change in fund balance $ - (6,733) $ (6L733) $ - 

Fund balance. beginning of year - 

Fund balance (defucnt), end of year $ $6 7332 

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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CITY OF GARDEN CITY, KANSAS 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in 

Fund Balances - Budget and Actual 
2014 (30 Bond Projects 

From Inception and For the Year Ended December 31. 2015 

Pnor Current Total to Project 
Years Year Date Authorization 

Revenues 
Donations $ - $ 950,498 $ 950,498 $ - 

Total revenues - 950,498 950,498 - 

Expenditures‘ 
Capital outlay: 

Construction contracts 286,655 1,209,023 1.495.678 2,760,000 
Debt service‘ 

Bond issuance costs 38,637 - 38,637 43,800 

Total expenditures 325,292 12091023 1 ,534,315 2,803,800 

Revenues under expendntures (325,292) (258,525) (583,817) (2,803,800) 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Bonds issued 1,084,395 - 1,084,395 2,803,800 
Transfers out - (40,081) (40,081) - 

Net change In fund balance $ 759 103 (298,606) $ 460,497 $ - 

Fund balance, begmnmg of year 759,103 

Fund balance, end of year $ 460 497 

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement 
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CITY OF GARDEN CITY, KANSAS 
Schedule of Revenues. Expenditures and Changes in 

Fund Balances - Budget and Actual 
2013 GO Bond Projects 

From Inception and For the Year Ended December 31. 2015 

Pnor Current Total to Project 
Years Year Date Authorization 

Revenues" 
Use of money and propeny $ 103,875 $ - $ 103,875 $ - 

Total revenues 103,875 - 103,875 - 

Expenditures: 
Caputal outlay‘ 

Construction contracts 1.469.762 - 1,469,762 7,568.000 
Debt service. 
Bond issuance costs 72,627 - 72,627 - 

Total expendntures 1,542,389 - 11542389 7§68,000 

Revenues over (under) 
expenditures (1 _438.514) - (1 ,438.514) (7,568,000) 

Other financing sources (uses) 
Bonds Issued 1,526,831 - 1,526,831 7,568,000 
Transfers out (30,238) - (30,23§L - 

Net change in fund balance $ 58 079 - $ 58,079 $ - 

Fund balance. beginning of year 58 079 

Fund balance, end of year $ 58 079 

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement 
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Proprietary Funds 

Nonmajor Enterprise Funds 

The enterprise funds are used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner 
similar to private business enterprises where the intent of the government's council is that the costs of 
providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered 
primarily through user charges; or where the government's council has decided that periodic 
determination of net income is appropriate for accountability purposes. 

The nonmajor enterprise funds used by the City of Garden City, Kansas, are: 

Solid Waste Utility: 
This fund is used to account for the revenues generated and costs incurred in operating the City 
owned solid waste disposal and recycling operations. 

Recreation Area: 
This fund is used to account for the fees generated and expenditures incurred in the operation of the 
City-owned municipal golf course. The recreation area department includes the Golf Course 
Building fund which is used to account for a portion of the fees collected that are dedicated to the 
repayment of the golf course club house. 

Dramage Utility: 
This fund is used to account for the revenues generated and costs incurred in operating the City's 
drainage utility. 
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CITY OF GARDEN CITY, KANSAS 
Combinrng Statement of Net Position 

Nonmajor Propnetary Funds 
December 31, 2015 

Business-type Activities - Enterprnse Funds 
Solid 
Waste Recreation Drainage 
Utility Area Utility Totals 

Assets 

Current assets 
Cash $ 1,579,394 $ 10,757 $ 346,146 $ 1,936,297 
Investments, at fair value 200,000 - 100.000 300.000 
Restricted assets. 

Cash - 11.616 - 11,616 
Accounts receuvable 203,924 1,800 12,324 218,048 

Total current assets 1 ,983,318 24,173 458,470 2,465,961 

Caputal assets. 
Land 68,500 - 70,000 138,500 
Productnon, storage and dnstnbution 

equipment - - 347,612 347,612 
Less accumulated depreciation - - (110,952) (110,952) 

Golf course. club house and equipment - 1,726,389 - 1.726.389 
Less accumulated deprecnation - (1,118,846) - (1,118,846) 

Vehicles and equipment 2,070,594 1,755,224 - 3,825,818 
Less accumulated depreciation (1 372,495) (270,370) - (1,642,865) 

Containers 4,279,291 - - 4,279,291 
Less accumulated depreciation (21501 ,601) _ - (2,501 ,601L 

Total capital assets 2,544,289 2,092,397 306,660 4,943,346 

Total assets $ 4,527,607 $ 2,116,570 $ 765,130 $ 7,409,307 

Liabilities 

Current liabilities‘ 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 114,525 $ 7.908 $ 599 $ 123.032 
Current portion of capital leases payable - 7,604 - 7,604 

Total current Inabnlitnes 114,525 15,512 599 130,636 

Noncurrent Iiabnlnties; 
Capital leases payable - 7,986 - 7,986 

Total liabilities 114,525 23L498 599 138,622 

Net Position 

Net investment in capital assets 2,544,289 2,076,807 306,660 4.927.756 
Unrestncted 1,8_68,793 16,265 457,871 ;g2.929 

Total net position 4J4_1 3,082 2,093,072 764,531 7,270,685 

Total liabilities and net posmon $ 4,527,607 $ 2,116,570 $ 765,130 $ 7,409,307 

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an Integral part of this statement. 
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CITY OF GARDEN CITY, KANSAS 
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position 

Nonmajor Proprietary Funds 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2015 

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds 
Solid 
Waste Recreation Drainage 
Utility Area Utility Totals 

Operating revenues 
Charges for services $ 3,576,582 $ - $ 209,763 $ 3.786.345 
Miscellaneous 3,036 2,425 - 5.461 
Membership and fees — 394,096 - 394.096 
Concessions - 78,602 - 78,602 

Total operating revenues 3,579,618 475,123 209,763 4,264,504 

Operating expenses 
Personnel serwces 1,360,059 601,847 75,564 2,037,470 
Contractual services 1 ,O20,412 91,438 37,553 1,149,403 
Commodities 200,824 244,884 49.369 495.077 
Depreciation 280575 100,768 20,711 401 ,954 

Total operating expenses 2,861,770 1,038,937 183,197 4,083,904 

Operaung income (loss) 717L848 (563,814) 26,566 180,600 

Nonoperating revenues: 
Interest mcome 1,466 - 250 1,716 
Rent and royalties - 3.200 - 3.200 
Sale of materials 49,700 200 - 49.900 
Gain on disposal of assets 9,242 - - 9,242 

Total nonoperatmg 
revenues 60,408 3,400 250 64,058 

income (loss) before 
operating transfers 778.256 (560,414) 26,816 244,658 

Transfers nn - 490.000 - 490,000 
Transfers out (171,600) - - (171500) 

Change in net position 606,656 (70.414) 26,816 563.058 

Total net position, beginning of year 3,806,426 2@3,486 737,715 6,707,627 

Total net position, end of year $ 4,413,082 $ 2,093,072 $ 764.531 $ 7,270,685 

The accompanying Notes to the Financnal Statements are an integral part of this statement 
120



CITY OF GARDEN CITY, KANSAS 
Combnning Statement of Cash Flows 

Nonmajor Proprietary Funds 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2015 

Business-type Actnvities - Enterprise Funds 
Solid 
Waste Recreation Drainage 
Utility Area Utility Totals 

Cash flows from operating actuvmes: 
Receipts from customers $ 3,524,320 $ 522,698 $ 214,544 $ 4261.562 
Other receipts 3,036 2_425 - 5_451 
Payments to suppliers (1,195,134) (340,776) (88,305) (1,624,215) 
Payments for personnel services (1 ,360,059) (601,847) (75,564) (2lO37,470) 

Net cash provided (used) by 
operating activities 972,163 (417,500) 50,675 605,338 

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities 
Transfers In - 490,000 - 490,000 
Transfers out (171,600) — - (171,600) 

Net cash provided (used) by noncaputal 
. financing activities (171,600) 490,000 - 3181400 

Cash flows from caputal and related fmancing activmes: 
Receipts from sale of materials 49,700 200 - 49,900 
Purchases of property, plant 

and equipment (556,396) (31,646) - (588,042) 
Payment of long-term debt - (39,562) - (39,562) 

Net cash provided (used) by capvtal 
and related financing actlvmes (506,696) (71 ,O08) - (577,704) 

Cash flows from investing activities. 
Interest income 1,466 - 250 1,716 
Proceeds from sale of Investments 200,000 - 100.000 300.000 
Purchase of Investments (200.000) - (100,000) (300,000) 
Rents and royalties - 3,200 - 3,200 

Net cash provnded (used) by 
mvestung activities 1,466 3,200 250 4,916 

Net increase in cash 295,333 4,692 50,925 350,950 
Cash. beginning of year 1,284,061 17,681 295,221 1,596,963 

Cash. end of year $ 1,579,394 $ 22,373 $ 346,146 $ 1,947,913 

Statement of net position classification‘ 
Current assets $ 1,579,394 $ 10,757 $ 346,146 S 1.936.297 
Restncted assets — 11,616 - 11,616 

Total cash, end of year $ 1,579,394 $ 22,373 $ 346,146 $ 1,947,913 

Reconcnlatuon of operating Income (loss) to net cash 
provided (used) by operating actnviitues 
Operating income (loss) $ 717,848 $ (563,814) $ 26,566 $ 180.600 
Adjustments to reconcnle operating Income to 

net cash provided (used) by operating actnvmes 
Depreciation 280,475 100,768 20,711 401,954 
Change in assets and habilities: 

Increase in receivabies (52,262) 50,000 4.781 2.519 
Increase (decrease) in 

accounts payable 26,102 (4,454) (1.383) 20,265 
Net cash provided (used) by 

operating activities $ 972,163 $ (417,500) $ 50,675 $ 605,338 

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an Integral part of thus statement. 
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Proprietary Funds 

Internal Service Funds 

The internal service funds are used to account for the financing of goods or services provided by one 
department or agency to other departments or agencies of the City or to other governmental units on a 
cost-reimbursement basis. The internal service funds used by the City of Garden City, Kansas, are: 

Health Insurance: 
This fund is used to account for the City's departmental billings made monthly on a set amount per 
employee and expended on qualified medical costs as provided for in the City's self-insured health 
insurance program. 

Workers Compensation: 
This fund is used to account for transfers from the Employee Benefit fund used to pay qualified 
expenditures as provided for in the City's worker's compensation program. 
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Assets 

Current assets: 
Cash 
Investments 

Total assets 

Liabilities 

Current liabilities: 
Accounts payable 

Noncurrent Iiabilmes: 
Net OPEB obligation 

Total habilitnes 

Net Posntion 

Restricted for health insurance 
Restricted for workers compensation 

Total net posituon 

Total liabilnties and net posmon 

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement. 

CITY OF GARDEN CITY, KANSAS 
Combming Statement of Net Position 

Internal Service Funds 
December 31. 2015 

Health Workers 
Insurance Compensation Totals 

$ 1.920.015 $ 762.904 2,682,919 
— 125,000 125,000 

$ 1,920,015 $ 887,904 2,807,919 

$ 3,641 $ 767 4,408 

1,525,023 - 1,525,023 

1,528,664 767 1,529,431 

391,351 - 391,351 
- 887,137 887,137 

391,351 887L137 1,278,488 

$ 1,920,015 $ 887,904 2LO7,919 
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CITY OF GARDEN CITY. KANSAS 
Combimng Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position 

Internal Service Funds 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2015 

Operating revenues: 
Department bulhngs 
Miscellaneous 

Total operating revenues 

Operating expenses: 
Contractual 

Total operating expenses 

Operating income 

Nonoperatnng revenues. 
Interest Income 

Change in net p0Sit|On 

Total net position (deficit), beginning of year 

Total net position. end of year 

Health Workers 
Insurance Compensation Total 

$ 3,943,661 $ 440,250 $ 4,383,911 

3,943,661 440,250 4,383,911 

3,480,689 230,044 3,710,733 

3,480,689 230,044 3,710,733 

462,972 210,206 673,178 

- 156 156 

462,972 210,362 673,334 

(71 ,621l 65775 605,154 

$ BQE31 $ 887,137 $ L_N8,488 

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral pan of this statement. 
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CITY OF GARDEN CITY, KANSAS 
Combnnung Statement of Cash Flows 

Internal Servuce Funds 
For the Year Ended December 31. 2015 

Cash flows from operating actnvitues’ 
Other receipts 
Claims paid 

Net cash provided by operating actnvmes 

Cash flows from nnvestmg activmes. 
Interest income 

Net cash provided by Investing activities 

Net Increase In cash 

Cash, beginning of year 

Cash, end of year 

Reconcnlatnon of operating loss to net cash 
used by operating actuvnties. 
Operating Income 
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss 

to net cash used by operating activities. 
(Increase) decrease in accounts payable 
Increase in net OPEB obligation 

Net cash provided by operating actnvxtues 

Health Workers 
Insurance Compensation Total 

$ 3,943,661 $ 440,250 $ 4,383,911 
(3,232,789) (229,971) (3L462,760) 

710,872 210,279 921,151 

- 156 156 

- 156 156 

710,872 210,435 921,307 

1,209,143 552,469 1,761,612 

$ 1,920,015 $ 762,904 $ 2,682,919 

$ 462,972 $ 210.206 $ 673,178 

(274) 73 (201) 
248,174 - 248,174 

$ 710,872 $ 210,279 $ 921,151 

The accompanymg Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement 
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Fiduciary Funds 

Agency Funds 
The agency funds are used to account for short-term custodial collections of resources on behalf of 
another individual, entity or government. The agency funds used by the City of Garden City, Kansas. 
are: 

Payroll Clearing: 
This fund is used to account for employee earnings and related benefits which are then distributed to 
the corresponding City departments. 

Bail Bonds: 
This fund is used to account for monies held as bail bonds by the police department. 

Sndewalk Construction: 
This fund is used to account for monies received by the City for sidewalk construction projects. 

Special Investigations: 
This fund is used to account for monies received by the police department, all of which are to be 
expended for drug control and special investigation type expenditures. 

Section 125: 
This fund is used to account for employee withholdings under the Section 125 plan. 

Employee Flower: 
This fund is used to account for monies received from employee vending machines and other fees, 
which are to be expended for employee memorials and recognition type expenditures. 
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Payroll Clearing: 
Assets 

Cash 

Liabilities 
Accounts payable 

Bail Bonds: 
Assets 

Cash 

Liabilities 
Accounts payable 

Sidewalk Construction: 
Assets 

Cash 

Liabilities 
Accounts payable 

Special Investigations: 
Assets 

Cash 

Liabilities 
Accounts payable 

Section 125: 
Assets 

Cash 

Liabilities 
Accounts payable 

Employee Flower: 
Assets 

Cash 

Liabilities 
Accounts payable 

Totals: 
Assets 

Cash 

Liabilities 
Accounts payable 

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of thus statement. 

CITY OF GARDEN CITY, KANSAS 
Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Lnabihties 

Agency Funds 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2015 

Balance Balance 
01-01-15 Additions Deductions 12-31-15 

$ 40,271 $ 14,226,324 $ 141231315 35,280 

$ 40,271 $ 14,226,324 $ 14,231,315 35,280 

$ 157,841 $ 277,540 $ 235,891 199,490 

$ 157,841 $ 277,540 $ 235,891 199,490 

$ 925 $ - $ 15 910 

$ 925 $ ' $ 15 910 

$ 4,578 $ 15,138 $ 11,520 8,196 

$ 4,578 3 15,138 $ 11,520 8,195 

$ 47,524 $ 152,075 $ 156,539 43i60 

$ 47,524 $ 152,075 $ 156,539 43,050 

$ 1,515 $ 7,120 $ 7,071 1,554 

$ 1,515 $ 7,120 $ 7,071 1,564 

$ 252.554 $ 14,578,197 $ 14,642,351 283,500 

$ 252,654 $ 14,678,197 $ 14,642,351 288,500 
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Supplementary Information 

The Supplementary Information is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required 
part of the basic financial statements of the City of Garden City, Kansas. 
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CITY OF GARDEN CITY, KANSAS 
Schedule of Investments 
December 31, 2015 

Idle Funds 
Certnfncates of deposit 

Total Idle Funds investments 

Special Revenue Funds 
Community Trust - Certnfncates of deposnt 
Capital Improvement - Cemfucates of deposnt 
Specnal Trafficway - Cenifucates of deposnt 
Cemetery Endowment - Certificates of deposit 
Economic Development - Certificates of deposit 

Total Special Revenue Funds Investments 

Electric Utilig 
General - Temporary notes 
Security Deposnt - Certificates of deposnt 

Total Electnc Utmty Investments 

Solid Waste Utility 
General - Certificates of deposit 

Drainage Utilug 
General - Certificates of deposnt 

Workers Compensatnon Reserve 
Certificates of deposit 

Total investment - all funds 

129 

$ 51137 279 

5137 279 ::__J.:._J—;__ 

1,000,000 
100.000 
310.859 
14.599 

125 000 

1 550 458 

25,000 
100 000 

125 000 

200 000 

100 000 

125 000 

$ 7 237 737



CITY OF GARDEN CITY, KANSAS 
Comparison of Cash Balances Wlth Encumbrances and Composition of Cash 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2015 

Qggrahng 
General 

Qebl Servuce Fund 
Bond and Interest 

figcaal Revenue Funds 
Community Tmsl 
Capnal Improvements 
Recrealuon 
Specnal Yrafficway 
SDCCIEI Improvements 
Cemetery Endowment 
Specnal Recreanon and Parks 
Specual Alcohol Pvograms 
Flnnup Trust Fund 
Specnal Lnabnlnty 
Drug Enforcement 
DEA Forfeiture 
Cornmunny Development Loan Fund 
Economic Development 
Enhanced Wireless 911 
Communny Development Grant 
Progect Development 
JAG Gran! 

Total Specnal Revenue 

ggapntal Pro ems Funds 
2013 Schulman Crossmg 2 

Temporary Note Progects 
TIGER Grant Project 
2015 GO Bond Projects 
2015 Temporary Note Proyecls 
2014 G0 Bond Progecls 
2013 GO Bond Proiects 

Total Capnal Pro]ecls 

En1emn§e Fgng§ 
Electnc Uhlny 

General 
Secunty Deposits 
Operaung Capnal Reserve 

Tolal Eleclnc Ulnlny 

Water and Sewer Unmy 
General 
Water and Sewage Maintenance 

Reserve 
Wastewaler Repaur and Replacement 

Total Water and Sewer Uumy 

Aurpon 
General 
Anrpon Improvement 

Total Aurpon 

Solud Waste Utlluty 
General 

Recleanon Area 
General Govt Course 
Golt Course Bunldnng 

Total Recreation Area 

Dvannage Uulny 
General 

Unencumbered Unencumbered 
Cash Balance Receipts Expenditures Cash Balance Add Payables Treasurers 

(Deficit) and and (Defuat) and Cash 
01-01-15 Transfers Transfers 12-31-15 Encumbrances 12-31-15 

5 4 989 108 S 21 985 269 5 22,008 769 S 4 965 608 S 858 946 $ 5 824 554 

1092119 3 096 383 2 910 939 1277 563 1,277,563 

1,650,502 674.126 829.284 1.495.344 956 1.496.300 
940.432 415.515 270.828 1.085.119 19.208 1.104.327 

- 978,467 978,467 ~ - - 

975,115 727.009 668.148 1.033.976 16.246 1.050.222 
(16,899) 315.288 213.930 84.459 - 84,459 
30.369 5.511 1098 34.782 34.782 
113 693 120.549 157,491 76.751 76 751 
55 144 106,874 85.000 77.018 - 77.018 
89.956 104.000 69.373 124.583 106 124.689 
161 339 30.000 106.119 85.220 3.000 88.220 
70.498 14.607 1,300 83.805 5.236 89.041 
18.079 18.530 160 36,449 - 36.449 
15.252 4.820 3.255 16,817 16.817 

386,768 27,747 667 413,848 - 413.848 
359,728 178,540 154.054 384.214 9.515 393,729 

250.000 623 681 232.565 641 116 13219 654335 
- 11942 ~ 11942 - 11,942 

5 099 976 4 357 206 3_771,739 5,685 443 67 486 5,752,929 

1,295,415 9.478.041 10.-121.021 352 435 744 353.179 
- 6.595.757 4.168.027 2.427 730 4.168.027 6.595.757 

494734 - 494 734 - 494,734 
- 25.000 6.733 18,267 . 18.267 

759.103 950.498 1.249.104 460497 159518 620015 
58 079 - - 58 079 - 58,079 

2,112 597 17,544 030 15_844,§85 3 811 742 4,328 289 8 140,031 

5188.167 31 .-150,840 28.577545 8 061.362 968,909 9,030,271 
467.473 323,850 287,763 503,560 - 503.560 
750,000 750,000 — 1,500,000 1 500 000 

6 405 640 32 524 690 28 865,408 10 064 922 968 909 11,033,831 

4.592.783 8.161.138 9.324.054 3.429.867 434.934 3.864.801 

372.046 226.825 150000 448871 448.871 
317 766 132 267 200,000 250 033 250 033 

5 282 595 8 520 230 9 674 054 4 128 771 434 934 4,563 705 

521,676 1.482.095 844,549 1,159,222 29.427 1.188.649 
98 759 1 143 617 1 204,782 37,594 - 37 594 

620 435 2,625_712 2 049 331 1 196 816 29 427 1 226 243 

1 395 920 3 578 660 3 309 291 1 665 289 114 525 1 779 814 

50.162 962.064 1.009.377 2.849 7.908 10.757 
5957 3459 — 13416 - 13416 

57 119 968 523 1 009 377 16 265 7 908 24,173 

399 385 208 713 162 486 445 612 599 446 211 

(continued) 
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CITY OF GARDEN CITY. KANSAS 
Companson of Cash Balances Wlth Encumbrances and Composition of Cash 

For the Year Ended December 31. 2015 

Unencumbered Unencumbered 
Cash Balance RECEIDIS Expendxlures Cash Balance Add Payables Treasurers 

(Deficn) and and (Deficit) and Cash 
Egrlg 01-01-15 Transfers Transfers 12-31-15 Encumbrances 12-31-15 

(continued) 
lnlgmgl Sgmgg Fgnds 

Health Insurance $ (952,110) 5 3.468.661 $ 3.480.689 $ (964_138) $ 1,528,664 $ 564,526 
Health Insurance Reserve 880.489 475.000 — 1.355.489 - 1.355.489 
Workers Compensation 196.190 440 250 204.937 431.503 - 431.503 
Workers Compensation Reserve 480,585 156 254107 455 634 767 456,401 

Total Inlemal Servnce 605 154 4,384 067 3,710 733 1,278L488 1 529 431 2 B07 919 

Agency Fgng§ 
Payroll Cleanng _ 14.226324 14,226,324 - 35 280 35.280 
Banl Bonds - 277 540 277 540 - 199 490 199.490 
Sndewalk Construchon - - ‘ - 910 910 
Specnal lnvesugauons - 15,138 15,138 - 8,196 8.196 
Sectnon 125 - 152.075 152.075 - 43.060 43.060 
Employee Flower - 7 120 7 120 - 1 564 1,564 

Total Agency Funds - 14 678 197 14 678_197 - 288 500 288,500 

Total all funds 
(memorandum Only) S 28 060 048 $ 114 471 680 $ 107 995 209 S 34 536 519 $ 8,628 954 S 43,165 473 

om smon ct Tr surers ash 
Commerce Bank 3 22.860173 
Weslem State Bank 509 587 
Fnrsl Nahonal Bank 5.165.163 
Bank of the West 2.003.353 
Amencan State Bank 1.916 932 
Garden Cuty State Bank 347.978 

Plus deposns In lransut 19.942 
Less oulslandung checks __(§§Q.$)_ 

Total cash In banks 5 32272385 

Uulury petty cash accounts 450 
Accounts recenvable 3-554 901 
Investments ___7£3i.E 

Total cash 
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CITY OF GARDEN CITY, KANSAS 
Schedule of Insurance 
December 31, 2015 

Policy Expiration Insured 
Type of Insurance - Insurer Number Date Amount 
Buildings and personal property ~ 

Travelers Corporation H-630-1E585833-TIL-13 12/31/2015 $ 73,573,491 

Commercial auto - 

Travelers Corporation H-630-1E585833-TIL-13 12/31/2015 1.000.000/1,000,000 

Commercial general liability - 

Travelers Corporation H-630-1E585833-TIL-13 12/31/2015 1.000.000/2,000,000 

Aviation insurance and airport liability - 

Global Aerospace. Inc. AL|14000619 02/01/2016 10,000,000/10,000,000 

Law enforcement liability - 

Travelers Corporation H-630-1E585833—TIL-13 12/31/2015 2,000,000/2,000,000 

Employee dishonesty coverage - 

Travelers Corporation H-630-1E585833-TIL-13 12/31/2015 250.000 

Public officials liability - 

Travelers Corporation H-630-1E585833-TIL-13 12/31/2015 2,000,000/2,000,000 

Gas well liability - 

Mid-Continent Casualty Company 04GL000864200 12/07/2016 500.000/1,000,000 
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Statistical Section 

This par} of the City of Garden City. Kansas, comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed 
Information as a context for understanding what the information in the financial statements. note 
dasclosures. and required supplementary information says about the City's overall financial health. 

Contents Page 
Financial Trends 134 

These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how 
the City's financial performance and well-being have changed over time. 

Revenue Capacity 146 
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the City's 
most significant local revenue source. the property tax. 

Debt Capacity 152 
These schedules present informatnon to help the reader assess the 
affordability of the City's current levels of outstanding debt and the City's 
ability to issue additional debt in the future. 

Demographic and Economic Information 159 
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the 
reader understand the environment within which the City's financial activities 
take place. 

Operating Information 161 
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader 
understand how the information in the City's financial report relates to the 
services the City provides and the activities it performs. 

Source: Unless otherwise noted. the information in these schedules is derived from the comprehensive 
annual financial reports for the relevant year. 

Note‘ The January 1. 2015. amounts for the government-wide governmental-type actnvities have been restated to reflect a 
$15,005.61!) adjustment to net position as a result of the change in accounting principle for the implementation of Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 68. Accounting and Financial Reponing for Pensions and GASB Statement 
No 71, Pens/on Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date. 

Note. The 2013 amounts for the government-wide governmental-type activmes have been restated for pnor period adjustments to 
reflect $829,022 as addituonal public works expenses and capital grants and contributions for contributed infrastructure capitalized 
in 2013 

Note: In 2013 the debt hm»! presented on the Legal Debt Margm Information schedule on pages 156-157 was updated to agree 
with the total taxable assessed value presented on pages 146-147‘ 

Note‘ The 2012 amounts for the government-wide and business-type activmes have been restated for prior penod adjustments as 
dvscussed |I'1 Note 4, Item P, on page 65 of the 2014 report. The 2012 amounts for the government-wide and governmental-type 
actuvnties have been restated for pnor period adjustments as discussed in Note 4, Item R. on page 65 of the 2013 repon. 

Note‘ The 2011 amounts for net posmon — net mvestment Ifl capital assets for the governmental activities and business-type 
activities of the government-wnde financnal statements. and the unrestricted net position for the business-type activities funds 
fnnancnal statements have been restated for pnor penod adjustments as dlSCU$Sed in Note 4, item R, on page 66 of the 2012 
report 

Note. The 2010 amounts for net posntnon — net Investment in capital assets. and unrestncted net posmon for the business-type 
actuvmes have been restated for prior penod adjustments as discussed in Note 4. item J. on page 63 of the 2011 report. 

Note’ The 2008 amounts for the government-wnde and governmental-type activities have been restated for pnor penod 
adjustments as discussed in Note 4, Item K. on page 62 of the 2009 report 

Note. The 2007 amounts for the government-wide and business-type activities have been restated for prior period adjustments as 
dnscussed in Note 4, Item J, on pages 59 through 60 of the 2008 report 
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CITY OF GARDEN CITY. KANSAS 

Governmental activities 
Net mvestment in capital assets 
Restricted 
Unrestricted 

Total governmental activmes net posntion 

Business-type actiwties: 
Net investment in capital assets 
Restricted 
Unrestricted 

Total busmess-type actuvmes net position 

Primary government: 
Net investment m capnal assets 
Restricted 
Unrestricted 

Total primary government net position 

Net POSIUOH by Component 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

(accrual basis of accounting) 

2006 2007 2008 2009 

$ 30,082,449 $ 32,766,383 $ 32,525,667 $ 31,454,153 
141,758 232,006 256,240 213,341 

9.575.188 8,468,785 9,943,841 9,543,948 

$ 39,799,395 $ 41,467,174 $ 42,725,748 $ 41,211,442 

$ 44,028,234 $ 45,622,009 $ 47,733,618 $ 51,227,065 
1,102,975 1,137,405 1,259,840 1,234,110 
9,092,540 8,918,876 8.677,126 9,314,091 

$ 54,223,749 $ 55,678,290 $ 57,670.584 $ 61,775,266 

$ 74,110,683 $ 78,388,392 $ 80,259,285 $ 82,681,218 
1,244,733 1,369,411 1,516.080 1,447,451 

18,667,728 17,387,661 18,620,967 18,858,039 

$ 94,023,144 $ 97,145,464 $ 100,396,332 $ 102,986,708 
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Fiscal Year 
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 

$ 31_975.036 $ 32,479,006 28,238,372 $ 34,387,771 23.618,128 $ 1,728,681 
189,267 239,073 276,747 394.287 1,092,119 1,277,563 

8.541.673 8,406,287 8,134,010 (3,919,946) 4,029,371 15,887,760 

$ 40,705,976 $ 41,124,366 36,649,129 $ 30,862,112 28.739_618 $ 18,894,004 

$ 53,402,931 $ 55,236,148 59,286,563 $ 59,873,080 60,933,909 $ 61,316,527 
1,484,641 1,444,781 1,397,130 879.564 - - 

10,471,328 11,229,120 9,540,747 13,421,092 17,698,464 22,109,865 

$ 65,358,900 $ 67,910,049 70,224,440 $ 74,173,736 78,632,373 $ 83,426,392 

$ 85,377,967 $ 87,715,154 87,524,935 $ 94,260,851 84,552,037 $ 63,045,208 
1,673,908 1,683,854 1,673,877 1,273,851 1,092,119 1,277,563 

19,013,001 19,635,407 17,674,757 9.501.146 21,727,835 37,997,625 

$106,064,876 $ 109,034,415 106,873,569 $ 105,035,848 107,371,991 $ 102,320,396 
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Expenses 
Govemmenlal actuvmes 

General government 
Public safety 
Public works 
Parks and recreanon 
Interest on long-term debt 

Total govemmenlal acuvmes expenses 

Busnness-type actuvuues 
Eleclnc 
Water and sewer 
Aurpon 
Sohd waste 
Golf course 
HOUSITIQ 
Drainage 

Total business-type acluvmes expenses 

Total pnmary govemmenl expenses 

Program Revenues 
Govemmental acuvmes 

Charges tor SETVICGS 
General government 
Publuc safety 
Public works 
Parks and recreation 

Operatmg grants and conrnbutvons 
Capnal grants and contnbuuons 

Total govemmenlal aclnvmes program revenues 

Busmess-type achvmes 
Charges tor servuces 

Electnc 
Water and sewer 
Aurpon 
Sohd waste 
Golt course 
Drainage 

Operaung grants and contnbuuons 
Capnal grants and conlnbuuons 

Total busmess-type activities program revenues 

Total pnmary government program revenues 

Nel (expense)/revenue 
Governmental activities 
Business-type actnvmes 

Total pnmary government net expense 

General Revenues and Other Changes in Net Assets 
Govemmenlal acluvmes 

Taxes 
Property taxes 
Sales taxes 
Franchuse taxes 
Other taxes 

Investment eammgs 
Mnscenaneous 
Cam on 11150053] 01 capnlal assets 
Transters 

Total govemmenlal acuvmes 

Busnness-type actuvmes 
Taxes 

Property taxes 
Investment eamungs 
MISCEHBHQOUS 
Gain on dnsposal of capnlal assets 
Transfers 

Total busmess-type acnvmes 

Total pnmary govemmenl 

Change in Net Position 
Govemmenla| achvmes 
Busmess-type acnvmes 

Total pnmary govemmenl 

CITY OF GARDEN CITY, KANSAS 
Changes in Net Position 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

(accrual basis of accountung) 

Fcscal 
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 

5 8515.542 5 6.838.681 S 6.653.078 S 6.699.734 5 4,698,266 
6.326.228 6.930.303 7.312.265 9.631.721 10.520505 
2.238.682 865.762 2.425.119 2168.845 3.997.877 
‘L707 918 2.316.097 2.958.139 3.854.085 2.766.802 
281.904 323.812 328.853 372,770 400,611 

19.070274 17.274555 19.671454 23.321155 22.384061 

16,228,944 16.9-$2.321 19.396.414 18.798030 21,157,506 
5 033.390 5.100.961 5.393.462 5.588.047 5.666.156 
1.091.263 1_161,850 1.354229 1.305.582 1107.934 
1.855.054 2.044.744 2,149,923 2,221,036 2 364,421 
661.343 659.059 632.179 708.671 763.293 

5.397 7.341 1,905 - - 

56.973 133.167 98.346 82.417 98.028 
24.932364 26.049443 29.026,458 28,703,783 31.157338 

S 44,002,638 S 43,324,098 $ 48,703,912 5 52.030938 S 53.541 399 

$ 339.891 $ 318.97! S 542.897 5 373.066 5 449462 
1,430.306 1.347.231 1.356357 1458.791 1594.491 

48 - 32.698 - - 

18 063 79.529 17,764 54.137 16.734 
2.282 281 1.433.246 2.079.099 2.403.258 1.657.675 
534,787 674.112 642.208 615.363 837.029 

4.605.376 3.853.089 4.671.023 4.904.615 4,555,391 

17.230391 18.868092 20.784333 21.424209 23,072,844 
5.428.052 5.376 025 5.596.886 6.266 262 7.092.827 
337110 342.071 319.904 326.444 286.326 

2.088.905 2.078.521 2.096.321 2.116.312 2.733.879 
393.040 390.248 407.705 437.066 448.690 
130.602 202.059 202.133 204.986 205.276 

2.019.509 621,952 2.175.426 3.432.840 1.629.530 

27.628209 27.878968 31,583,308 34 208,119 35_469,372 

S 32.233585 S 31.732057 5 36,254,331 3 39 112.734 5 40.024163 

5 (14,464_898) S (13.421_566) S (15,006.431) S (‘|8.422.540) S (17,828,670) 
2.695.845 1,829,525 ;556.850 5.504.336 4,312,034 

3 (11,7e9.o53) s (11,592o41) 3 02,449,581) s (12.91s.2o4) S (13.516.636) 

s 3.983.104 s 4,3-16_459 s 4,407,894 s 4,978,312 5 5.193.216 
6.562.890 7.079.556 8.076.358 7.543.971 8.505.990 
720.481 836.308 848.048 776.554 707.656 
652,469 650,440 725.920 753.351 761.578 
956.691 890270 714.423 395,687 301.284 
201.909 109,734 151.646 129.959 174.980 

1_264_172 1.176.578 1,340,715 2.030.400 1 673.500 
14.341916 15,089,345 16,265.005 16.908234 17323 204 

423.666 374.102 363.283 419.206 471.737 
102 658 136.897 104.615 13.934 5.929 
161,783 290595 308262 197,606 471,116 

. . . - 1.268 
(1_2e4_172) (1,176,578) (1.3-10,716) (2,o3o.4oQ (1,e7s.5oo) 
(576,065) (374.9841) 1564,5561 (1399 654) (728400; 

5 13_765.851 s 14.714361 5 15.700449 3 15.508580 5 15.594304 

s (122_982) s 1,667_779 5 1.258574 3 (1514306) $ (505466) 
2 119,780 1.45-1,541 1,992,294 4.104.682 3.583.634 

s 1.996.798 s 3.122320 5 3.250.868 5 2.590376 5 3,078,168 
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Year 
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 

S 4.009.461 s 4.819.389 s 5.950337 3 4,273,422 S 3.075.916 
11.122229 9.597554 11.138906 11.830362 13,414,843 
3.237.551 9.626.612 8.978.749 8,602,160 7,206,818 
3714.687 3.708.620 4,222 466 4.311.743 4,162 780 
265.565 303 726 517357 612.392 942,716 

22.349493 28.055901 30,807,815 29.630579 28,803,078 

22.6158,-175 25.121_122 27,478,722 26.424387 27.848349 
5.702.703 5.979.324 5.857.843 6.373.675 6.492.447 
1.248.706 1.192292 1 440.781 1.292.743 1,546,754 
2.178.135 2.607.220 2.685.291 2,773,864 2,861,770 
820.835 850.038 943.331 L0-16.449 1.038.937 

272.108 190.297 105.468 220.915 183,197 
32,860,962 35,940,293 38,511,436 38L137,033 39,971,454 

5 55.210455 3 63,996_194 s 693519.251 5 67.767112 s 68.774532 

3 352.233 s 380.532 3 420.050 s 461,018 3 633.155 
1,702,490 1,668,919 1,334,479 1.686.141 1,627,768 

17.87:. . 442.674 275.000 - 

24.045 22.992 23.225 21.956 23,770 
1,320,230 1,441,504 1,401,702 2.124.480 8.297.681 
846.951 926.049 2.063.967 960_151 1,676,338 

4.263.822 4.439.996 6.186.097 5.528746 12_25s.712 

24,206,117 26,091,924 29,757,981 31.570407 31.387382 
7.602.554 7,736,305 7.349.270 7.795.751 7.887.218 
236.487 301,669 321.177 355.335 353 164 

2.767.614 $780.34-1 2.833.375 2.993.213 3.576.582 
451.342 500,407 496.488 498.392 472.698 
206.328 207,701 206.124 208.648 209.763 
311.252 1.359 000 659.303 614.317 380.237 

. . . . 1,013,380 
36,281,694 38.977350 41 623_718 44,036.063 45,280,924 

3 4o_545_516 s 43.417346 s 47,809,815 $ 49.564309 3 57_539.636 

S (18_085.671) s (23.615.905) S (24.621,71a) 5 (24_1o1_933) s (16.544,366) 
3.420.732 3,037,057 3.112.282 5,899,030 5,309,470 

3 (1-1.664.939; s (20,57s,848) s (21,5o9_43e) s (1s,2o2.90_31 s 01,234,896) 

3 5588.035 s 5427306 5 5.890.538 5 6,305,121 3 6,442,918 
9 055.986 9.646.269 10,298,449 10.851099 11,134,158 
670.290 638.389 769 365 780.082 739.022 
753.828 781 203 815,415 870,539 877.072 
240,453 332,773 349.180 245.302 207.756 
638.986 251.320 552.435 513 246 280.641 
17.957 236.558 - - - 

1.634.500 1,826,850 149 269 2.412.050 2.022.800 
18.600035 19.140668 18 334,701 21,979,439 21 104,367 

468,849 634477 574,613 709.284 892.760 
15.714 7,661 18.002 4.818 1.969 

256.500 407.546 376.306 257.555 603.378 
23.354 4,500 17,362 - 9.242 

(1 534.500) (1.826 850) (149,269) (2.412_05o) (2.022.800) 
(869.5843) (722,666) 837,014 (1,440,393) (515451; 

5 17,730,452 s 18,418,002 5 19671715 s 20.539046 5 21.188916 

s 514.364 s (4.475237) 5 (5.787.017) $ (2.122.494) s 5.160.001 
2.551.149 2314.391 3349.296 4458.637 4794.019 

5 3,065,513 s (2.16o_84g 3 (1,837.721) 5 2,336,143 3 9.954.020 
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CITY OF GARDEN CITY, KANSAS 
Governmental Activities Tax Revenues by Source 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(accrual basis of accounting) 

You 

Motor 
Fiscal Property Vehicle Sales Franchise Other 
Year Tax Tax Tax Taxes Taxes Total 

2006 $ 3,972,128 $ 652,469 $ 6.562.890 $ 720,481 $ 10.976 $ 11.918,944 
2007 4,337,090 650,440 7,079,556 839,308 9,369 12,915,763 
2008 4,400.476 725,920 8,076,358 848,048 7,418 14,058,220 
2009 4.963.808 753,351 7,843,971 776,554 14,504 14.352,188 
2010 5,181,820 761,578 8.505.990 707,656 11,396 15,168,440 
2011 5,583,820 753,828 9,055,986 670,290 4,215 16,068,139 
2012 5,422,084 781,203 9,646,269 638,389 5,222 16,493,167 
2013 5.890.538 815,415 10.298,449 769,365 - 17,773,767 
2014 6,295,353 870,539 10,853,099 780,082 9,768 18,808,841 
2015 6,417,157 877,072 11,134,158 739,022 25,761 19,193,170 

2015 

2014 

2013 

2012 

2011 

2010 

2009 

2008 

2007 
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CITY OF GARDEN CITY, KANSAS 
Fund Balances of Governmental Funds 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(modified accrual basis of accounting) 

General fund 
Unreserved 
Unassigned 

Total general fund 

All other governmental funds. 
Reserved 
Unreserved, reponed nn. 

Special revenue funds 
Caputal project funds 

Restricted 
Committed 
Assigned 
Unassugned 

Total all other governmental funds 

(1) GASB 54 was implemented by the City in 2011 

2006 2007 2008 2009 

$ 4,686,557 $ 4,599,827 4,857.753 4,930,556 

$ 4,686,557 $ 4,599,827 4,857,753 4,930,556 

$ 141,758 $ 232.006 256.240 213,341 

3,327,295 3,844,311 4,401,327 4,163,831 
819,556 19,309 1,857,190 1741915 

$ 4,288,609 $ 4.095.626 6,514,757 6,119,087 
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FISCBI Year 
2010 2011 (1) 2012 2013 2014 2015 

5.100.420 $ - $ - - $ - - 

- 5,443,223 5,029,579 6,367,098 7,177,159 - 

5,100,420 $ 5,443,223 $ 5,029,579 6,367,098 $ 7.177_159 - 

189.267 $ - $ - - $ - - 

4.198.268 - - - - - 

789.840 - - - - - 

- 3,539,330 3.529531 3,590,992 4,463,436 7,848,133 
1,650,217 1,484,702 1,292,166 1,665,754 1,864,596 

— 732,257 937.398 933.077 1,101,771 1,254,798 
- — (7,682,154) (13.765,754) (8,061,484) 7,183,409 

5,177,375 $ 5.921,804 $ (1,730,523) $ (7,949,519) $ (830_523) $18,150,936 
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CITY OF GARDEN CITY, KANSAS 
Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(modified accrual basns of accounting) 

2006 2007 2008 2009 
Revenues‘ 

Taxes $ 11,198,463 $ 12.076,455 $ 13,210,172 $ 13.575,634 
Special assessment taxes 442,787 448,123 409,468 352,286 
Intergovernmental revenue 2,282,281 1,433,246 1,489,754 ;,428,258 
Franchises 720,481 836,308 848,048 776,554 
Lncenses and permits 233,954 216,907 442.022 259.885 
Use of money and property 904.927 819,395 667,398 380,785 
Reimbursements/Insurance proceeds - - 589.345 - 

Miscellaneous 201.909 109,734 151,646 129,959 
Donations 92.000 225,989 232,742 238,077 
Cemetery 102.778 100,430 97,731 106,695 
Police and municipal court 1,181,481 1,032,772 1,068,948 1,156.939 
Fire 163,485 178,364 178,979 162,268 
Engnneering 48 - 32,698 - 

Inspection 85.340 136,095 108,430 139,584 
Planning and zoning 3,159 1,634 3.144 6,486 
Parks and zoo 18.063 79,529 17,764 54,137 

Total revenues 17,631,156 17,694,981 19,548,287 19,767,547 

Expenditures 
Current: 

General government 5,534,780 5,177,643 5,909,715 3,999,678 
Public safety 6,585,437 6,831,003 7,314,638 10.264218 
Public works 1,442,581 1,777,833 1,825,338 1,567,406 
Parks and recreation 2,160,162 2,307,451 2_429,367 2,934,845 

Capital outlay and capital projects 2,812,883 2.993,041 2,099,230 3.647.370 
Debt servnce‘ 

Pnncipal 1,635,000 1,445,000 1,450,300 1,452,000 
Interest and fiscal charges 270,201 318.197 323.200 349,881 
Refunding and bond issuance costs 21.693 195 31 ,780 28,253 

Total expenditures 20,462,737 20.850363 21 .383,568 24,243.651 

Excess of revenues under 
expenditures (2,831,581) (3,155,382) (1 ,835,281l ($476,104) 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Transfers In 1,908,950 1 ,828,212 1,801,896 2,788,596 
Transfers out (804,778) (851,331) (611,180) (1,544,366) 
Bonds Issued 1,370,000 1,755,300 3,072,000 2,173,700 
Issuance of capital leases 553,576 143,488 249,622 735.307 
Sale of capital assets - - ' ' 

Total other financing sources (uses) 3,027,748 2,875,669 4.512.338 4,153.237 

Net change in fund balances $ 196.167 $ (279,713) $ 2,677,057 $ (322,867) 

Debt servnce as a percentage of noncapital 
expenditures 10 11% 10.43% 9 25% 8 22% 
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Fiscal Year 
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 

$ 14,460,784 $ 15,397,849 $ 15,854,778 $ 17,004,402 $ 18,028,759 $ 18,454,148 
348,077 389.521 376,172 254,853 429,999 454,933 

1,682,675 1,345,230 1,466,504 1,726,702 2,149,480 8,322,681 
707.656 670,290 638,389 769,365 780,082 739,022 
339,459 237,266 237,856 292,231 332,124 511,698 
300,090 239,918 332.281 349.039 245,225 207,600 

174,980 638,986 251,320 562,485 513,246 280.641 
463.952 432,430 524,877 655,092 161,467 1,196,405 
105,760 110,330 132,480 122,550 123,035 116,185 

1,262,325 1324.361 1,290,786 1,474,422 1,312,573 1,210,586 
195,861 192.882 167.865 195.797 189,229 196.739 

- 17,873 . 442,674 275,000 - 

136.305 185,247 210,268 164,260 184.339 220,443 
4,243 4,637 10,196 5,269 5.859 5,272 
16,734 24,045 22.992 23.225 21,956 23,770 

20_198,901 21,210,865 21,516,764 24,042,366 24,752,373 31,940,123 

3,836,071 4,295,142 4,086,445 4,165,071 3,851,136 3,242,024 
10,217,268 10,327,641 10,825,211 11,715,431 11,671,156 13,270,593 
1.752.581 1,971,459 2,162,895 2,222,760 2,268,596 2,354,938 
3,121,023 3,256,194 3,430,557 3,639.752 3,760,839 3.835.535 
3,014,771 2,572,033 10,207,028 10,250,720 7,618,433 8.003.288 

1,623,700 1,565,500 1,501,250 1,536,500 1.691.309 1,790,910 
359,944 314,114 306,636 401,441 460,166 848,426 

4,341 36,007 5.662 101,036 60,738 84,212 

23,929,699 24.338.090 32,525,684 34,032,711 31,382,373 33,429,926 

(3,730,798) (£3,127,225; (11_OO8,92Q (9,990,345) (6,630,0@1 (1 ,489.803] 

2,284,095 2,121,500 2.588.950 2,769,536 5,517,396 3,830,162 
(850,595) (487,000) (762,100) (763,186) (3,076,168) (1 ,807.362) 

1,418,000 2.360.000 925,000 2.282.412 11,934,600 9,940,000 
107,450 202.000 122.526 820.106 183,229 1,331,303 

- 17,957 68,573 - - - 

2,958,950 4,214,457 2,942,949 5,108.868 14,559,057 13,294,103 

$ (771,848) $ 1,087,232 $ (8,065,971) $ (4,881.477) $ 7,929,057 $11,804,300 

9.54% 8 69% 6 54% 6.88% 7.20% 8 84°/o 
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CITY OF GARDEN CITY, KANSAS 
General Governmental Tax Revenues by Source 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(modified accrual basis of accounting) 

Motor 
Fuscal Property Vehicle Sales Franchuse Other 
Year Tax Tax Tax Taxes Taxes Total 

2006 $ 3,972,128 $ 652,469 $ 6,562,890 $ 720,481 $ 453,763 $ 12,361,731 
2007 4,337,090 650,440 7,079,556 836.308 457,492 13,360,886 
2008 4,400,476 725,920 8,076,358 848.048 416,884 14,467,686 
2009 4,963,808 753,351 7,843,971 776,554 366,790 14,704,474 
2010 5,181,820 761,578 8,505,990 707,656 359,473 15,516,517 
2011 5,583,820 753,828 9,055,986 670.290 393,736 16,457,660 
2012 5,422,084 781,203 9.646.269 638.389 381,394 16,869,339 
2013 5,890,538 815,415 10,298,449 769.365 254,853 18,028,620 
2014 6.295.353 870,539 10,853,099 780.082 439.767 19238840 
2015 6,417,157 877,072 11,134,158 739.022 480.694 19.648,103 
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CITY OF GARDEN CITY, KANSAS 
Assessed Value and Estnmated Actual Value of Taxable Property 

Retaul Sales and Retail Sales Tax Rate 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Total Total 
Assessed Value Taxable Direct 

FISCBI Real Personal State Motor Assessed Tax 
Year Estate Property Utility Vehicle Value Rate 

2006 $122,887,690 $ 9,265,313 $ 2.953.087 $ 23,770,228 $ 158.876.1318 33.74 
2007 126,090,517 8,417,385 3,077,141 24,480,511 162,065,554 34 90 
2008 131 ,O94,161 7,677,368 2,920,903 27,137,490 168,829,922 34 96 
2009 139283.065 6,973,993 2,571,161 26,913,876 175,742,095 37.98 
2010 144,481,953 6,334,757 2,544,753 25,886,364 179,247,827 37.85 
2011 149,202,109 5.897379 2,531,716 39,565,244 197,196,448 38.88 
2012 155719.616 6,208,184 2.655.867 25,997,701 190,581,368 38 96 
2013 160935.832 5,626,520 2,732,191 26,975,320 196,269,863 38.98 
2014 172,700,242 4,748,967 2,559,874 27,202,127 207,211,210 38.60 
2015 184,869,991 3,962,031 2,467,437 27,826,141 219,125,600 36 70 

Note: Propeny In the County is reassessed annually. The County assesses property at approximately 70 to 88 percent 
of actual value for all types of real and personal property Estimated actual value IS calculated by dividing assessed 
value by those percentages. Tax rates are per $1.000 of assessed value 

' Note Taxable Retanl Sales are from the Kansas Department of Revenue for Finney County The City receives 1°/o 
on the sales from within the City limits plus a proportionate share of the County's sales tax collections. The amounts 
shown In 2009 and thereafter are for the City of Garden City only. 
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Estnmated Assessed 
Actual Taxable Value as a 

Value Percentage of Taxable Retail Sales 
Real Estate Actual Value Retail Sales‘ Tax Rate 

$1.035.874,909 15.34 % $ 411,333,818 1.00 % 
1,073,053,496 15 10 443,339,785 1.00 
1,117,175,220 1511 498,786,142 1.00 
1,169.648.551 15 03 476,508.922 1 00 
1,214,518,251 14 76 492,834,585 1.00 
1,322,021,861 14 92 507,207,150 1.00 
1,415.781,760 13 46 535,820,208 1 00 
1,447,584,380 13.56 561576931 1.00 
1.511_763,20O 13 71 599,328,617 1.00 
1,604,716,750 1366 620,833,056 1 00 

Retail Sales 
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CITY OF GARDEN CITY, KANSAS 
Property Tax Rates 

Direct and Overlapping Governments 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Garden City 
Fiscal Employee Bond and 
Year General Benefits Recreation Interest Airport Building Total 

2006 8 21 9.73 5.01 7.06 3.01 0.72 33.74 
2007 7.77 10.74 5.00 9.02 2.37 - 34.90 
2008 7 85 11.07 5 01 8.76 2.27 - 34 96 
2009 22 24 - 4 83 8.31 2 60 - 37.98 
2010 22.07 - 4.98 7.98 2.82 - 37.85 
2011 22 53 - 5 00 8.70 2 65 - 38.88 
2012 2182 - 500 810 404 - 3896 
2013 21.93 - 5 00 9.02 3.03 - 38.98 
2014 21438 - 4 96 3 83 843 — 38.60 
2015 18.22 - 4.88 8.99 4.61 - 36 70 

Rates are expressed In mills 
Overlapping rates are those of state, local and county governments that apply to property owners within the City of 
Garden City 

Garden City Property Tax Rates 
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Overlapping Rates Total 
State Garden City Dnrect & 
of Funney Commumty Overlapping 

Kansas County College USD #457 Rates 

1.50 3603 1954 38.38 129.19 
1.50 35.31 19.22 37.38 128.31 
1.50 36.02 19.20 36.54 128 22 
1.50 36.33 19.36 36.42 131.59 
1.50 37.32 20.18 45.20 142.05 
1 50 37.24 20.24 48.96 146.82 
1 50 36.98 20.24 49 19 146.87 
150 37.12 21.20 49 92 148.72 
1 50 39.07 21 13 50.79 151.09 
1.50 38.82 20.99 47 97 145.98 

Property Tax Rates by Entity 
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CITY OF GARDEN CITY. KANSAS 
Principal Property Taxpayers 

Current Year and Nine Years Ago 

2015 2006 
Percenlage of Percentage of 

Taxable Total Taxable Taxable Total Taxable 
Assessed Assessed Assessed Assessed 

Name Value Rank Value vaiue Rank Value 
NCKAN Partners. Inc 5 5.603.221 1 2 85 % S % 
Menard. Inc 3_13L921 2 1 59 
Wal-Mart Real Estate BUSINESS Trust 2.730.723 3 1 39 2.432.676 1 1 53 
Sam's Real Estate Business Trust 1147.808 4 O 89 
Golden Plauns Crednl Umon 1,743_826 5 o 39 
Garden City Plaza LLC 1_730.110 6 0 88 
Black Hulls Corp (KS Dwnsuon) 1.555739 7 O 79 
HD Development 01 Maryland (Home Depot) 1,367,503 8 0 69 1.804.242 2 1 14 
Kansas LOUQIHQ, LLC 1367.503 9 0 69 
Dayton Hudson Corp (Target) 1.174.626 10 0 60 1,280,791 3 0 81 
Dnllons 1208.564 5 0 76 
Gahleo CMBS (Mall) 1_2o5 305 4 0 75 
ART Mortgage Bonower Prop Co (Amencold) 990,200 6 0 62 
Indy Lube Investments (Sears) 334245 7 0 56 
St Calhenne Hosputal (Imaging Center) 853335 3 o 55 
Mnnter-Wulson (Plaza Inn) 3o1_433 g o 50 
Steve & Ann Burgess 777,726 10 o 49 
other taxpayers 174,749,700 88 74 146522.800 92 28 

Total $ 196,902,680 100 00 % S 158,876,318 100 00 % 

Source Assessed value data used to estimate applicable percentages provuded by the Flnney County Clerk 

Pnncupal Sales Taxpayers by NAICS Code 
Current Year and Nine Years Ago 

2015 2006 
Percentage 0! Percentage 01 

Taxable Total Taxable Taxable Total Taxable 
Retan Retail Retanl Relavl 

NAICS Code Sales Rank Sales Sales Rank Sales 
Rezan Trade S 450,699.79? 1 72 95 % S 300.568.6813 1 73 07 % 
Accommodanon and Food Servnces 67.475.738 2 10 92 40.969926 2 9 96 
Intormauon 26,604,949 3 4 31 20.051.152 3 4 87 
Wholesale Trade 17.569868 4 2 84 11.327302 4 2 75 
Unlmes 12.424778 5 2 01 6.931.099 6 1 69 
Other Servnces (except Public Admvmslrahon) 12.166935 6 1 97 11,030.351 5 2 68 
Manufaclunng 8,876,401 7 1 44 4,821,107 8 1 17 
Construction 7 520.303 8 1 2? 5877.389 7 1 43 
Ans. Entertammenl and Rectealnon 3.232.895 9 0 52 1,006,187 0 24 
Real Eslale and Rental and Leasing 3,188,199 10 O 52 2.533.988 9 0 62 
Aomrnnsvanve. Suppon and Waste Management 2,168,067 0 35 1,290,720 0 31 
Professional, Scnentufic and Technucal Servnces 1.678014 0 27 1.320.464 0 32 
Health Care and Socual ASSlSlanCe 998,000 0 16 953.154 0 23 
Educational Servuces 939.603 0 15 646.722 0 16 
Mmnng. Ouarrymg, and Oil & Gas Exiracuon 781,930 0 13 1,499,162 10 0 36 
Other codes 1,507,582 0 24 506.412 0 14 

Total wllhm Garden City $ 611833.054 100 00 % S 411,333,818 100 00 % 

Source Esnmated taxable retan sales by Nonh American Industry Classlficahon System (NAICS) code provuded by the Kansas Department of Revenue 
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CITY OF GARDEN CITY, KANSAS 
Propeny Tax Levies and Collections 

Last Ten Fiscal Years

k 

Collected within the Collections Total Collected for the 
Total Tax Fiscal Year of the Levy in Fiscal Year of the Levy 

Fiscal Levy for Percentage Subsequent Percentage 
Year Fiscal Year Amount of Levy Years Amount of Levy 

2006 $ 4,508,411 $ 4,266,334 94.63 % $ 242,077 $ 4,508,411 10000 % 
2007 4,724,466 4,519,744 95.67 204,722 4,724,466 100.00 
2008 4,809,613 4,642,217 96 52 167,396 4,809,613 100 00 
2009 5,387,799 5,156,267 95.70 231,532 5.387.799 100 O0 
2010 5,643,613 5,412,175 95 90 231,438 5,643,613 100.00 
2011 5.981.461 5,748,296 9610 233,165 5,981 ,461 100.00 
2012 6,164,521 5,924,602 96.11 234.987 6,159,589 99.92 
2013 6,402,605 6,145,708 95.99 71,069 6,216,777 97.10 
2014 6,534,431 6,222,003 95.22 192,112 6,414,115 98.16 
2015 6,606,493 6,167,476 93.35 - 6,167,476 93.35 

Total Tax Levy to Current Tax Collections 
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CITY OF GARDEN CITY, KANSAS 
Ratios of Outstandnng Debt by Type 

Last Ten Fnscal Years 

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities 
General General 

- Fiscal Obligation Capntal Obligation Revenue Revenue Capital 
Year Bonds Leases Bonds Bonds Loans Leases 

2006 $ 7,375,000 $ 677,630 $ - $ 50,000 $ 15,763,041 $ - 

2007 7,685,300 458,669 - - 14,850,919 - 

2008 9,307,000 465,606 - - 13,906,169 — 

2009 10,028,700 939,690 - - 12,927,595 - 

2010 9,823,000 744,533 15,581,726 - - - 

2011 10,617,500 694,026 14,111,866 - - - 

2012 10041250 586,104 12,643,909 - - 15,147 
2013 10,787,162 1,109,674 17,262,278 — — 38.837 
2014 21,030,453 858,251 16,939,627 - 218,139 42,022,759 
2015 29,179,543 1.708.029 14,664,537 - 138,712 44,132,494 

Note Details regarding the City's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financia! statements. 

' See the Schedule of Demographic and Economic Statnstncs on page 159 for personal income and population data 
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Total Percentage 
Pnmary of Personal Per 

Government Income ' Capita " 

$ 23.865_671 2 64 % $ 828 
22,994,888 2 37 800 
23,678,775 2.54 812 
23,895,985 2.84 821 
26,149,259 2 40 842 
25,423,392 2.28 872 
23,286,410 2 39 872 
29,197,951 2 66 952 
81 ,O69.229 6 45 2,635 
89,823,315 8.13 2,902 
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Fuscal 
Year 

2006 
2007 
2008 
2009 

2010(4) 
2011 
2012 

2013(5) 
2014 
2015 

Ratnos of General Bonded Debt Outstanding 
CITY OF GARDEN CITY, KANSAS 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Percentage 
of Estimated Total 

Less Amounts Actual General 
General Avanlable In Taxable Bonded 

Obligation Debt Service Value of Debt Per 
Bonds (1) Fund Total Property (2) Capita (3) 

$ 7,375,000 $ 141,758 7,233,242 0 01 % $ 256 
7,685,300 232,006 7,453,294 0.01 267 
9,307,000 256,240 9,050,760 0 O1 311 

10,028,700 213.341 9,815,359 0.01 337 
25,404,726 189,267 25,215,459 0.02 812 
24,729,366 239,073 24,490,293 0 02 839 
22.685159 276,747 22,408,412 0.02 760 
28,049,440 394,287 27,655,153 0.02 901 
37,970,080 1,092,119 36,877,961 0.02 1,199 
43.844_080 1,277,563 42,566,517 0.03 1.375 

Note Detanls regarding the City's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements. 

(1) Includes special assessments. 
(2) See the Schedule of Assessed Value and Estumated Actual Value of Taxable Property on pages 146 through 147 

property value data 
(3) Population data can be found In the Schedule of Demographic and Economic Statistics on page 159. 
(4) In 2010. the City issued $15,277,000 of general oblngatnon bonds for internal improvements and to refinance debt 

In Its utuhty funds due to the lower mterest rates avanlable on the general obligation bonds. Although these bonds 
are general oblngation bonds, It is the Intent of the City to use utility revenues to meet the debt service requirements. 

(5) In 2013, the City Issued $6.121,588 of general obligation bonds for Internal improvements and improvements in 
nts utuluty funds due to the lower Interest rates available on the general obligation bonds. Although these bonds are 
general obiigation bonds. it is the Intent of the City to use utnlity revenues to meet the debt service requirements 

Total General Bonded Debt per Capita 

| 
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$1,200 

$1,000 
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CITY OF GARDEN CITY, KANSAS 
Dnrect and Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt 

As of December 31, 2015 

Estimated 
Estimated Share of 

Debt Percentage Overlapping 
Governmental Unit Outstanding Applicable (1) Debt 

Direct‘ 

City of Garden City $ 30,887,572 100 00 °/o $ 30,887,572 

Overlapping 
Finney County 6,475,218 33.82 2,189,919 
Garden City Community College 9.694598 33 82 3.278747 
USD #457 95,100,000 51.03 48,529,530 

Total overlapping debt 111,269,916 53,998,196 

Total direct and 
overlapping debt $ 142,157,488 $ 84,885,768 

Source Assessed value data used to estimate applicable percentages provided by the Funney County Clerk 
Debt outstandmg data provided by Finney County, Garden City Community College and USD #457 

Note Overiappung governments are those that coincide. at least in pan. with the geographic boundaries of the 
City. Thus schedule estimates the portion of the outstanding debt of those overlapping governments that is borne 
by the residents and businesses of the City of Garden City This process recognizes that, when considering the 
City's ability to issue and repay long-term debt, the entire debt burden borne by the residents and businesses 
should be taken Into account 

(1) The percentage of overlapping debt applicable is estimated using taxable assessed property values 
Applucable percentages were estimated by determimng the portnon of the County's taxable assessed value 
that is withm the City's boundaries and dividing it by the County's total taxable assessed value. 
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CITY OF GARDEN CITY, KANSAS 
Legal Debt Margin Information 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

2006 2007 2008 2009 

Debt limit $ 47,662,895 $ 48,619,666 $ 50,648,977 $ 52,722,629 

Total net debt applicable to limit 7,375,000 7.685.300 9,307,000 10,028,700 

Legal debt margin $ 40,287,895 $ 40,934,366 $ 41,341,977 $ 42,693,929 

Total net debt applicable to the limit 
as a percentage of debt Iimut 15.47% 15.81% 18.38% 19.02% 

Note. Under state finance law, the Cnty of Garden Cnty's outstanding general obligation debt should not exceed 30% of 
total assessed property value. 
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FI$Ca| Year 
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 

$ 53,774,348 $ 59,158,934 $ 57,174,410 $ 58,880,959 $ 62,163,363 $ 65,737,680 

25.(-354,726 24,754,366 35,123,159 49,189,440 47,310,080 43,869,080 

$ 28,119,622 $ 34,404,568 $ 22,051,251 $ 9,691,519 $ 14,853,283 $ 21,868,600 

47.71% 41 84% 61.43% 83.54% 76 11% 66 73% 

Assessed value 

Debt limit (30% of total assessed value) 

Debt applicable to limit: 
General obligation bonds - governmental activitnes 
General obligation bonds - business—type actnvnties 
Temporary notes payable 

Total net debt applicable to Inmn 

Legal debt margin 
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$ 219,125,600 

$ 65,737,680 

$ 29,179,543 
14,664,537 

25,000 

$ 43,869,080 

$ 21,868,600



CITY OF GARDEN CITY, KANSAS 
Pledged-Revenue Coverage 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Sales Tax Revenue Bonds 
FISCBI Sales Tax Debt Service 
Year Collections Principal Interest Coverage 

2006 $ 48,325 $ 45,000 $ 4,395 O 98 
2007 6,470 50.000 2.325 0.12 

Note’ Sales tax revenue bonds were paid off m 2007. 

Electric Utility Loans 
Electnc Less: Net 

FISCSI Charges Operating Available Debt Service 
Year and Other Expenses Revenue Principal Interest Coverage 

2011 $24,210,977 $21 ,903,317 $ 2,307,660 $ 124,500 $ 41.455 13.91 
2012 26,096,656 24,758,379 1,338,277 149,712 31 ,31 7 7.39 
2013 29,862,109 26,681,452 3,180,657 159,541 29,129 16.86 
2014 31,574,660 23,161,845 8,412,815 655.336 1,731,119 3 53 
2015 31 ,400.731 23,357,426 8,043,305 1.715.189 2,448,969 1.93 

Note" Detauls regardnng the Cnty's outstandmg debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements. 
Electric charges and other includes connect fees and other operating revenues. Operating expenses do not Include 
Interest or depreciation. 

Water and Sewer Utility Loans 
Water and Less‘ Net 

FISCSI Sewer Charges Operating Available Debt Service 
Year and Other Expenses Revenue Pringval Interest Covcflge 

2006 $ 5,430,773 $ 3.395,097 $ 2,035,676 $ 880.647 $ 574.920 1.40 
2007 5,376,144 3,543,845 1.832299 912,122 543,015 1.26 
2008 5,596,999 3,895,952 1,701,047 944,750 509,939 1.17 
2009 6286.255 4,102,088 2,184,167 978.574 475.650 1.50 
2010 7.094923 4,219,113 2,875,810 1,013,639 453,507 1.96 
2011 7,622,896 4,177,144 3,445,752 1,315,000 253.355 2 20 
2012 7,776,945 4,629.82? 3,147,118 1,292,500 289,021 1.99 
2013 7,376,943 4,513,934 2.863.009 1,320.000 263.927 1.81 
2014 7,820,838 5,041 ,035 2,779,803 1,433,076 270,242 1.63 
2015 7,896,659 5,145,197 2,751,462 1,616,651 275,875 1.45 

Note: Detauls regarding the City's outstanding debt can be found m the notes to the financial statements. 
Water and sewer charges and other includes tap fees and other operating revenues. Operating expenses do not include 
interest or depreciation. 
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CITY OF GARDEN CITY, KANSAS 
Demographic and Economic Statistics 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Personal Educauon 
Income Level In 
(amounts Per Capna Years of 

FISCBI expressed In Personal Median Formal School Unemployment 
Year Populatuon (1) thousands) Income (2) Age (3) Schoolmg (4) Enrollment (4) Rate (5) 

2006 28 832 S 902,781 $ 23.404 28 13 7.391 3 60 % 
2007 28.743 971_130 24,564 28 13 7,249 3 30 
2008 29.095 932 034 24.089 31 13 7,218 3 30 
2009 29.093 839.960 20.999 31 13 7,400 3 70 
2010 30.685 1,088,104 35.460 30 13 7.461 4 20 
2011 28.855 1.116.176 38.682 30 13 7.557 4 20 
2012 29,176 974,975 33,417 31 13 7.578 4 70 
2013 30,678 1.099.162 35.829 31 13 7,573 3 30 
2014 30.761 1,256,201 38.699 31 13 7.638 3 50 
2015 30,948 1,105,307 35,715 31 13 7,573 3 20 

Data Sources 
(1) Bureau of the Census/City Plannmg Depanmenl 
(2) Bureau of Economic Ana|ys:s 
(3) State Department of Commerce 
(4) School Dnslnct 
(5) Kansas Depanmenx 01 Labor 

Note Populahon, meduan age and education level Information are based on surveys conducted dunng me last quarter 01 
the calendar year Personal Income Information IS a total for the year Unemployment rate Informahon IS an ad;usIed 
year1y average School enrollment :5 based on the census at the start of the school year 

159



Em Io er 
Tyson Fresh Meals. Inc (Iowa Beef Processors, Inc ) 

Unified School Dlstnct No 457 
S! Cathenne Hospctal 
Garden City Communny College 
Fmney County 
Wal-Man 
Samy Enterpnses 
City of Garden City 
Dnllons 
Sunflower Electnc Power Corp 
Beef Produc1s. Inc 
Other employers 

Total 

Source Chamber oi Commerce. U S Depanment of Labor. Bureau 01 Labor Statnsbcs 

CITY OF GARDEN CITY. KANSAS 
Princupal Employers 

Current Year and Nine Years Ago 

Note Based on employment of Fmney Counly labor torce. unformatnon not avanlable Yor Cnty only 
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2015 2006 
Percentage of Percentage of 

Total Total 
Employees Rank Employment Employees Rank Employment 

3.200 1 22 25 % 3.100 1 17.67 % 
1.200 2 8 34 1.100 2 6 27 
641 3 4 46 504 3 2 87 
400 4 2 78 225 7 1 28 
350 5 2 43 350 5 2 00 
315 6 2.19 405 4 2 31 
300 7 2 09 
298 8 2 07 285 6 1 62 
250 9 1 74 210 10 1 20 
225 10 1 56 217 8 1 24 

- 216 9 1 23 
7,206 5010 10 928 62.31 

14 385 10001 ‘X: 17540 10000 ‘X:



CITY OF GARDEN CITY. KANSAS 
Full-time Equivalent City Government Employees by Function 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Full-ume Equnvalenl Employees as of December 31, 
Functnon 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 

General government 61 69 59 54 55 57 54 54 52 56 
Public safety 

POIIGB 
Officers 44 50 51 58 57 60 56 50 53 56 
Cuvnlnans 32 26 29 30 34 29 32 26 33 29 

Fnre 
Firefighters and otficers 30 34 38 34 36 34 34 34 34 34 
Civilians 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 

Streets 
Engmeenng 5 4 4 3 4 5 4 4 4 O 
Mauntenance 16 16 16 16 16 16 20 19 20 19 

Sannallon 14 14 14 20 23 16 15 10 16 17 
Culture and recreauon 35 32 39 42 46 43 45 46 45 44 
Water 11 13 12 13 13 12 14 13 12 10 
Sewer 15 13 13 13 15 10 8 11 10 10 
Eleclnc 21 18 20 19 22 5 21 20 19 18 22 

Total 285 290 296 303 323 304 303 287 298 298 

Source Cnty Human Resource Office 
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CITY OF GARDEN CITY. KANSAS 
Operatung Indicators by Function 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Fiscal Year 
Funcuon 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 201 3 2012 2013 2014 2015 

Ponce 
Physical arrests 4.125 3.509 3 242 4.294 4,557 3,407 3.169 2,477 2,774 3 121 
Parking vuolauons 243 181 21 1 344 471 360 283 154 154 165 
Traffic vuolatuons 4.751 3 962 3.405 5.239 7,170 7,747 6,710 5.107 3.501 4,399 

Fnre 
Number of calls answered 731 707 779 751 772 847 908 806 843 798 
Inspecuons I 19 868 923 759 850 738 923 736 742 945 

Streets 
Street resurtacmg (umpvoved males) 124 120 120 121 121 121 122 123 125 125 
Potholes patchltons 329 733 614 580 430 381 347 355 896 353 

Sanulauon 
Refuse collected (tons/day) 64 72 70 71 69 67 69 71 74 69 
Recyclabies collected (Ions/day) 2 22 4 00 3 80 4 48 7 2! 3 62 2 27 2 24 2 61 2 82 

Culture and recleahon 
Golf memberships Issued 196 260 271 166 249 338 275 247 224 219 
Zoo admnssuons 200.003 190,530 181,559 198,731 182,137 183.130 155,549 190,833 218.507 232.496 

Water 
New connectnons 24 27 32 26 22 30 28 89 88 50 
Water mains breaks 14 25 14 22 10 20 8 17 30 31 

Average daily consumption 
(thousands of gallons) 5.585 5.489 5,705 5.365 5 472 7.426 7.396 6.432 6,194 5.037 

Sewer 
Average daily sewage treatment 

(thousands of gallons) 3.164 3.215 3.301 2,902 2.466 2.696 2.980 2.480 2.560 2.560 

Electnc 
New connecluons 20 12 1 1 48 31 27 28 89 83 96 
Average daily usage 

(thousands of kilowatts) 61 1 654 696 686 683 711 729 745 771 763 

Sources Vanous CRY departments 
Note Inducalors are not avanlable for the general government tunctnon 
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CITY OF GARDEN CITY, KANSAS 
Capital Asset Statistics by Function 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Fiscal Year 
Funcnon 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 

Publxc safety 
POIICG 

Stations 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 

Patrol unns 26 26 30 30 30 29 26 26 30 31 
Motorcycle patrol unuls - - 4 4 6 s 5 6 7 7 

Frre stanons 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 

Streets 
Street (mules) 125 125 125 125 125 125 126 129 130 136 
Streetlnghts 3.066 2.571 2,559 2.556 2,665 3,407 3.507 3.407 3.424 3,436 
Tramc sngnals 29 30 30 30 33 35 35 34 38 38 

Sannlauon 
Collection trucks 10 11 12 12 12 12 13 13 13 14 

Culture and recreanon 
Park acreage 182 8 182 182 185 185 185 185 185 186 186 
Parts 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 14 
Swlmmmg pools 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 

TENNIS couns 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 
SEND! centers 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 

Water 
Water manns (mxles) 138 84 139 139 139 147 148 149 152 163 168 
Fare hydrants 891 895 902 906 918 922 923 927 1.040 1.065 
MBXIITIUFH canny capacnty 

(thousands of gallons) 29.000 29.000 29.000 29.000 29.000 27.000 28.000 28 000 25.578 25.578 

Sewer 
Samtaryseweumnles) 112 30 113 113 113 113 113 114 117 120 120 
Storm sewer (mules) 31 33 33 33 33 33 34 67 67 69 
Average daily sewage treatment 

(thousands of gallons) 3,164 3.215 3.301 2,902 2.466 2.696 2.552 2.480 2.560 2.560 

Electnc 
Number 01 dnslnbullon stations 9 8 8 8 8 8 9 11 12 12 
Mules oi servvce hnes 321 321 322 322 322 323 328 333 337 339 

Sources Vanous Cnly depanments 
Note No capnal asset Indicators are avanlable for the general govemmenl luncuon 
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System Rates 

Peak Load 

System Revenues by Sector 
Resldenual 

E nergy 
Customer Charge 

Commenuaulnduslnal 
Energy 
Customer Charge 

MISCEIIBHBOUS 
Secunty Lnghts 

Total 

Mwh Sales by Seclor 
Resndenual 
Inauslnal 

Ten Larges! Customers 

Name 
Bonanza 
Pelrosanlander 
ART Mortgage Borrower Prop Co (Amencold) 
Unnfied School DIslnc1 No 457 
Wal-Man 
lntematnonal Papev (Temple Inland Conlaunev) 
Waste Water Treatment Plant 
Sam's Club 
Dullons 85 
St Calhenne Hospnal 
Dullons 16 

Total 

CITY OF GARDEN CITY, KANSAS 
Jameson Energy Center 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 
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Fnscal Year 
2013 2014 2015 

same as 2012 same as 2013 same as 2014 

62.690 66.168 68.699 

S 7290.171 5 8.789 639 $ 8,833,157 
2.612.829 2.443 690 2.459.259 

17.638014 17.212.428 16.866450 
830.986 814.234 826.266 

57 468 54.839 54.262 

5 28,429,468 $ 29.314830 5 29,039,394 

84,150 82 837 83.455 
171 J50 183,362 180.820 

255.900 266.199 264.275 

Cunent Year and Two Years Ago 
2015 2013 

Sales Rank Sales Rank 
S 2.017.935 1 S 2.433.179 1 

1,099,114 2 1.606.269 2 
457.436 3 468.502 3 
322.003 4 311.807 6 
314,170 5 418.319 5 
287.356 6 461.352 4 
250.385 7 
193.232 8 268.429 7 
168 484 9 248.212 8 
158.472 10 242.644 9 

220.144 10 

S 5.268.587 $ 6 678.857
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INDEPENDENT AUDlTORS' REPORT 
ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON 
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH 

GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

The Honorable Mayor, 
City Commissioners and City Manager 

Garden City, Kansas 67846 

We have audited. in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America, the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Govemmen! 
Auditing Standards Issued by the Comptroller General of the United States and the 
standards contained in the Kansas Municipal Audit and Accounting Guide, issued by the 
State of Kansas, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units. each major fund, and the 
aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Garden City as of and for the year 
ended December 31, 2015, and the related notes to the financial statements, which 
collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements, and have issued our report 
thereon dated May 31. 2016. The financial statements of the Garden City Recreation 
Commission were not audited in accordance with Government Auditing Standards, 
accordingly, this repon does not extend to that component unit. Our report inciudes a 
reference to other auditors who audited the financial statements of the Garden City 
Housing Authority, as described In our report on the City of Garden City‘s financnal 
statements. This report does not inciude the results of the other auditors‘ testing 01 
internai control over financial reporting or compliance and other matters that are reponed 
on separately by those auditors. 

Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City of 
Garden City's internal control over financxal reponing (internal control) to determine the 
audit procedures that are appropnate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing 
our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion 
on the effectiveness of the City of Garden City's internal control. Accordingly, we do not 
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Garden City's Internal control. 

Our consideration of internal control over financnal repomng was for the limited purpose 
described in the preceding paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in 
internal control over financial reporting that mnght be material weaknesses or significant 
deficiencies and therefore, maternal weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that 
were not identified. However, as described in the accompanying schedule of findings and 
questioned costs, we identified cenain deflcuencnes In internal control over financial 
repomng that we consider to be material weaknesses. 

A de//ciency in internal control exists when the desngn or operation of a control does not 
allow management or employees in the normal course of performing thevr assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material 
weakness is adeficlency, or combination of defncnencues, In internal control, such that
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The Honorable Mayor, 
City Commissioners and City Manager 

Page 2 

there is a reasonable possibility that a materiai misstatement of the entity's financial 
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. We consider 
the deficiency described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as 
item 2015~1 to be a material weakness. 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of Garden City's financial 
statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with 
certain provisions of laws. regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance 
with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial 
statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions 
was not an objective of our audit and. accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The 
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are 
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

We noted certain matters that we have reported to management of the City of Garden City 
in a separate letter dated May 31, 2016. 

City of Garden City’s Response to Findings 

The City of Garden City's response to the findings identified in our audit is described in the 
accompanying corrective action plan. The City of Garden City's response was not 
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and. 
accordingly, we express no opinion on it. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control 
and compliance. and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the City of Garden City’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an 
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in 
considering the City of Garden City’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this 
communications is not suitable for any other purpose. 

:‘\= 

LEWIS, I-?OOPE & DICK. LLC 

May 31, 2016 
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INDEPENDENT AUD|TORS' REPORT 
ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM 

AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE 
IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE 

The Honorable Mayor, 
City Commissioners and City Manager 

Garden City, Kansas 67846 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 

We have audited the compliance of the City of Garden City, Kansas, with the types of 
compliance requirements described In the U S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) 
Comp/lance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of the City's 
major federal programs for the year ended December 31. 2015. The City of Garden City's 
major federal programs are ndentnfied in the summary of auditor's results section of the 
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. 

Management: Resgonsibility 
Management is responsible for compliance wnth the requirements of laws. regulations, 
contracts, and grants applicable to its federal programs. 

Auditors Resmnsibi/ity 
Our responsibimy is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the City of Garden 
City's major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements 
referred to above. The City of Garden Crty's financial statements include the operations of 
the Garden City Recreation Commission, whuch received no federal awards during the year 
ended December 31, 2015, and the Garden City Housing Authority. which received 
$218,365 in federal awards dunng the year ended December 31, 2015, which are not 
included in the schedule. Our compliance audit, described below. did not include the 
operations of the Garden City Recreation Commission because it expended no federal 
awards or the Garden City Housing Authority because the component unit engaged other 
auditors to perform an audit which was not in accordance with Uniform Guidance as the 
Garden City Housing Authonty only expended $218,365 in federal expenditures. 

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance Wlth auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of Amenca; the standards applicable to financial audits 
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the 
United States; the standards contained In the Kansas Municipal Audit and Accounting 
Guide, issued by the State of Kansas, and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of 
Federal Regulations (CFR) part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, 
and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and 
Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether noncompliance wzth the types of compliance requirements 
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program 
occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basus, evidence about the City of Garden 
City's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we 
considered necessary in the circumstances. 

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for 
each major federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination on 
the City of Garden City's compliance
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The Honorable Mayor, 
City Commissioners and City Manager 

Page 2 

Opinion on Each Ma/or Federal Proqram 
In our opinion, the City of Garden City, Kansas, complied, in all material respects. with the 
types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material 
effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended December 31. 2015. 

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 

The management of the City of Garden City is responsible for establishing and maintaining 
effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements 
referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered the 
City of Garden City's internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that 
could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program as a basis for 
designing auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report 
on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance. but not for 
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over 
compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of 
Garden City's internal control over compliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a 
controi over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of 
performing their assigned functions, to prevent. or detect and correct noncompliance with a 
type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material 
weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, 
in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material 
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be 
prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal 
control over compliance is a deficiency. or a combination of deficiencies. in internal control 
over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less 
severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance. yet important enough 
to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described 
in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in 

internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant 
deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that 
we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that 
have not been identified. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the 
scope of our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based 
on the requirements of Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any 
other purpose. 

‘fi.«._;—c‘.=, /649‘?-D4 53} pug. 
LEWIS, HOOPER & DICK, LLC 
May 31, 2016 
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CITY OF GARDEN CITY, KANSAS 
Schedule of Findinqs and Questioned Costs 

December 31, 2015 

I. SUMMARY OF AUDIT RESULTS 
A. Financial Statements 

Type of auditors’ report issued: Unmodified 

Internal control over financial reporting as reported in the INDEPENDENT AUDlTORS' 
REPORT ON COMPLIANCE AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 
REPORTING BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS: 

Are any material weaknesses identified’? Yes 
Are any significant deficiencies identified? None reported 
Is any noncompliance material to financial statements noted? No 

Federal Awards 
Internal control over major programs as reported in the INDEPENDENT AUD|TORS' 
REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND INTERNAL CONTROL 
OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE: 

Are any material weaknesses identified? No 
Are any significant deficiencies identified? None reported 

Type of auditors’ report |SSU8d on compliance for major programs: Unmodified 

Are there any audit findings that are required to be reported in 

accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a)? No 

Identification of major programs" 

CFDA 
Number Name of Federal Program or Cluster Grant Number Expenditures 

20933 National Infrastructure Investments - The 
Southwest Chief Route Improvement Project FR-TII—0033-15-01-O0 $ 3.295.757 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and B programs: $750,000 

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?: Yes 

(continued) 
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CITY OF GARDEN CITY, KANSAS 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

December 31,2015 

FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS 
Finding 2015-1: 
Type of Funding: 

Funding: 

Criteria: 

Condition/Context: 

Cause. 

Effect or Potential 
Effect: 

Recommendation: 

Material weakness in internal control over financial reporting. 

A material payable was not recorded in the correct time period. 

A strong control system over accounts payable includes an accurate accounting 
system that maintains agreement between the payables subsidiary and the 
general ledger, and effective review and follow-up on individual payables on a 
monthiy basis. 

The City is a party to a construction and maintenance agreement which requires 
the other party to submit invoices to the City on a monthly basis for actual costs 
nncurred for the project. The City is acting as the public agency responsible for 
administering and disbursing the funds awarded by the Federal Railroad 
Administration under the TIGER IV grant program which are being used to fund 
this construction and maintenance agreement. The initial invoice of $4,168,027 
submitted to the City was dated January 12, 2016, for services performed from 
September 1, 2015, through November 30, 2015. Of this expenditure amount, 
$3,295,757 was a federal grant expenditure for which the City had a related 
receivable. 

The invoice for services performed under a construction and maintenance 
agreement was not received until after the fiscal year end. 

A $4,168,027 expenditure was not recorded by the City for 2015 resulting in an 
audit adjustment to record the payable, expenditure and related federal grant 
receivable of $3,295,757. Additionally as a result, the original Schedule of 
Expenditures of Federal Awards submitted for audit did not include the related 
federal grant expenditures, although the grant project had been identified on the 
draft schedule. This did not impact the federal financial reports filed with the 
Federal Railroad Administration since those reports are being prepared on a cash 
basis of accounting. 

We recommend department heads submit vouchers and invoices to accounts 
payable within 15 days of the close of the fiscal year. If invoices are not received, 
progress billings should be requested or estimates should be used. Accounts 
payables should be monitored at year end to ensure proper recording of all 

transactions. 

Views of Responsible Officials 
And Planned Corrective Actions: 

The City will monitor capital projects and construction agreements to ensure 
invoices are submitted timely, or progress billings or estimates are provided to 
ensure accounts payable at year end are recorded timely. 

FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS 
None 
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Corrective Action Plan 
and Comments on Audit Resolution Matters Relatnnq 

to the Federal Award Programs 
December 31, 2015 

May 31, 2016 

The City of Garden City, Kansas, respectfully submits the following corrective action 
plan for the year ended December 31, 2015. 

Name and address of independent accounting firm: Lewis, Hooper & Dick, LLC 
PO Box 699 
Garden City, KS 67846 

Audit period‘ January 1, 2015 through December 31, 2015 

The findings from the December 31, 2015. Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 
related to the federal award programs are discussed below. The findings are numbered 
consistently with the number assigned in the Schedule. Section I of the Schedule. 
Summary of Auditors‘ Results, does not Include findings and is not addressed. 

FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS 
Finding 2015-1 
Planned Corrective Action: 
The City will monitor capital projects and construction agreements to ensure 
invoices are submmed timely, or progress billings or estimates are provnded to 
ensure accounts payable at year end are recorded timely. 

FEDERAL AWARDS FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
None 

STATUS OF CORRECTIVE ACTIONS ON PRIOR FINDINGS 

Finding 2014-1 
The City designated one person as responsible for all of the federal programs of 
the City. This iI'\diVldUa| monitors grant activity on a more frequent routine basis; 
and prepares the draft Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards. Program 
directors are required to provnde documentation to support the financial reports 
submitted. 

Finding 2013-1 
The Importance of reviewing the results of approved journal entnes posted to the 
City's accounts was stressed by management The City follows the same process 
used to review monthly and year-end repons. Financial statements, including a 
report of expenditures compared to budget, are prepared by the finance 
department and are provided to the department heads, including the yearend 
repons which are reviewed prior to submutting them for audit. 

(continued)
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Corrective Action Plan 
and Comments on Audit Resolution Matters Relating 

to the Federal Award Proqrams 
December 31, 2015 

IV. STATUS OF CORRECTIVE ACTIONS ON PRIOR FINDINGS (continued) 
Finding 2012-1 
The importance of adhering to the City's policy in determining fixed asset additions 
and deletions was reinforced to all department heads as a means of preventing, 
detecting, and correcting potential misstatement of fixed assets. Fixed asset 
additions and deletions were reconciled to the general ledger by the City staff to 
ensure they were properly stated. 

If there are any questions regarding this plan, please call Matthew C. Allen at 620-276- 
1160. 

Matthew C. Allen 
City Manager 
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CITY OF GARDEN CITY, KANSAS 
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2015 

Federal Program Disburse- 
CFDA Grant Award mentsl 

Grant Title Number Number Amount Expenditures 

DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT 
Passed through State Department of Commerce‘ 

Community Development Block Grant 
(Note 3) 14.218 87-BF—206 667 $ 667 

Passed through Kansas Housing Resources Corporation‘ 
Emergency Shelter Grants Program 14231 ESG-FF72012 118,226 - 

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE 
Direct Programs: 

Bulletproof Vest Grant Partnership 
Program 16 607 1121-0235 61,762 2,132 

Edward Byrne Memorial Justice 
Assistance Grant Program 16738 2014-DJ-BX-0870 12,995 12,990 

Equitable Sharing Program 16922 1,200 1,200 
Drug Enforcement State 8. Local 

Task Force Grant Program 16.XXX DEA Garden Cuty 31,146 11,894 

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
Direct Programs: 

Anrport Improvement Program 20.106 3-20-0024-37-2015 1,551 ,904 1,013,380 
Airport Improvement Program 20.106 3-20-0024-34-2013 166,627 58,173 
National Infrastructure Investments 

Program 20.933 FR-TII-0033-15-01-O0 12,469,963 3,295,757 
Passed through State Depanment of Transportation: 

Highway Planning and Construction 20.205 TE-0359-01 739,538 127,561 
State and Community Hughway Safety 20 600 PT-0992-15 5,500 2.780 

DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY 
Dnrect Programs 

Law Enforcement Officer 
Reimbursement Agreement Program 97090 HSTO208HSLR151 (;30.000 18,790 

Passed through Kansas Highway PatroIA 
State Homeland Security Grant Program 97 067 30,248 30 248 

TOTAL FEDERAL EXPENDITURES — PRIMARY GOVERNMENT $ 4,575 572 

The accompanying Notes to Schedule of Federal Awards are an integral part of thus statement. 
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CITY OF GARDEN CITY, KANSAS 
Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

December 31, 2015 

General 
The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards presents the activity of all federal 
financial assistance programs of the primary government of the City of Garden City, Kansas. The 
City's reporting entity is defined in Note 1 to the City's basic financial statements. All federal financial 
assistance received directly from federal agencies as well as federal financial assistance passed 
through other government agencnes is included on the schedule. 

Basxs of accounting 
The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented using the modified 
accrual basis of accounting, which is described in Note 1 to the City's basic financial statements. 

De Minimis Cost Rate 
The City has not elected to use the 10% de minimis cost rate. 

Community Development Block Grant 
Receipts included as program revenues are from payments received on a revolving loan fund 
originally established through Community Development Block Grant monies. The original program 
was closed out in prior years. Loans receivable at December 31, 2015, totaled $163,410. 
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